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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear our respectful shareholders,

Risun respectfully informs our respectful shareholders and investors that
there are numerous channels through which company information are
disclosed through the company’s official website, the HKEXnews website
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the company’s annual reports, ESG
reports, the company’s announcements, results press releases, general
meetings, roadshows, etc. These reports may satisfy those normal
investors, but for those who are long-term investors investing in Risun,
growing together with Risun, helping Risun achieve higher and dream
bigger, then what they need is a deeper and wider understanding of
Risun, a full, clear and systematic corporate image of whom Risun is,
our history, the motivation behind Risun’s founder, the choices we face
as entrepreneurs, whether Risun can succeed, and whether Risun will
keep up with our success. To report to our respectful shareholders and
investors our work in the past year, reflect on our highs and lows for the
year, and look forward to a better performance in an open manner is
both necessary and effective. We will lay out in detail for our respectful
shareholders and investors, Risun’s dream, mission, vision, the logic
of our growth, our values, methodology, worldview, and corporate
philosophy. We hope to receive your great concern, humbe guidance,
criticism and feedback.

.  RISUN’S STORY

The business of the Risun Group comprises coke and coking
chemicals, refined chemicals, operation management services,
trading and hydrogen products. These business segments are
inter-related, provide mutual support and form synergies to create
the expansive industry presence of the Risun Group.
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1. Composition of Risun’s Business

1M

Coke and coking chemicals business is Risun’s
core business segment, providing support for
Risun’s rapid development for 27 years since our
founding

Table 1: Past 3 years operation data of the coke and
coking chemicals business of the Risun Group

Unit: "0,000 tonnes, RMB00 million

Chairman’s Statement
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1. JBRSEBRIEAK
(1) HILEXREBHIEE

¥ BAXE-TLEFR
XETRBEHREER

RBBREEERT=
FREYE

7 - B ETARE

Production/

Processing World (China)

volume Revenue Gross Profit Market share

Z2R(PE)

E/MI& 'ON ER DEES

2019 20194 877 86.21 14.02 1.4%(2.0%)
2020 20204 1,113 87.16 24.61 1.7%(2.4%)
2021 20214 1,105 159.01 37.01 1.7%(2.4%)
2020 YOY Growth 20204 [A] L& 1.1% 75.5% 0.4%
2021 YOY Growth 20214 [A LK 82.4% 50.4% 0.0%

Note: China’s total coke production volume in 2021 was
465 million tonnes.
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Refined chemicals business is the second major (2) RHIELIEXRMEBENE
segment of Risun TRZBEEH
Table 2: Past 3 years operation data of the refined FoMBRSEB I TR =
chemicals business of the Risun Group FREHE

Unit: °0,000 tonnes, RMB’00 million By HIF - ST AR

Production volume Revenue Gross Profit
EE PN ESV

2019 20194 355 71.56 8.38
2020 20204 368 58.45 3.87
2021 20214 386 125.79 12.10
2020 YOY Growth 2020F [RItHIE K -18.3% -53.8%
2021 YOY Growth 2021 FIIE K 115.2% 212.7%

Note: Within the refined chemicals business, Risun
produced hydrogen products. Details were explained
in point (5) and table (5) below.

Operation management services business is

a newly developed segment formed in 2014,
focused on industry empowerment and assisting
companies with business expansion

Table 3: Past 3 years operation data of the operation
management services business of the Risun Group

Unit: "0,000 tonnes, RMB00 million

©)

id ER#ETEXERR
BB AEESEE
oo FEEMERTX
E(B)RRK(O5)

EEEERKEER B
R2014F AL [
TERBEMBI D D T EK
RN £

RINEFG R BIE L B ARG
O =FREHE

B - B ETARKE

Production volume Revenue Gross Profit

EE 'ON EA
2019 20194 139 10.33 1.80
2020 20204 361 6.01 1.56
2021 20214 239 2.61 0.37
2020 YOY Growth 2020 [FAItb g & -41.8% -13.3%
2021 YOY Growth 2021 F Rt Ig & -56.6% -76.3%

Note: The decline in business volume of the operation
management services business in 2021 was due to
the completion of the acquisition of the Shandong
project in January 2021, which was subsequently
consolidated and its results have been included in
the coke and refined chemicals business segments.
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Chairman’s Statement

Progressive expansion of the trading business

Table 4: Past 3 years operation data of the trading
business of the Risun Group

Unit: "0,000 tonnes, RMB00 million

EEHE

(4) EBESEBZFEK - &R

RATBISREE 5 EMT =
FREYE

s - B ETARE

Business volume Revenue Gross Profit

5031 WA ER
20194F 20194 141 20.32 1.63
2020%F 20204 579 46.23 2.19
20214 20214 1,122 96.89 5.81
2020 YOY Growth 20205 [AIthIE & 127.51% 34.4%
2021 YOY Growth 20214 FILbiE & 109.58% 165.3%

Hydrogen products business (within the refined
chemicals busines) commenced in 2019 and
demonstrates significant progress

Table 5: 2021 operation data of the hydrogen products
business of the Risun Group

Unit: "0,000 cubic metres, RMB’00 million

(5) SEREXRB(FEMRBEMAL
TEFRR) B20195F
& BT HRES

REMBBEEBSREETR
2021 F 4L & BUR

B BULK  (ETTARKE

Business volume Revenue Gross Profit
EKE [ON EF
2021 20214 196 0.21 0.03
i 2021 ERE AT
Note: The hydrogen company’s external sales of hydrogen HERR196BL A
amounted to 1,960,000 cubic metres in 2021. oK o
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

2. Risun’s development in coke and chemicals
industries

The Risun Group offers over 50 types of products under
five major categories. Our diverse product portfolio helps to
support the sustained growth of the performance of the Risun
Group.

Table 6: Past 3 years operation data of the Risun Group

Unit: "0,000 tonnes, RMB'000 million

JBRRERRR MAE TITEA
R

JBRG =B A A AMR50% [EE M
miE - BEZHMER - AFRX
BIRSEEEEERER -

=6 B EEI =R E B

Bl B ([ETARE

Net profit

Operation attributable Return Return
Year Ef volume Revenue  Gross profit toparent  onassets on equity
34 0N el ROA ROE
2019 2019F 1,512 188.42 13.63 6.80% 20.37%
2020 2020 2,421 197.85 16.53 6.76% 20.06%
2021 20215 2,852 384.30 26.13 7.05% 23.79%
2020 YOY Growth 020FAER 5.00% 21.28% -0.04% -0.31%
2021 YOY Growth 021 F A ER 94.24% 58.08% 0.29% 3.73%

Note: The significant increase in revenue in 2021 was due to: B

(i completion of the acquisition of the Shandong
business in January 2021 which was subsequently
consolidated.

(i) more centralised managment of purchases and sales

in 2021, which enhanced overall efficency.

(iii)  market prices for coke products and refined chemical
products were higher in 2021 than 2020.
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China’s overall coke production capacity is approximately
540 million tonnes with an industry scale of approximately
RMB1,600 trillion. In 2021, coke production was approximately
465 million tonnes with the industry operating at 86%
capacity; of which, independent coking chemicals occupied
a 73% share and a total industry scale of approximately
RMB940 trillion (data relating to coke production capacity and
industry scale were retrieved from the China Coking Industry
Association, production volume data was obtained from
Frost & Sullivan, while others including operating capacity,
independent coke and coking chemicals share in industry
scale were calculated based on statistics from the Group’s
market management department). Within China’s coke and
coking chemicals industry, there remains 24% production
capacity requiring renewal, conversion and upgrade to
greener, more environmentally friendly, more advanced
technology and a larger integrated industrial park with a
complete industrial chain, which represents a significant
opportunity for industry consolidation. Meanwhile, China’s
strict implementation of environmental and safety standards
and strong efforts at the provincial level in implementing
national standards is also driving industry consolidation. As
the top-ranked in the industry in terms of coking coal business
operations scale, Currently, Risun Group has a market share
of 2.4% in China, (note: market share calculated based on
coke supply volume of Risun in 2021/coke production volume
of China’s independent coke and coking chemical enterprises
in 2021) meaning that there is huge room for growth through
industry consolidation by merger and acquisition.

The refined chemicals business of the Risun Group
comprises two major categories, coke and coking chemicals
and petroleum chemicals, both of which has achieved
significant growth. As of 31 December 2021, Risun Group’s
annual processing volume of coal tar was approximately
1 million tonnes (including 300,000 tonnes under operation
management services), ranked third in China; coke oven
gas methanol was approximately 670,000 tonnes, ranked
first in China; industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride was
approximately 160,000 tonnes, ranked first in China; coking
crude benzene was approximately 580,000 tonnes, ranked
first in China; caprolactam was approximately 340,000 tonnes,
ranked third in China.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Despite experiencing growth in production volume, revenue
and profits in the refined chemicals business in 2021 over
2020, the chemicals industry is China’s largest manufacturing
industry comprising over 1,200 types of products under four
primary categories, 17 secondary categories and 75 sub
categories with a scale of RMB14,450 trillion (scale data
retrieved from the China Petroleum and Chemical Industry
Federation and category data retrieved from the 2017 edition
of the National Economical Industry Classification), involving
almost every aspect of the national economy. It is an industry
that gives rise to major technologies and large enterprises,
for which Risun should strive for in the long term. Whether in
terms of scale, product type, ancillary service capacity, or
profitability, Risun still has huge room for improvement.

DEVELOPMENT OF ASSET-LIGHT BUSINESSES

Risun’s trading business

Risun’s trading business commenced in 2006. After over a
decade of development, it has become a significant business
of Risun.

Table 7: Growth in scale and profits of the trading business of
the Risun Group between 2019 to 2021

BRNBFZ2021F EL2020F £ T
EXmES - /A - FIBEEET
#BE EBITESEHDAK
$ 179 5E ~ 75/ME ~ 11,2008
fEEmBEEAK14,4508 &
TTARBHRENPEE — KRS
TEGREREE R B E A
{LBEIEEEE  DEHBERE
(BREBETED 201715
) ST HSRERCENRA
FE - REEEKREM - RAF
1T - BREEEREAEM - K
REM - BEEBEHRE  ER
&5 BER D - BFIgEH - #B
ﬁgﬁﬁﬁgﬁzﬁ °

HEERBHERR
1. BEREZER

TBF5 8 5 £ E IR 20064 + £
BTEFHEE  BEKXAERS
EEMEBIRE -

R7 2019F 2021 F B B E
SEBREMFIEE(CER

Unit: "0,000 tonnes, RMB’00 million 7 - B - BT ARK
2019 2020 2021
Business volume ¥%= 141 579 1,122
Revenue WA 20.32 46.23 96.89
Gross profit EH 1.63 2.19 5.81
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Risun’s trading business has three major functions: Firstly
to expand the Group’s current business scale, increase the
market share of the current business, expand market reach,
and ensure that the Company’s manufacturing business
achieves a leading volume of operation in the industry over
the years. Since its commencement, the trading business has
been characterised by its presence in the national and global
markets, allowing the Group to expand its vision; Secondly to
better discover prices and trends. Together with the Group’s
ownership of coking coal delivery warehouses and methanol
delivery warehouses, we are able to make use of the futures
market to manage price fluctuations, which not only helps to
increase our profitability, but also synergistically enhance the
profits of all products produced by the Group; Thirdly, the
trading business has expanded our presence across China
and the world, allowing us to discover better development
opportunities, developing our operation management
services business and conducting industry merger and
acquisitions. Currently, the trading business is developing its
coverage across China and gradually expanding worldwide
to establish a global market network, which will contribute to
the expansion of Risun’s business.

After 16 years of development, Risun’s trading business has
formed a stable commercial model, business model and profit
model, all of which are closed-loop and strictly regulated.
Business volume is growing gradually, and profits continue to
increase annually.

Chairman’s Statement

EEHE

BIEESEBB KBk —%
BAKBEREEBKHRR - =RRH
BEBOTSERE  IRTS
AR - AWIRE R RIBIERIRES
BMBITERNELENRIE -/
REZFHBRIERBZEL -
TS HRNEH R
SENERMRE o —EAAEL
WEIRER - HRBE - MEE
REBDKEANERZEIEM
FEXHE  HMAERPETS
EREE - MERLAEME F 8
EN - BAABRIRTT B NPT
BEEERNERN - —2HNE
ZmiHHNEEMABMERAA -
AABRE M ERES - FT
BREERERBMEITRET
FOTUEE - 1S BB S ER
2EMSMHE  BLEAZEN
% R EIRMISALE - R B
BRI E TSR R -

BBTRENER - BEESE
BERKBRENEERS - ¥
BERX - BNEX - ERES
EBRAER - RIRERAR - EEERY
B BNEFRTT -

2021 F3R
FEEREEERAD G

1



Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

2. Risun’s operation management services
business

Risun’s operation management services business
commenced in 2014. Two tables below set out basic
information and business growth of the Risun’s operation
management services in recent years.

2. JBEEEEIEMR

GE T

BB ELERRKEBZIRN
20144 « TEMEFRIETRPTE
FIEGELEERENELRS R
REBBRERL -

Table 8: General situation of the operation management KOG EBELEERBES
services business of the Risun Group [ RHIEARIF N
No.  Region Main facilities and scale Model Status Commencement Expiry
F%  HE IRRERK B e EREE ERER
1 Linfen, Shanxi 200,000 tonnes of hydrogenated benzene  Operation management services  Ceased operation April 2020 April 2020
AR NEEENE BEEERY EEER 2020F47 2020F47
2 Ruyang, Henan 500,000 tonnes of coke and coking Operation management services  Ceased operation June 2018 May 2019
chemicals
e SOEMEEL TR BEER 2018565 2019555
3 Pingdingshan, Henan 300,000 tonnes of processed coking tar ~ Operation management services  Currently under operation July 2018 -
TR NEWEERIT TR LkEE 21857A -
4 Zhangshu, Jiangxi 1.3 million tonnes of coke and coking Operation management services  Currently under operation  January 2020 -
chemicals
TERH 130EME( E2ERE fidischy 20617 -
5 Alxa League, Inner 1 million tonnes of coke and coking Operation management services  Currently under operation June 2019 -
Mongolia chemicals
REFLE 1008IEE( TR LkgEE 2019565 -
6 Dongming, Shandong 200,000 tonnes of caprolactam, 80,000 Operation management and Acquisition completed July 2019 December 2020
tonnes of cyclohexanone, 80,000 tonnes  subsequent acquisition
of Nylon 6, 260,000 tonnes of hydrogen
peroxide, 300,000 tonnes of acid
(L NEMCABE SEECE SRR TELERANE RESHE N19F78 2005128
6R6EMEEEK - 0EMRE
7 Yuncheng, Shandong 1.2 million tonnes of coking coal, 150,000 Operation management and Acquisition completed July 2019 December 2020
tonnes of synthetic ammonia, 300,000 subsequent acquisition
tonnes of nitric acid, 100,000 tonnes of
cyclohexanone, 140,000 tonnes of adipic
acid
W 120BBER  SEMAHE 0EME  RELEEANE BETRIE N19F7R 200F128

B 10BHRCH - UERD R
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Table 9: Growth in scale and revenue of the operation
management services business of the Risun Group

Unit: “0,000 tonnes, RMB’00 million

Chairman’s Statement

EEHE

RO JBF R BB S EEIRGER
BRI A Z{LIER

Bl B [ETARKE

2019 2020 2021
Business volume ES 139 361 239
Revenue WA 10.33 6.01 2.61

Risun’s operation management services business comprises
three models: operation management service for production
technology (responsible only for management of production
technology); operation management service for integrated
sales and marketing (responsible only for sales); and full
operation management service for sales, transportation,
production and supplies.

Risun’s operation management services model closely
resembles that of major hotel management brands in their
operation management of other hotels. For instance, a certain
international hotel management company operates and
manages close to 3,000 hotels across the world, of which
only 300 or 10% are self-built, and the other 2,700 or 90% are
owned by others who engage this international hotel company
for professional management.

Generally, Risun only assigns 20 to 60 personnel to an
operation management services project, and the company
under our operation management is supported by our strong
vertical integrated business model in the same way as
subsidiaries under the Group, allowing it to gradually achieve
the same level of profitability and general competitiveness as
our subsidiaries.

After eight years of exploration, Risun’s operation management
services business has gradually grown. From discovering
opportunities, to negotiations, our takeover of operations,
raising various standards to that of Risun Group, eventually
forming a complete set of system, methods, and processes. In
future, we will continue our steady expansion of the operation
management services business and increase the overall scale
of profits generated.

TR EENE S ER RIS EBS
—REpE - —BREERNH
EBEBEERK(RABLEERM
B —ERLEH-BLES
EERT(RABHERMNE
&) —ERH E E- itz
HRENELERRBERN

JBR%E & B IR IRIGE LUK R
REEE RN RIEEEEEME
EoBEBRLELE—RBEEEAR
B EREBEELEEIE T
3,000 85 + HF R 300X »
10%H)B/E A CIREERA
EH#2 700K * #190%H)H & B
RHAREE @ REMETEE
LB -

—RIERT - G EEEER
BEERFZLIK20-608 8 TR
BERNA] - EEEEREMNA T
REBEEERT AR —FES
EEBRAMER —BEEERK
AT RAIAER S ER B
BEFRRINBFIREN NG EHRFE
j] °

RBN\ENRR - BEEZER
RIGEBIR IR WERHE
g BISfEH - BRJERSES

BEL  RARERE  EF
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3. Why

our industry peers are willing to entrust

Risun for operation management

Our peers engage Risun to operate and manage their coke
and coking chemicals and refined chemicals businesses
based on the following considerations:

)

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Pressure on environmental protection and safety

Environmental protection and safety are the first lifelines
for the coking and chemical industries. With the strict
implementation of national regulations on environmental
protection and safety in various provinces and cities,
all enterprises encounter unprecedented pressure
on continuous operation. However, safety and
environmental protection are not achievable overnight,
they require significant capital resources, strict
procedure control, corresponding technical investment
and means, as well as extremely high professional
requirements on management and talent quality. Given
the clear timeline set out by the government to meet
such safety and environmental protection requirements,
not all enterprises could meet these requirements in a
timely manner.

Over the past decade, Risun’s industrial park has
hosted over 800 tours on safety and environmental
protection for various government officers and the
peers. The coking industry covers 132 cities across the
country, among which, party leaders from 59 cities have
more than once visited Risun. There are 351 coking
enterprises in China, of which 50 enterprises have
participated in the Risun learning tour, many of which
have repeatedly visited Risun for benchmarking (the
above data is based on the statistics from the General
Management Department of Risun Group). Some
enterprises accepted Risun’s operation management
service under the recommendation by the government,
for Risun’s standards on safety and environmental
protection are second to nonerr in China, which are
stricter and more comprehensive than the national
standards.

China Risun Group Limited
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Various levels of leadership from the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of China have also visited Risun’s
park over many occasions to provide inspection and
guidance. The environmental protection requirements
established by Risun have set a high standard for
the industry, and have made great contributions to
the improvement of environment in Beijing and its
surrounding areas, to defend the blue sky, and to the
Beijing Summer and Winter Olympics, which are highly
appreciated by the government at various levels, the
general public and our industry peers.

Pressure on production technology

The coke and coking chemicals and refined chemicals
industries require huge capital investment, high
technical requirements, strict control over production,
and high standards on employee quality and systematic
procedures. “Safety, stability, long-run, full capacity and
improvement” production and operations directly affect
the cost and return on assets. The level of technology
and R&D investment directly affect the quality of
the products, which, together with the technological
capabilities of green and clean production, all require
each enterprise to continuously invest in, optimise,
modify, improve and upgrade their technologies,
employees and production equipment. As such, the
continuous challenge to conduct upgrades pose
considerable difficulties for most enterprises to adapt
and keep up. If they choose not to invest, they will not
be able to keep up, and if they do invest, it will directly
lead to an increase in costs and a decrease in revenue.
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Since our establishment, Risun has been providing
systematic and comprehensive training to its employees
every year, and has been introducing numerous
doctorate, master, undergraduate and vocational
college graduates each year to continuously improve
the quality of the workforce. 17 professional technical
committees have been established within the Group
to carry out a series of technological enhancement,
technological upgrades and R&D innovation. As of 31
December 2021, Risun had a total of 7,678 employees,
including 1,676 vocational graduates, accounting for
21.83%; 1,846 undergraduates, accounting for 24.04%;
246 postgraduates, accounting for 3.20%; 78 senior
employees, 497 mid-level employees, and 1,659 junior
employees, totaling to 2,234 employees and accounting
for 29.10%. Risun has developed 345 proprietary
technologies and 183 patented technologies. These
well-trained professionals not only promote the
continuous upgrades and improvement of Risun’s
production technologies, but also bring technological
enhancement to the industry. Over the years, Risun has
systematically trained and cultivated professional and
technical personnel for the industry, provided project
construction services, project commissioning services
and maintenance services for our peers, and carried out
a number of activities involving technical breakthroughs,
cost reduction and efficiency improvement, revenue
increment and expenditure reduction, which in turn
helped enhance the competitiveness of the peers.

China Risun Group Limited
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Pressure on operation

The coke and coking chemicals and refined chemicals
industries are part of the bulk commodity industries,
and are inevitably exposed to cyclical fluctuations.
Every enterprise and business unit will have to face
market fluctuations within the sector, all the way from
sales, transportation, production to supply. The coking
industry, for instance, will also have to tackle the
pressure on sales receivables. Although the industry
is profitable, the profitability of each enterprise varies,
and the differences within the chemical industry is even
more evident. Fluctuations and frequent changes in
the market, together with impactful and uncertainties in
policies have caused many enterprises to fail to adapt
and face great pressure on operation.

From day one, Risun has adapted a strategy of zero
inventory for our products. Later, we pioneered the
strategy of pre-paid sales, establishing an industry
norm for the coking industry. Risun continuously
implements the key customers strategy, and puts
sales, transportation, production and supply under a
strictly controlled supply chain management. We also
formalises procedures through informatisation and
digitalisation, and provides high-quality value-added
services while serving our customers with high-quality
products, forming long-term strategic alliances with our
customers, creating a mutually dependent relationship
and achieving a win-win situation.

Risun’s strategies of zero inventory and pre-paid sales
have changed industry rules, setting an example for
our peers, creating value for our customers, increasing
our market share, and gaining the ability of achieving
upstream and downstream premium. The gains from
such premium have not increased the cost of the
customers; rather, they have reduced the cost and
revenue of the customers, who have benefited from the
consistently high product quality, thoughtful service and
timely and reliable supply chain of Risun.
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4.  Benefits brought upon by the operation
management services to Risun

The s

uccessful development of our operation management

services business has brought great changes to Risun,
enriched our industry portfolio, expanded our market
presence, optimised asset allocation, improved the return on
capital, and enabled us to develop the ability to last through
industry cycles.

(1)

2021 ANNUAL REPORT

Expanding the scope of mergers and
acquisitions.

From our founding up to 2005, Risun had made it to
the top of the industry in terms of scale. Yet, it has only
truly become a real industry leader in the past decade.
In order to speed up its development, Risun had to
devote equal efforts into the independent planning and
construction of our own industrial park on the one hand,
and increase mergers and acquisitions on the other
hand. In 2019, Risun acquired 55% equity interest of the
coking company of China Gas Group in Inner Mongolia
shortly after going public, and changed the name of the
company to Hohhot Risun China Gas Energy Limited. In
2021, Risun acquired six companies under the former
Shandong Hongye Group. Risun has developed a
guideline for conducting mergers and acquisitions in
the national market, as well as strategies for mergers
and acquisitions in different provinces.

Conducting mergers and acquisitions as a public
company is different from being a private company.
We have to comply with the relevant the laws and
regulations, and are subject to a series of strict rules
for legal compliance, financial auditing and asset
evaluation. These compliance practices are not only
time consuming, but also requires strict control on risks
management. The major risks in merger and acquisition
transactions include incomplete due diligence, failure to
identify issues, inability to consolidate after the merger
and acaquisition, resulting in the non-compliance of
operation and management requirements of public
companies. On the other hand, preliminary intervention
through provision of operation management services
greatly facilitates the completion of mergers and
acquisitions. Besides eliminating various risks, we can
also resolve in advance issues arising from the merger
and acquisition.

China Risun Group Limited
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Risun takes two steps in this regard: first, Risun
negotiates with the peers regarding the terms of
cooperation through provision of operation management
services; second, Risun further discusses the merger
and acquisition during the service period. For
projects that do not meet the merger and acquisition
requirements, or enterprises which do not wish to be
merged or acquired, Risun would only provide operation
management services. Not all operation management
service projects result in merger and acquisition.

The existence of operation management service
business has also expanded the horizon of our merger
and acquisition opportunities. Generally, conducting
industry consolidation without involving acquisition
of a large percentage of shares and a controlling
interest would mean that there is no guarantee that
the acquisition targets could reach the operation and
management standards of a public company. Without
absolute control over the acquisition target, it will be
impossible to achieve the profitability and return on
assets of the existing businesses of a public company.
However, if the acquirer intends to obtain the absolute
control, it has to significantly increase the proportion
of acquired shares, resulting in an increase in the
acquisition cost and requiring a large amount of capital.
In short, there is a possibility of the acquisition target
weakening the management and control of the parent
company, and such phenomenon does manifest in
many merger and acquisition transactions. However,
preliminary intervention through operation management
services could easily resolve such issues. With early
management and control of operation management
services over the businesses of the merger and
acquisition target, public companies will have greater
flexibility in the acquisition of the merger and acquisition
targets; they may choose to control 100% of the shares,
or control 51% to 100%, or simply purchase 1% to 49%
of the shares. The number of shares acquired would
not affect the management and control of the target
company. Such a model has greatly contributed to the
development of our merger and acquisition operations.
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Optimising asset deployment and improving
return on assets

Risun has established various advantages in the
industry and has become a strong brand for operation
management services and industry mergers and
acquisitions. With the in-depth exploration of the
operation management service business, Risun has,
through systematical summary and optimization,
analysed the successes and failures of various cases,
and has systematically improved and developed a
comprehensive set of operation management operation
system, enabling the companies under entrustment
to fully achieve management and control level and
profitability of Risun’s companies in terms of project
screening, project research, project evaluation, contract
negotiation, entry and takeover, smooth takeover,
smooth transition, precise integration and system
enhancement.

Since Risun strictly implements the strategies
of pre-paid sales and zero inventory, operation
management service projects do not require much
capital, and in turn could achieve higher profits and
higher per capita profit, thereby improves its return on
assets while expanding the business scale, and at the
same time improves Risun’s overall return on assets.
With the expansion of business scale, Risun gains a
stronger premium ability on the market, which in turn
supports the expansion of the operation management
service business, thus developing a virtuous growth
cycle.

By virtue of the successful implementation of the
operation management service business, Risun could
take advantage of a small share ratio entry for industry
consolidations and mergers and acquisitions, yielding
the effect of increased market share and expanded
business scale, while reducing capital consumption.
Risun has discovered an effective way to expand the
industry scale without relying on increasing capital
expenditure. Such practice greatly improves the
Group’s return on assets, return on capital and return
on equity, optimises asset deployment, and reduces the
risks of merger and acquisition of assets.

China Risun Group Limited
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Developing the ability to last through industry
cycles

Every company wants to be great, and long-term,
sustainable growth of a company becomes particularly
crucial to a company after a public listing. Further
growth requires companies to constantly make capital
investments and conduct mergers and acquisitions.
However, simple investments and mergers and
acquisitions would only lead to simple scale expansion,
which will not enhance the return on assets and return
on equity, nor efficiency, profit margin and per capita
labor efficiency. Such blind expansion of scale is thus
devoid of significance.

Fact is, all industries and sectors are cyclical in
nature, although the capital market is more ready to
characterise the raw materials industry, manufacturing
and other heavy chemical industries as cyclical
industries. The implication is a general presumption
that companies in such industries would report volatile
earnings, unsustainable growth on returns, and the
need for capital support corresponding to any business
expansion. As such, the capital market is unwilling to
provide a fair value for stocks of such companies, and
the current Hong Kong capital market is no exception.

It should be noted that the coke and coking chemicals
and refined chemicals industries that Risun engages
in are infrastructural raw material industries; they are
thus infrastructural industries in the national economy.
It is also a fact that the products of the industries
which the Company invests in and operates are
cyclical in nature. Risun, however, has been aware of
this since our first day (one might venture to say that
there is no industry that does not experience cyclical
fluctuations at alll) What we pursue is to develop the
ability for the Company to last through these cycles.
Through consolidation and combination of investments,
industries and products, the Company is determined
to minimise the impact of the cyclical factor caused
by having a single product line, in turn overcoming
the cycles and achieve sustained profit growth for
the whole Company. In this respect, Risun’s goal has
remain unchanged.
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Our development of the operation management
services business has effectively enhanced such
capability. Generally, companies that want to achieve
cross-cycle returns will have to develop investment
portfolios in different industries, but such diversified
investment will also bring operation and management
risks. In practice, investment in and merger and
acquisition of diversified businesses hardly achieves a
satisfying return on assets, simply because replicating
and implementing to another industry, the advantages
and competitiveness developed by each company
within its core business, is more difficult than in theory.
Simple investments with the simple scale expansion in
the same industry and the consumption of the same
assets to achieve the same investment return would
not improve a company'’s return on assets, nor can it
develop the ability to overcome the cycles, thus making
it impossible to achieve the goal of continuous growth,
creating a dilemma from either perspective. With years
of hard work and research, refinement, diligent efforts
to develop the operation management service business
and comprehensive capabilities, Risun is able to, in the
course of professional expansion which bares minimal
risks (or even no risk), gradually increase the return on
assets, constantly expand its market share, continue to
improve returns, develop the ability to override cycles,
and achieve continuous performance growth of the
Company.

China Risun Group Limited
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Vigorously increasing the proportion of light 5 RNIEAREEZEBLLL
asset businesses
In the past 27 years, Risun has only invested in two highly MBS =+ 5k - RIEETHEL
related industries, namely the coke and coking chemicals M TREESE - MIEEZXAE
and refined chemicals industries. Coke and coking chemicals ERE o RELERS L H
falls under the same major category as petroleum refining BB RAEE S R A RREE
under China’s national economic classification, and thus also —1{ERFIE - FroAFIERIE ~ A1k
highly related to chemical refining and petroleum refining. thRBEEENESE - BSEE
Risun characterises our trading business and operation SELEEIRTE T R
management services business as asset-light businesses, BEXTY  mEZBCBEESE
both of which focus on the coke and coking chemicals and bt - L TREEZERE ETHR
refined chemicals industries, as well as their respective FREEASNETS - e R
upstream and downstream industries, to develop domestic BEEBREANES - —=EANE
and overseas businesses; we do not engage in other RyEslEE - — A AEAREZE
businesses unrelated to our core business. The main reasons WS HRE  JBATSEEER
are that it allows effective risks control, and it allows expansion BHRAEENGERESEN -
of market size of our core business, increasing market share
and effectively enhancing the overall competitiveness of our
principal business.
Table 10 Changes in the business volume and share of net K10 BEERKEEXEBER
profit of Risun Group’s asset-light businesses FFER L EER
Unit: "0,000 tonnes, RMB’00 million Bl B ([FETARE
Business Percentage
volume to profit
(trading+ attributable to
operation Segment  the owners of
management) Revenue profit  the Company
KB (BEH+
BEEER) WA AEFH Lt (&)
2019 20194 280 30.65 1.51 11.08%
2020 20204 940 52.24 1.95 11.78%
2021 20214 1,361 99.50 2.78 10.65%

Note.: Business volume represents the sum of trade and operation
management services, and the share of segment profit
represents the percentage of the sum of segment profit of
trade and operation management services to the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of the listed
company.
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We have prepared a statistical summary on the trade and
operation management service businesses for the past few
years, and noted that the share of net profit has fluctuated,
indicating that the Group’s investments in this area were not
continuous. The Group still places high emphasis on the
planning of and investment in the existing park projects, as
well as the investment in external mergers and acquisitions.
Therefore, in the future, the Group will increase its overall
investment in trading and operation management services,
expand its presence in the national and global markets,
increase the share of the trading business and operation
management services business within the Group’s total
revenue and business volume, and thus increase the share
of net profits within the net profit of the listed company
attributable to the parent company. Risun aims to achieve
the goal of continuous growth in overall performance by
improving our business structure and expanding the scale of
our asset-light businesses.

COMPANY PERFORMANCE IN THE THIRD YEAR
OF ITS LISTING

Share price, market capitalisation and
shareholder return

China Risun Group was successfully listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on March 15, 2019, with an issue price of
HK$2.80 and a market value of HK$11.2 billion on the day of
listing. After the first complete financial year upon its listing
in 2020, the Company has further consolidated its position
as leader in the coke and coking chemicals industry, with
clearer competitiveness in the industrial chain, increasingly
strong strategic position in the new energy industry, and
gradual recognition of its investment value by the capital
market. In early 2021, after over a year of decline in the
pandemic, Risun’s market value began to rise significantly
and has maintained at a level of over HK$20 billion for a long
period of time. At the early stage of its listing, the company’s
price-to-earnings ratio (P/E) was only 4.86 times, which
doubled after the market’s continuous recognition of the
company’s fundamentals. Since its listing, the company has
successfully outperformed the Hang Seng Composite Index
and other related indexes and has achieved a growth rate of
68.93% amid the market environment of a decreasing Hang
Seng Composite Index (calculated according to the closing
price of HK$4.73 per share on 31 December 2021 compared
to the issue price of HK$2.80 per share on the day of listing).
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In September 2019, the company’s stock was included in
Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang Seng Hong Kong Stock
Connect Index, Hang Seng SmallCap (Investable) Index
and other related indexes by Hang Seng Indexes Company
Limited, and was included in Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock
Connect. After three years of development upon its listing,
indicators such as the company’s market value, shares
outstanding, business performance and financial status have
received further market recognition. On 18 February this year,
Hang Seng Indexes Company Limited announced that China
Risun Group would be redesignated from a SmallCap to a
MidCap and will be included in the Hang Seng LargeCap and
MidCap (Investable) Index, effective from 7 March. According
to the relevant provisions of the Measures of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange for the Implementation of Shanghai-Hong
Kong Stock Connect, the company has been included in the
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect as well. The number
of holding companies through Hong Kong Stock Connect
has increased more than 41 times year-on-year from 3.965
million shares on 31 December 2019 to the current 165 million
shares, accounting for 12.5% of the shares outstanding. The
market value of Hong Kong Stock Connect has now reached
HK$798 million after a 75-fold increase. After being included
in the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, there will be a
continuous expansion in the company’s scope of investors
and a further growth in its influence on the capital market.

Since its listing, Risun has committed to an annual dividend
level of no less than 30%. The total cash dividends have
been steadily increasing with the company’s performance
every year. In the 2021 interim results, the total cumulative
cash dividends amounted to HK$2.449 billion, with a total
dividend of HK$0.5863 per share. The dividend rate has
been maintained at a desirable level of 4% to 6% as well.
For investors who acquired the company’s shares on the
listing date, 15 March 2019, assuming no change in their
shareholding, the return on investment as at 31 December
2021 is as high as 89.87%, with reference to the increase in
the Company’s share prices and past dividends (calculated
based on the closing price of HK$4.73 per share on 31
December 2021 and cumulative dividends of HK$0.5863,
compared to the issue price of HK$2.80 per share on the
listing date).
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Optimisation of shareholder structure

Since its listing, Risun has ceaselessly fostered the relationship
between shareholders and investors. The company has
organised roadshows for institutions and reverse roadshows
at industrial parks, established a sound communication
mechanism with different parties such as investors, analysts
and the media, maintained long-term communication with
multiple research centres through participating in large-scale
industrial strategic conferences and other means. Over the
past three years, the company has organised roadshows to
more than 800 people of over 580 institutions to exchange
ideas on the macro trends, development of the industry,
corporate strategies, ESG, R&D, human resources, industrial
enhancement, business expansion and planning on hydrogen
energy. Several reports released by analysts from domestic
and foreign securities companies have given China Risun
a “buy” or “overweight” rating, showing confidence and
expectations in the company'’s future performance. Through
effective interaction with the capital market, the company
has gained not only extensive attention and recognition from
the capital market but also contributive insights and ideas
from professional institutions which have brought vitality to
the development and growth of the company. In 2021, the
company successfully raised HK$2.065 million through its first
additional issuance and continued to introduce institutional
investors as strategic investors and financial investors. With
a continuous optimisation of the shareholder structure, the
proportion of shares outstanding increased from 23.8% at
the beginning of listing to 29.8% (calculated according to the
completion of placing new shares on June 3, 2021).
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3.

Increasing shareholding and share buyback

With a firm footing on the present and an eye on the
future, the Company develops and implements five-year
development plans and ten-year development agendas to
determine a clear and right direction of development, in order
to maintain progress towards our goals. Our growth and
development prospects are recognised not just in the capital
market. Our major shareholders, directors and management
have spontaneously acquired shares of the Company,
demonstrating our unshakeable confidence in our prospects
and full recognition of long-term investment value. Subsequent
to our initial allotment, the window for our major shareholders
to increase shareholding and for the Company to conduct
share buyback is open. Since the second half of 2021, our
major shareholders have increased their shareholding by
6,340,000 shares cumulatively, our directors have increased
their shareholding by over 5,500,000 shares cumulatively, fully
demonstrating the confidence of our major shareholders and
directors in the Company’s strategic direction and business
expansion, and we believe they will continue to support the
Company’s development. We strive to raise the value of the
Company and create value for our investors. Where the value
of the Company is not reflected by the market, our major
shareholders, directors and management will continue to
increase their holdings of the shares of the company based
on market changes and company needs, and subject to
compliance requirements, the Company will also conduct
share buybacks and make timely disclosures.
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e attempts at listing
The experience of our three attempts at listing

After two years of preparation, the company applied
for its first IPO on the Singapore Exchange in October
2004. In May 2005, the company was approved for
listing by the Singapore Exchange and the Singapore
Exchange Regulation. During the offering roadshow, we
found that the capital market in Singapore was small in
scale and poor in liquidity, not to mention the low market
valuation of investors. The group therefore decided not
to proceed with the offering.

In 2008, the company brought in Goldman Sachs
Asia and DeTong Capital as strategic investors and
relaunched our IPO. This time, the Group chose to list
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. After about three
years of hard work, the company satisfied the strict
compliance criteria of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the corporate governance requirements of a listed
company. In November 2011, Risun successfully
passed the hearing of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and received the approval of the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong. At the time, the subprime
mortgage crisis in the United States had not been
fully resolved and the European debt crisis was in
full swing. Although the Company’s coke and coking
chemicals and refined chemicals businesses enjoyed
robust growth and was already an industry leader, the
general macro environment had not demonstrated
significant improvement. Given the market uncertainties,
foreign capital was not enthusiastic about China’s
manufacturing industry. Neither subscription interest
nor valuation was very high. Although it was likely
that our listing would have been successful, after
comprehensive comparisons and systematic evaluation,
once again we decided not to proceed with the offering.

China Risun Group Limited

(1) SREHEE

LB F R EE - 2004561048
DA NER BTN EE
IPO » W A20054F5 B HEH AT
MFT I B EE S LM ETH o 3897
BEEBRBRRMER  HINEE
AiEHEEN  REEE - RE
EMSEER  SEEEMET
AT o

20084 + AR5 S B IR MNA{E
EEREREBIRESE  WERK
IPO ° B REEEEL BB
L™ EBH=ZFNEH A
RIESRMEFEEmERB AT
BEARIZ®E  RRAERETA
EWRARIER  WHK2011F 11
RN 888 2 B s A & B &
EgdE - B - ZEXEGK
mATR(EE - BUNEBERE
DTSR - BEAREAMLET
¥ERIERERADEITEES
EEEBREBRE W APENR
E MEFEZBEAREN - BEE
REBREEEFTRD - 7E
ERBEIBR TETS ®HE
ARINEATRIM S MATRE - (BEER
AR - R MEX —kE
EIRE o



In 2012, the Group compiled a profound summary of
the experience and lessons of the two unsuccessful
listing attempts. We carefully analysed the wide range
of questions raised by investors about the company.
Subsequently, we put forward a general strategy of
“adjusting, developing, transforming and upgrading”.
This series of reforms focused on achieving sustained
performance growth and breaking the vicious circle of
market volatility, industry life cycle and other factors
that were affecting the company. Through continuous
fundamental reforms on project selection, investment
management, operation management, cost control and
the distribution system, as well as the development
of automation, informatisation construction and
establishment of targets in safety, environmental
friendliness and quality, etc., the Group has completely
transformed its business model, operation model and
management model. We have achieved complete
pre-paid sales and zero product inventory, established
a digital supply chain system for sales, transportation,
production and supply, and reached the highest
international and domestic standards in safety and
environmental friendliness as well as a substantial
increase and an expected growth in profitability. In
2017, the Group relaunched our listing application on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and was successfully
listed on 15 March 2019. Regarding the issue price,
we contemplated several proposals and eventually
set at a lower offer price of HK$2.80 per share, fully
demonstrating our willingness to share with investors
our achievements and allow them share in our profits.
It also expressed our hopes of forming a long-term
strategic alliance with our investors for mutual growth.
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The value experience of the three listing attempts

Companies planning to list can do so after meeting
the listing conditions, including the compliance
requirements, financial normative requirements, as
well as the series of requirements of the Hong Kong
Securities Regulatory Commission and Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. However, a public company’s most
fundamental issue is to achieve continuous and
sustainable growth in performance and profitability.
That is not to say that this is not an issue for private
companies as well, but private companies are less
exposed to the tremendous external pressure and are
free to compromise. Private or public, to be able to last
through various types of cycles to achieve continuous
growth in performance and profitability is a great and
difficult challenge. The company must always identify
the best strategic direction and constantly adjust
its business strategies to cope with unpredictable
changes. Out of the multitudes of companies, only a
handful could accomplish this. Since the founding of
Risun, we have always been determined to become one
of such elite companies. Gradually, we are making this
a reality.
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Having gained a more comprehensive understanding of
the capital market, the improvement of comprehensive
professional services offered by various intermediaries
and the experiences of our three listing attempts
where we faced thousands of profound, systematic
and concrete problems from just as many investors,
Risun has carried out continuous, thorough, systematic,
comprehensive and profound reforms at internal,
external, high and low levels. Fielding such extensive,
deep and professional questions from investors is itself
a joy comparable to being showered with gifts, which
Risun humbly accepts and address them one by one.
These questions from investors are the drivers behind
Risun’s comprehensive enhancement of our systematic
competitiveness. In gratitude, we have been repaying
the sincerity of our investors with good performance
over the past three years of listing and a high return on

equity.
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MOTIVATION BEHIND THE CREATION OF RISUN

There are billions of companies in China and the world, including
millions of public companies. What | mean is, public companies
are the cream of the crop in their respective countries and
markets; most of them are industry leaders. A founder’s unique
ideas, vision and purpose often determines where the start-up
company will be headed, whether it will survive, and how far it
can go. Obviously every start-up aims to be the next big name in
the industry and achieve lasting success, but a lot rides on the
founder’s experiences, motivation and vision, whether the founder
can continue to learn, breakthrough and manage the growth of the
company, as well as changes in the landscape and different levels
of market competition.

1. My life before Risun

| graduated at the age of 20 from the Hebei University
of Water Resources and Electric Engineering of China in
1985, majoring in Water Conservancy and Hydropower
Engineering Construction. Subsequently | was assigned to
the administration of Dongwushi Reservoir in Handan, Hebei
Province, where | started as a technician and worked my
way up to deputy director in a 10-year span, and continued
to serve for another 8 years. Reservoir administration is a
large organisation involved in administrative work, specialist
operations, and even investment in various businesses.
We were responsible for a drainage basin of 340 square
kilometres, and the reservoir administration directly managed
an area of 17.5 square kilometres, supplying water and
generating hydropower for cities and farms, and at the same
time was charged with flood control and drought relief.
The reservoir’s total volume is 160 million cubic metres,
supplying 200 million cubic metres of water annually. Our
fundamental mission was, one, to strictly manage the reservoir
infrastructure with flood control and drought relief our top
priority; two, to manage water catchment, water supply,
and hydropower generation. We benefitted from China’s
reform and opening-up policies and utilised available profits
to develop various businesses. In the span of a decade,
we invested tens of millions RMB in staff accommodation,
offices, various engineering facilities, chemical refineries,
textile plants, aquaculture farms, feedstock businesses, steel
refining and processing plants.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

g,

RITRERIR

hE - R ERRRIBUABER - 8
EARAREERES - BRHR £
MARBMEIRBEE - AR ESTH
RRE  REBEMRARBERATIT
KHBETE - AlIA ABIRRVIMEET
[l - e RBTR - BEHARE R
ETRBEINERTR RETEER
BIREBETE  RETEIEARR
ZiR - BEMEM—KAIEX QR HMAM
SBRIMAK - HERABRT X BRE
BIIA AR - Bt - BBTR - BE
BlIa ANBBRE ] - RIKBES - BANEE
AHRRE - KEIRBEC - MIGHF
RETRMAERTE o

1. BIERATEVERE

HA1985%F » 20 BENTH
B9 b 7K FIE 1 R KK E T
EEESE - D)L E HBED
MERAAKESTEEIE  #5
WE - PAEEE  BEEE -
T+ @ FRIERN\F o KE
ERESERBAITRER  MmB
Bgew, VA URESRELEY
B RIS - BRI E &340
FHRE KEEEBEEEETE
RIEHImE175F AR - AR
TMRBEMKHEE - FEE
W R EN BB EER K
BERIE1. 6B X - FHK
QBN FK o EAREK : —RE
RIS E IR AT K EE AR R - &
BEBEHAREIE: =2

BTk ok - BEIE -5
HRBIRNEFBBR - KEE
BEAINARBRESCERLEL
o TR RERETHRIMGE
E WA - SEIERME -
IEI%¥ - it %¥ - KEE
VA - fIREE  SMEVABREINT
LEX BREELTET-



Reservoir administration offered diverse, complex and
challenging work that resembles a miniature society. Such a
valuable experience greatly expanded my general knowledge
of society, economics, policies and enterprises, and helped
me improve my life plans. During the decades spent in
university and the workplace, | was in constant reflection
over what direction my life should take: to be a passionate
executive, or an insightful academic? As a student, | spent
long hours with books, studying politics, philosophy, history,
military, economics, biographies, macro history and micro
changes from east to west; as an executive, | became an
active part of society, applying what | had learnt to myself as
an individual and to society as a whole, from the micro aspects
to the macro, and dedicated my entire self to hard work.
Through both periods of training, | became knowledgeable
in history, society and our era, and | also learned much
more about myself. But after long and deep reflection, |
first decided not to further pursue the academic track.
Subsequently, | also realized that a career as an executive
is akin to climbing a pyramid-shaped challenge and would
be full of uncertainties for the coming decades. On the other
hand, to establish a new organisation and toil together with
employees presents a V-shaped path; sure, | would have
to start from scratch; but given the very clear development
trend and policy direction, | was confident that, armed with
the knowledge | gained from years of study, and strong skills
acquired over decades of work in society, | have the capacity
to create something great for society, and eventually, |, too,
can attain my own goals as a top executive.
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In reality, neither giving up a chance to pursue deeper
knowledge at university, nor abandoning the prospects
of titles, status, interest and fame from years of hard work
was easy. Deeply entrenched in our belief is the ideal that
academic excellence will lead to a respectable position in
government. For four or five years | wrestled over and over,
spent many sleepless nights, and looked for inspiration from
the great peoples of history. Eventually, | concluded that
where career advancement is difficult, | could take a step
back and become an entrepreneur. So, with a dream to do
something great, and confident after years of soul-searching
that this was the right path to take, | decided, at the prime
age of 30 and no longer enjoying the luxury of time, to take
advantage of a historic time of opportunity that might not
come again, and handed in my resignation in late 1994 to
establish Risun in early 1995, taking my first steps on my
journey as an entrepreneur.

The goal of entrepreneurship

There are around 6,000 public companies in the capital
markets of Hong Kong, Shanghai and Shenzhen. Start-up
companies take many different forms, and the goals,
targets, and reasons behind each start-up is different. Prior
to its founding, Risun already had a preliminary overview
of society and history of China and the world (particularly
advanced countries such as the U.S., Japan and Germany)
and developed an approach based on discourse, history, its
insights into social complexity and human nature. As such,
it was well-equipped to seize opportunities to create new
business within the macro social progress.
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From the beginning, Risun was very clear with the path it
would take. To establish an organisation and strive together;
to advance with the times; to be market-oriented; to satisfy
demand as its goal; to focus on serving customers; to
continue to grow through creation of value; to remain driven
by the spirit of entrepreneurship, creation and innovation; to
make continuous breakthrough, progress, and never rest.
Even if our lives are finite, by gathering together in numbers
to form a group guided by shared values, we can create a
stronger and more creative force to achieve far greater things
and contribute to the progress of society. That is the vision of
Risun. In pursuit of our dreams, we can also satisfy the desire
for our own gains.

Our motivation to create greatness in a monumental era and
realise our own ideals has given Risun a clear direction of
development, an unshakeable belief, an indefatigable spirit
and strength to endure through the cycles, and helped to
inculcate an ability to assess risks and identify potential
crises, allowing Risun to resist the numerous temptations
encountered in our pursuit of grand vision, avoiding traps and
overcoming challenges along the way.

From the beginning, Risun had established three criteria to
measure our success. One, that we could create everything
from scratch, to be able to build from zero and survive the
harsh business environment; two, that we could grow from
a small business to a large enterprise, going from strength
to strength and endure through different cycles; three, to
build an enduring enterprise, which will continue to evolve,
breakthrough, and nurture a group of industrialists, so that
Risun will be passed down future generations. We have
stayed true to our founding spirit, remaining careful, honest,
and self-disciplined, uncorrupted by passing riches, unmoved
by disorder and undaunted by challenges.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

V. SUSTAINABLE GROWTH IN FUTURE

Increasing production

Our main projects include: Huhhot Risun China Gas’s coke
and coking chemicals plant with designed annual production
volume of 3 million tonnes, to commence in July 2022 and
raise production by 1 million tonnes for the year; Cangzhou
Risun Chemicals’'s phase two caprolactam expansion with
designed annual production volume of 300,000 tonnes, to
commence in August 2022 and raise production by 140,000
tonnes for the year; Dongming Risun’s caprolactam expansion
commenced in 2021 and ancillary expansions will commence
in July 2022 and raise production by 120,000 tonnes for the
year.

Increasing operation management service
volume and trading volume

These include: expecting to increase operation management
service volume in the Shanxi region by 1.5 million tonnes,
increasing operation management service volume in other
areas by 900,000 tonnes, increasing trading volume by 2.6
million tonnes, in total increasing operation management
service volume and trading volume by not less than 5 million
tonnes.

Table 11: Projected increase in production volume of the
Risun Group in 2022 and contribution to the Group’s results

Unit: "0,000 tonnes

H. RRESEER
1. BMEE

FER  WAER G HIA300
B FREAEE - 82022F
TRABEERE FRUENES
1008 W : AMBFZ30E M, F
CABRE ZBITEE - 20224
SABEERE FRIENES
14818 ; REASERS o Btz e
BERB2021FDIRE - S
EIHB2022F7 AIEERE - F
WAL INES128EM o

2. ENMHESEERGERS
EMEZERE

FERFHE p0IL PR = 15 E & B RS
515080 - EMEMEEE
R EIEENE - IZMNE 5
%2608 ME - BETIEINEL B
RIS %15 R E 5 E K TER500
BB -

F11: 2022F JBIGEE BT
EINEEREEENEETE

& - B

Project A Commencement Business growth
BRERH ES3 s
Cangzhou Risun phase two caprolactam 8N JEFZ & MBkkz — 218 B August 2022
expansion 202248 A 14
Dongming Risun caprolactam REANERS 2 NBE IR ERERLEIE B Progressively from
expansion and ancillary facilities August 2022
202248 AR ER E 12
Risun China Gas coke and coking MBISHR AR LB B Progressively from
chemicals plant July 2022
202247 AREiERE 100

Operation management service
business and trading business

BRI RBESNE 5 XD

500

Total A&t

626
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Hydrogen products business

To accelerate the development of our hydrogen products
business, develop a comprehensive strategy for
manufacturing hydrogen products, establishing hydrogen
refueling stations and exploring external partnerships, in order
to achieve rapid expansion. It is expected that in 2022, the
hydrogen products business will increase by 1.7 million cubic
metres.

Table 12: Projected increase in hydrogen products business
of the Risun Group in 2022 and contribution to the Group’s

results

Unit: "0,000 cubic metres

Chairman’s Statement
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Project A Commencement Business growth
RERE )30

Hydrogen products T hE June 2022 1,700
20224F6 A

Increasing our revenue, lowering expenditure,
cutting costs and raising efficiency

To ensure a balanced cash flow and stable business growth,
we will fully implement a policy of “controlling investment,
reducing costs, raising efficiency”. In particular:

(1) On production and manufacturing costs

To achieve stable and high production volume through
a systematic maintenance scheme; integrate the use
of waste energy recovery to increase self-generated
power and reduce costs of electricity consumption;
increase application of technological improvement and
innovation to reduce energy consumption; accelerate
deployment of the MES system and optimise combined
generation facilities for the general economic efficiency
simulation system, to ensure maximization of production
efficiency and micro management of costs.
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4)
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On cost of sales

To reduce transportation costs through further increasing
railroad transportation to over 80%; to raise turnover
efficiency in our plants through information and
automation systems, smart testing and measurement,
automatic and precise loading; to achieve full control
over logistics information and save transportation costs
through systematic control with a logistics information
system.

On optimisation of internal management and
reduction of costs

To focus on completing the targets set out in Group’s
sixth five-year development plan, fully tidying the
functions and management systems of the Group and
its subsidiaries, optimise the deployment of various
functions, introduce new management mechanisms,
and upgrade management to be standardised,
systematic, procedural, and informatised, creating
synergies through the system, strengthening functions
through the structure, and strictly implement the above
upgrades, in order to raise overall efficiency and
effectiveness throughout the Group while lowering
management costs.

On control of financial costs

To strictly implement micro management of the
Group'’s five dedicated funds; strengthen mid to long
term investment and financing balance and rolling
operations forecast management system; accelerate
the conversion of banking loans on project financing;
strictly manage factoring to minimise discounts; control
general financing costs and fees.

China Risun Group Limited
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(5) On innovation to raise efficiency

To systematically implement management reforms
throughout the Group, centralising management of
sales and purchases through marketing reforms and
innovation, adjusting product structure and customer
structure for efficient settlement, centralising risk
management, in order to increase overall revenue
of the Group; actively securing various government
preferential policies and incentive support funding;
actively satisfying the conditions for preferential tax
rates to save tax expenses; optimise and adjust talent
structure to raise efficiency per capita and income per
capita.

With the implementation of various control measures, it is
expected that a total of 5% to 10% savings year-on-year
could be achieve across the Group.

Striving for sustained growth

In 2022, our existing businesses will continue to contribute
positively. Expansion of production capacity is on schedule
to meet targets, while our trading volume continues to
increase. The Group will continue to expand our operations
management services business, and through R&D and
innovation, improvements in technology, enhancement of
digital and smart technologies, systematically lower costs and
raise efficiencies, in order to improve revenue and decrease
expenditure. Based on our performance in 2019, 2020 and
2021, we are confident of achieving sustained growth in 2022.

15 March 2022 marked the third anniversary of Risun’s listing.
Net profit attributable to our parent has continued to achieve
successive growth: in 2020 (RMB1,653 million), 21.28%
over 2019 (RMB1,363 million); in 2021 (RMB2,613 million),
58.08% over 2020. As of 31 December 2021, the company
had a capitalisation of HK$21.0 billion, representing an
increase of 87.51% over our listing capitalization of HK$11.2
billion on 15 March 2019. Including accumulated dividends,
shareholder returns amount to 89.87%, which is quite a
positive performance. Given the significant changes in both
the international and domestic environment, 2022 will be a
challenging year for economic development. Still, Risun has
formulated detailed goals and specific measures, in order to
strive for sustainable growth.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

After 27 years of operations, Risun has become an enterprise
with comprehensive capabilities and been able to achieve
sustained growth, something desired by both shareholders
and ourselves. Over the years, we continue to acquire more
abilities to see us through the challenges of social cycles,
policy cycles, economic cycles, market cycles, industry
cycles and company cycles.

True to our character, we remain deferential to policy,
mindful of the market, respectful to our customers and our
workers; faithful to our practices, we remain vigilant against
risks, careful with our work, alert in tackling challenges, and
cautiously optimistic with our outlook.

| end with an invitation to everyone to provide your views and
suggestions, which will be invaluable to Risun as we seek
new ways and strategies for improvement. We also seek your
kind understanding and support to motivate our continued
progress. We welcome all to visit Risun at our Beijing
headquarters, as well as our locations in industrial parks
across the various provinces, not only to discover our work,
but also the wonderful landscape of beautiful China.
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| extend my gratitude to all. HHAK |

SEA ALy

Yang Xuegang FEEREEEERAR
Chairman of the Board EFeTE

China Risun Group Limited BEM

March 25, 2022 20223 A25H
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Net profit hits historical high

Business Highlights
EEBE

Overseas Expansion

Production/processing volume BIMRR
continuous increases Expansion of the first coke production base

EE MIBFEEmM in Indonesia
ERENEE—I

The production/processing volume of coke,

g*u ;Fiﬁ %JEEE%?.% refined chemicals and trading reached 11.05

million tons, 3.86 million tons and 11.22

The net profit for 2021 was RMB2.6 billion. million tons respectively

Fx - RHALCLIRRESES )
1.05E8ME - 3.86 8 &MIK&11.228

20212 FE A AR 2618

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

Net profit NS
F R 2 RMB 100 million

. 7

21.3

13.7

16.5 (Restated) (&E&E751])

26.0

Gross profit ARME(ET
%ﬂ RMB 100 million

20.1

34.1

25.8

3242
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Business Highlights (Continued)
EBmE(E)

China’s sales coverage
PEHEEZEE

« Heilongjiang

BEET
Jilin
2
Chaoyang—Liaoning
w5 me
Beijing| Tangshan
dbm | | Al
Xinfang e engola T
wim Gansu = o v KiE
. HiE ko, Hebei . canzhou
PRI Dingzhou iA3E BM
ZEM o Dongming
T Shanxi | ¢ i‘:f * Shandong
Ingxia ® Yunchen
?ég IJJEE Xingtai BB ? Wi
i biig=)
O';%gal = Jiangsu
B N
Shaanxi Henan LR
i AR . . Shar]éhai
Anhui R
. i ZH
Tibet Hﬁﬁ?' -
it - ’/ Zhejiang
Sichuan piiipan
Pyl )
e Jiangxi ®
i B Fjjian
Guizhou B/E
BM
o Guangdong
Yunnan Guangxi . ER Taiwan
=5 B . &
Hong Kang
&g

Hainan
Provinces in which we had sales of our products during the Reporting Period
@ BMRBERRNETEREENEH

® Locations of production base
FEERO B
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Business Highlights (Continued)
EBHE(E)

7 e i A
Tangshan, Hebei Cangzhou, Hebei
A 46 B 1L A AL A M

Xingtai, Hebei Dingzhou, Hebei
EBIsii= S E TE

Huhhot, Inner Mongolia Yuncen,handong |
RESEIS RS LI 5B 3,

A

bongming, Shandong Sulawesi, Indonesia (Under development)
LI 5R 7R BA HEEmEmuEm(EET )
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Business Highlights (Continued)
FBEE(E)

Joint venture company CNC Risun Energy

BE DR TR ER

Xingtai production base:
MELtERRE :

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

EREE(CEREER

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line

ERECLIEREER

Joint venture company Risun China Gas
AE AT AT RER

Huhhot production base:
WA EERRE ¢

Coke and coking chemicals
production line

EREE(CEREER

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line

ERELIEREESR

Associated company Jinniu Risun Chemicals

BEATEFRELT

Xingtai production base:
MetERRE :

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production line

ERELIEREESR

Associated company Cabot Risun Chemicals

BE QR FESEEBLT

Xingtai production base:

Foa A EEE

Carbon material chemical
production line

BARBLIEREER .

-
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Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERRELCEREER

Carbon material chemicals
production lines

BAMREBLEIEREER

Alcohol-ether chemicals
production lines

EMELITEREER

Aromatics chemicals
production lines

FRECIEREER

Operating Management Services
EEEERK

Coke and coking chemicals
production lines

ERRELCEREESR

Carbon material chemicals
production lines

BmAMRELTIEREER



Business Highlights (Continued)
EBERE(E)

Production volume / processing volume of major

products of the Group in 2021 (thousand tons)

2021EAEEFEERNEE/NIE (vw)

Coke*
-

Production volume

EE

Coking crude benzene

FlEEE

11,048.7

Processing volume
MmIE

Hm 578.8

Industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride
TS BRE

Production volume

EE

11441

Coke oven gas methanol

Production volume

RERERGRE Ef
EEE 6655

Coal\tar Processing volume
R nIE
. 968.8

Caprolactam

Production volume

CEtR ER
m 336.8
* Calculated on a dry basis
© BREEHE
Note: The production volume of each major products includes

both self-owned production and operation management’s production.
Bt TEERNESEERAREMNRELEEERNES -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGH_TS —

715’5‘

The following table sets out our key financial data for the periods or as TRESIA A AR S EE PR B R AMEY
of the dates indicated extracted from the audited consolidated financial FENBERE - IREEERER  BEF
statements disclosed in the Prospectus, previous annual reports and this R M AN F R PTI BR M IS B ARAR A B ISR -
annual report.

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

MEBREREE
For the year ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 20215
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
(Restated)
(FRE51))
Revenue W 18,658,278 20,583,079 18,842,038 19,784,866 38,430,411
Gross profit EH 2,005,239 3,409,920 2,582,908 3,223,443 5,530,243
Profit before taxation BRAt AT & A 845,943 2,660,371 1,679,379 1,950,664 3,197,879
Income tax expense FTS TR (80,370) (533,358) (305,711) (296,812) (601,840)
Profit for the year attributable to:  FE{EFERF
Owners of the Company ERAEBA 754,674 2,088,668 1,363,165 1,652,990 2,613,314
Non-controlling interests FEE R 10,899 38,345 10,503 862 (17,275)
Basic earnings per share BRREAREF
(RMB yuan) (AR¥T) 0.24 0.63 0.34 0.40 0.61

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRAREE

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 2018%F 20194 20204 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFTT  ARETFT ARETFTT  ARETFT AREF
(Restated)
(=7
Non-current assets FEREEE 12,393,896 12,473,286 14,597,914 17,258,345 24,650,794
Current assets TBERE 9,445,155 10,128,823 5,603,482 7,202,710 12,147,384
Total assets BEE 21,839,051 22,602,109 20,201,396 24,461,055 36,798,178
Current liabilities mEAE 15,951,278 16,414,072 11,889,771 13,189,632 16,840,541
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE 2,778,064 1,475,014 1,511,523 2,888,635 8,846,362
Total liabilities BEE 18,729,342 17,889,086 13,401,294 16,078,267 25,686,903
Net current liabilities BB EFE (6,506,123)  (6,285,249)  (6,286,289)  (5,986,922)  (4,693,157)
Net assets BEFE 3,109,709 4,713,023 6,800,102 8,382,788 11,111,275
2021 3R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

The Group is an integrated coke, coking chemical and refined chemical
producer and supplier together with relevant operation management
services provider in China. The Group maintains as the world’s largest
independent producer and supplier of coke by production/processing
volume in 2021, according to Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai
Branch Co., (“Frost & Sullivan”) an independent global consulting
firm. Other than being the largest independent coke producer and
supplier of coke in the world, the Group held leading positions in
a number of refined chemical sectors in China or globally in 2021.
According to Frost & Sullivan, the Group was the largest producer
of industrial-naphthalene-based phthalic anhydride and coke-
oven-gas-based methanol by volume in China in 2021. The Group was
also the largest coking crude benzene processor and the third largest
coal tar processor by volume globally in 2021.

In 2021, the Group kept its track in growth and expansion from last year
in order to cope with different challenges ahead and to create more value
to the shareholders of the Company. The expansion was made by two
different ways — both operation management services and acquisition of
entities. The growth was also made at two different latitudes — not only
focusing on opportunities in China but also establishing new production
bases overseas. In the past, all production bases of the Group were
located in different provinces in China, while starting from 2021, the
Group actively explored opportunities in different places of Asia, for
example Sulawesi Province, Indonesia.

In 2021, the Group had eight production bases, where there were
seven bases in China located in Hebei Xingtai, Hebei Dingzhou, Hebei
Tangshan, Hebei Cangzhou, Inner Mongolia Huhehaote, Shandong
Dongming and Shandong Yuncheng, and one new base in Sulawesi
Province, Indonesia. The main philosophy of our expansion is to increase
our annual production/processing volume in coke and refined chemicals
industry and also widen the refining and production of high-end refined
chemicals from the by-product of coke production. By doing so, the
Group can develop a longer and wider production chain of approximately
55 types of refined chemicals currently. In the long run, we will maintain
our leading position of coke industry and capture more leading positions
of other refined chemicals, such as Caprolactam (CPL) and other new
materials within refined chemicals industry.

B E & m S o T

e

AEEATRNER - SlELERMBEMLET
EmfFAEER IR REBELEER
TEALIER o BIEB T 2 IRE AN R BB
PR R)ERBR AR LEH AR (3
EHEDRIX]) - 2021 FEEE /NI 25t
E AEBEPRREEREANBYLEREE
PR AL RER - 20214 - RIEAZHEAN
B EREER REREERIN - RNEET
MBI 23R S AR TEREZLER
SESCHAL o ARIRIBE TR RS - 220214
HETE  AEERETPERANITESREX
Bf MR R RR R A ER © IR20216HE
FTE AEBAREREANEMCERNT
BRE =R B E RN TR -

Ro0214F - AEERRIFEAFHE R RIER
WK NEE AR RN R APk E R AR A R
HAEF ZEE - ZHPUMETES - &
EEETERE RREERETER - AT
LMETEEZEEETEREER - NMERARPEE
EREE  MMOGINELTNEEEN - B
= AEENAEEEEMINAPETE
B MALBE 2021 EFIATEBRE MR
B 5 R RS - 540 BN S e v g Ay B K
iR

R2021%  AEEAN\BLEEM - EF
FEREACEEN - ZOTIEE ~ TdEE
Mo OmAEE WL SAHER N AR E A
B IIRRBRIIRESE - ARENEER
SEHAUMEE A —EFE - HABEERNE
RESRREAERIBEACTERITENF
HE/IMTE - BBBEAKEREENRE
mBEREERASRBALCTER  AKHE
BRIATRAEERAZTER  EROEE
B OREXNSSBEAETIER - REMS
BB EERRERITENRRLL - RE
A TITRZER B TERMNC N
g A ED B E BRI

2021 F3R
FEEREEERAD G

49



50

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BHEE MM ()

In view of the operating results in 2021, the recent development of
economy and future development needs, as well as sharing the results of
the Group with Shareholders, the Board recommended a final dividend
of RMB6.3 cents per share, equivalent to HK7.7 cents per share, with a
total amount of RMB279,720,000 or HK$341,880,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

INDUSTRY RANKING

The Group’s annual coke production/processing capacity maintained
approximately 11 million tons in both 2021 and 2020, while the annual
refined chemicals production/processing capacity increased from
approximately 3.68 million tons in 2020 to approximately 3.86 million
tons in 2021. The major coking and refined chemicals included coking
crude benzene, industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride, coke oven gas
methanol, coal-tar pitch, caprolactam (CPL) and hydrogen products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s vertically integrated business model and its experience of
more than 26 years in the coke industry production chain enables the
Group to widen the downstream refined chemicals industry. Currently,
the Group has four business segments ranging from coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing, refined chemicals manufacturing, operation
management services and trading. During the Reporting Period and up
to the date of this report, the Group entered into three new operation
management agreements and three joint venture agreements to further
expand our business presence in Shanxi Province and Jilin Province,
China, as well as Sulawesi Province, Indonesia.

The Group completed the acquisition of Wuhu Shunri Xinze Equity
Investment Partnership (LP) (“Shunri Xinze”) in January 2021, whose
geographical layout covered Shandong Province. This was one of the
important steps to develop the coking business in another province out of
Hebei Province. The acquisition has been the first major acquisition since
the listing in March 2019.

Apart from the existing four business segments, the Group actively
participated in the hydrogen industrialization plan in Hebei Dingzhou,
Inner Mongolia Hohhot and Hebei Xingtai, China. The Group aimed to
become a clean and low-carbon hydrogen energy supplier. Focusing
on the rapid development of hydrogen energy industry in Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei area, the Group is committed to develop from production, storage,
transportation, hydrogenation to usage together with radiation of intelligent
supply of hydrogen to the whole country with advanced technology and
more customer-oriented services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Other than Japan, the Group is also exploring other trading opportunities
around the world and especially within the Asia Pacific region. The Group
is considering setting up subsidiaries for trading of raw materials of the
coke and refined chemicals industry in Singapore and Indonesia.

Below is the table summarizing the key business activities of the Group
for 2021 and up to the date of this report:

BEEwm MO ()

BB REBETEERRERESH @ 5
PRDAMERNEMESZHE - AEBEILE
B ENEEAD RN EERRLIE
MEBTERMEESNMBAR -

TRBAMAEFER2021F REZARE HE
MEBEBERD -

Time Business Activities

R EBEE

March 2021 — Expansion of Coke Operation Entered into a 5-year integrated sales and marketing agreement with an
Management Services into Shanxi independent third party engaging in the production of coke and chemical
Province, China products in Shanxi Province, China with a sales service fees of RMB40 per ton

for sourcing and selling the coke products from the independent third party to

our customers.

2021F3A —EREL EEMBEREFT BRBEILAE - 2RFEREECEREENELE =T LA FNEEH
BLPEE EREH R CBYF=TRBERERLHE TRANTSE - st RSN

ARBEAOTHHERBE -

May 2021 — New Operation Management  Entered into a new operation management services agreement with respect to

Services Agreement in Jilin Province, a plan in construction with production capacity of 1,200,000 tons per annum of
China coke and coking chemicals in Jiangxi Province.

2021F5 8 — AP BEEMEEEE SRR BT FE1,200,000M8 ik K E(CEMAERFTEIFFIELE TRRBEHE -
1%

June 2021 - Joint Investment in and Entered into a joint venture agreement with Tianjin Xintiangang Project
Establishment of a Joint Venture* Management Co., Ltd. and Stephanie Development Pte. Ltd., pursuant to

which the three parties agreed to jointly establish, by way of capital injection,
PT. De Tian Coking Co., Ltd., for the investment in the construction of a coking
project (with a capacity of 4.7 million tons/year) in Morowali Industrial Park in

Sulawesi, Indonesia.

20216 A —HAZRE RN —HEa &R M EmHANIEE EE AR AT KStephanie Development Pte. Ltd. 5] & &
ERZE - B - ZHFRBEES RRRAKERECER)RO AR - A
BEZNNEERARHNEAEMNSILIXRRANEIER (FEELALTE

Eu)
July 2021 — Joint Investment in and Entered into a joint venture agreement with Zoomwe Hong Kong Energy
Establishment of a Joint Venture* Trading Co., Limited and Dawn International Capital Pte. Ltd., pursuant to

which the parties agreed to jointly establish, by way of capital injection, Risun
Wei Shan New Energy for the investment in the construction of a coking project
(with a production capacity of 4.8 million tons/year) in Morowali Industrial Park

in Sulawesi, Indonesia.

20217 A —£EIRE RN —HaErE BHEERELRE S HR AT RDawn International Capital Pte. Ltd. 5] & &1
g Bt sTOAFRELEE A RNERKIEBBEILFEEIR - LIREERAMA
RENERARHNEAENE L TXERANE(IER (FEEA48EH BN °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EIRE AT (8)
Time Business Activities
R RS

July 2021 — Joint Investment in and
Establishment of a Joint Venture*

20217 B — HEIGE M —HE E b E

August 2021 — Acquisition of Tangshan
Risun Petroleum

20218 A — Wi E L Ek5 A0/

March 2022 — Establishment of Wuhu
Changyu Limited Partnership

2022% 38 — K ERRHBBEREZ

*

Entered into a joint venture agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed
to jointly establish, by way of capital injection, PT. KinXiang New Energy
Technologies Indonesia, for the investment in the construction of a coking
project (with a production volume of 3.9 million tons/year) in Morowali Industrial
Park in Central Sulawesi, Indonesia.

I A ERERE - B FTARREBELVEE AR LR EE @ REHR
BREFEAR  MREEZRMURNERATHHNHEAENS LT EEERNE
LB (FESR3IBEN -

Entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Xuyang Holding
has agreed to transfer 100% equity interest in Tangshan Risun Petroleum &
Chemicals Co., Ltd. to the Group.

IR RS - Bt BEERFAZESE LIRS AR THER AR 100%
s E T AKHE -

Entered into the partnership agreement with Great Wall (Tianjin) Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd., pursuant to which the parties agreed
to jointly establish Wuhu Changyu Investment Centre (Limited Partnership) in
sourcing potential investment in the coal industry.
HEHNRRERELSERERETARGI LR HE - Bt - FTNERR
BHRAKZERRMIRET OBERER)  SRBERITENEERE -

The Company obtained written shareholder’s approval for these
transactions pursuant to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, no
Shareholders’ meeting was held.

DEVELOPMENTAL STRATEGY

The Group was founded in 1995 and up to 2021, the Group has more than
26 years of development history, where we take advantage of our leading
position, experience, technology and digitalization in coke industry
to drastically expand our four business segments together with the
hydrogen products business through different development strategies.
The Group aims to strengthen the global leading position as an integrated
producer and supplier of coke and coking chemicals, refined chemicals
and hydrogen products and relevant operation management services
provider.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

ARRERE ETRAE1444GHZER
SEUSIRER BB A - Bt - BEETR
RARE -

EEE

REEMR1995F AL © BIE20216F - A&EH
BBEBCFNBRESL - BPIMAEEKT
EWELMAL - K8 - BT RESEEE -
ERSEERHBEABERRMOEEES
DEARBREMER - XEBEEEEEE
BRERELHNEREELCER BHELELIE
mMERERGSEER MMEEEMIA &
FEREE A B IR RIS e -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Apart from the above development strategies, there are nine competitive
advantageous abilities that the Group believed and enabled to deploy
and execute the development strategies effectively in order to enhance
the leadership in coke and coking chemicals, refined chemical industry
and hydrogen products business:

1.

Scale advantageous ability

The Group is the world’s largest independent coke producer and
supplier of coke by production/processing volume and enjoy
economies of scale which enabled us to become more competitive
in terms of costs, product quality and customer relationships among
the eight production bases in China.

Vertically integrated advantageous ability

The vertically integrated business model helps improving the
Group’s production efficiency and achieving synergies through
centralized and unified management and reducing exposure to
market volatility and price fluctuations.

Production base advantageous ability

All of the production bases are located in industrial parks approved
by local government authorities. The production bases are located
near most of the major customers and suppliers and transportation
infrastructure, such as national railway networks, major highways,
expressways and ports, which provide the Group with multiple
transportation options.

Cost control advantageous ability

The Group actively control the expenditures in cost of sales
and services, selling and distribution expenses, administrative
expenses, finance costs and income tax expenses. The Group
formulated a comprehensive and mature coal preparation and
blending computer system based on our IT infrastructure and
experience so as to widen the price spread between our products
and our raw materials both in coke and refined chemicals.

Centralized sale and marketing advantageous ability

The Group is market-oriented and all the products are sold under
the brand “RISUN” via the centralized sale and marketing system
operated by the Group. The Group maintains low levels of finished
product inventories and adopt a “zero inventory” policy and strive to
achieve minimal inventory of our coke products. The Group produce
based on the periodical production plans which are adjusted
regularly pursuant to the customers’ demands.

BEEwm MO ()
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Innovation advantageous ability

The research and technology personnel focuses on the innovation
of production and energy and resource efficiency to improve our
manufacturing processes and reduce the environmental impact of
our production processes. The Group also commits to improving
product added value and extending the industrial chain.

Automation and information technologies
advantageous ability

The production bases are highly automated and we established a
centralized system connecting our Manufacturing Execution System
(MES), Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) systems and the
BeiDou Navigation Satellite System. The Group also uses the mobile
internet, cloud computing, internet of things, big data and intelligent
manufacturing technologies in the operations of the Group.

Environmental safety advantageous ability

The Group adopts a number of measures and practices to reduce
the environmental impact of the operations, such as preventing soil
pollution, water pollution and air pollution in order to minimize the
negative impact on the environment.

Another key of our environmental measures is the Group’s resource
recovery and re-utilization. During the coking process, the Group
recover and re-utilize valuable coking by-products, from which
we manufacture our refined chemical products. With the vertically
integrated business model, we also re-utilize the heat from our
production processes and re-use wastewater and other fluids after
appropriate treatment.

Risk mitigation advantageous ability

The Group monitors the business operations of our customers,
including but not limited to their inventory levels, production output
and sales volumes, via our on-site customer service personnel. This
can promptly understand the downstream demand for our products,
adjust our production plans and mitigate the risks associated with
price fluctuations and changes in demand for our products.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group’s net profits for the year maintained a 3-year consecutive
growth from RMB1.4 billion in 2019 (since when the Group has been
listed on the Stock Exchange), to RMB1.7 billion in 2020 and then to
RMB2.6 billion in 2021. At the same time, 2021 is the kick-off year of our
next Five — Year Plan up to 2025. Looking forward, the Group will make
use of different ways of operation management, merger and acquisition
together with the setup of joint ventures with well-known enterprises to
increase our market share by production/processing volume of coke and
refined chemicals.

Coke

The coke industry was under the supply-demand reform in the previous
years, which will continue in 2022. The reform is to eliminate the coke
production capacity from high-polluting coke enterprises. Coking
furnaces of 4.3 meters or below in China had ceased operation since
December 2020, the demand of coke will be supplemented by the other
existing coke production capacity from other coke enterprises. The Group
believes that the selling price of coke will benefit from the supply-demand
reform.

We expand our coke production/processing capacity by different ways,
such as merger and acquisition of existing coke enterprises, setting up
joint venture with other coke/steel enterprise or managing operations
of existing coke enterprises. Through our business expansion, we
believe that our market share will increase from currently 1.7% to a high
single-digit percentage or even a double-digit percentage in China
and Asia Pacific in the next five years. In 2022, the new coking project
invested by the Group in Inner Mongolia, China will be completed in
different phases and eventually will add approximately 3 million tonnes of
coke to our production capacity. These new coke production capacities
are particularly precious under the general direction of climate action
goals of “striving to peak carbon dioxide emissions before 2030 and
achieve carbon neutrality before 2060”.

In addition to our domestic expansion plan within China, the Group is also
exploring opportunities overseas in order to hedge the risk of unfavorable
changes in environmental protection policies in China by setting up
coking production/processing capacity in other countries.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BHEE MM ()

Refined chemicals

The Group will also enhance the production capacity of refined chemicals
facilities. The Group is now expanding the production capacity of
caprolactam in Hebei and Shandong Province, since caprolactam is
one of the potential refined chemicals with positive business prospect
in China. The Group expects that there will be a total of approximately
0.75 million tonnes of caprolactam per annum when the expansion is
completed and such annual capacity enables the Group as one of the
leading caprolactam participants in China.

Hydrogen products

We are committed to speed up the construction progress of the hydrogen
development projects, strive to build Hebei Dingzhou, Inner Mongolia
Hohhot and Hebe Xingtai into hydrogen energy demonstration cities and
eventually become the hydrogen energy output bases in Northern China
with the support of continuous research and development and technology
innovation.

COVID-19

The outbreak of novel coronavirus in early 2020 had an impact on the
world’s economy. The PRC government has taken tight measures to
retain the situation. The Group has also strictly followed the requirement
by the PRC government and will observe any new instruction by relevant
authorities of the PRC government in coming future.

Starting from 2022, it is noted that the outbreak in China is still mild when
compared to the rest of world. Since our operation and production is
mainly focused in China, we expect the China economy will rebound soon
and will continue to monitor the effect to the operation and production of
the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Subsequent to December 31, 2021, the Group entered into a partnership
agreement with an external third party for the sourcing of potential
investment in the coal industry in the future. As of the date of this report,
the Group, as a limited partner, has injected RMB1,000 million by cash to
the partnership as capital contribution.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE AND STATUS OF

THE BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

The following table sets forth the Group’s financial ratios as at the dates

BEEwm MO ()

FEERBIER - ZERMRR

TRINEAEERARBRRFOOIBL

and for the years indicated: =
As of and for the year ended
December 31,
M2ANEBRBEZALEE
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
Gross profit margin® EHZEO 14.4% 16.3%
Net profit margin® A B 6.8% 8.6%
EBITDA margin® EBITDAFE%® 14.2% 16.5%
Return on equity® - E e 23.8% 20.9%
Gearing ratio® AEBEXO 1.5 1.3
Notes: B -

(1)  Calculated by dividing gross profit by revenue for the year.

(2)  Calculated by dividing profit by revenue for the year.

(8)  Calculated by dividing EBITDA by revenue for the year.

(4)  Calculated by dividing profit attributable to owners for the year by equity

attributable to owners as of the end of the year.

(5)  Calculated by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by total equity as

of the end of the year.

(1) REREFBRARZE -
(2)  IRFERHEFIRAWSE -
(3) IRFEANEBITDARRIAUYZETE -

(4) BERNEEABBEGNERAFRERAR
IEHEERTE

(5) BEREHESETRABRERTH -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE SR AT ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW B %5 o

The following table sets forth our total revenue and gross profit by TREIBEMREB D> DE BN ERE
business segment (excluding the inter-segment revenue): M BES 2o -

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BZE2021F12831B L FE
Coke and
coking Refined Operation
chemicals chemicals  management
manufacturing manufacturing services Trading Total
ERREL ‘AT
EmEE EmEE EEETERY =) At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARKETT ARKETT ARKETFT ARETFT ARETFT

Total revenue s 15,900,844 12,579,203 261,406 9,688,958 38,430,411
Gross profit E7 3,701,348 1,210,339 37,136 581,420 5,530,243

For the year ended December 31, 2020
HZ2000F12A318EFE

Coke and
coking Refined Operation
chemicals chemicals management
manufacturing  manufacturing services Trading Total
ERRE( BT
EmiE EmiE BEER g5 @t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000
NEETFT NEETT NEEFT AERFFT ANEHTFT
(Restated)
(#EE2)
Total revenue el 8,715,621 5,845,621 600,848 4,622,776 19,784,866
Gross profit 7 2,460,463 387,403 156,358 219,219 3,223,443
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The following discussion addresses the principal trends that have
affected our results of operations during the Reporting Period.

(a)

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2021 increased to
RMB38,430.4 million when compared with RMB19,784.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020.

Revenue from coke and coking chemicals manufacturing business
increased by RMB7,185.2 million or 82.4% from RMB8,715.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB15,900.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to an increase in
the average selling price of coke from RMB1,698.3 per tonne for the
year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB2,795.3 per tonne for the
year ended December 31, 2021. The sales volume of coke for the
year ended December 31, 2021 also increased 0.6 million tonnes
due to the completion of acquisition of Shunri Xinze in January
2021.

Revenue from refined chemical manufacturing business increased
by RMB6,733.6 million or 115.2% from RM5,845.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB12,579.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the rebound in the
selling price of most refined chemical products since the outbreak
of COVID-19 has become under control in China.

Revenue from the operation management business decreased
by RMB339.4 million or 56.5% from RMB600.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB261.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the completion of
the acquisition of Shunri Xinze, following which the operation
management service for Shunri Xinze has been terminated and the
operating result was included in manufacturing business segments
for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Revenue from the trading business increased by RMB5,066.2
million or 109.6% from RMB4,622.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to RMB9,689.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, primarily due to the increase in trading
volume from the affiliated companies. The Group began to adopt a
centralized purchasing and sales business model with the affiliated
companies to improve our marketing management capabilities and
efficiency.

—
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BHEE MM ()

(b) Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2021 increased to
RMB32,900.2 million when compared with RMB16,561.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020.

Cost of sales from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business increased by RMB5,944.3 million or 95.0% from
RMB6,255.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
RMB12,199.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021,
primarily due to the increase in market prices for coking coal and
the increase in the volume of coke sold.

Cost of sales from the refined chemical manufacturing business
increased by RMB5,910.7 million or 108.3% from RMB5,458.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB11,368.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the
increase in the purchase price of raw material for refined chemicals.

Cost of sales from the operation management business decreased
by RMB220.2 million or 49.5% from RMB444.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB224.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the cease of provision
operation management services to Shunri Xinze after the completion
of the acquisition of Shunri Xinze.

Cost of sales from the trading business increased by RMB4,703.9
million or 106.8% from RMB4,403.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to RMB9,107.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, primarily as a result of the increase in trading
volume from the affiliated companies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s total gross profit increased by approximately
RMB2,306.8 million or 71.6% from approximately RMB3,223.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to approximately
RMB5,530.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. Gross
profit margin decreased from 16.3% for the year ended December
31, 2020 to 14.4% for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Gross profit from the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business increased by RMB1,240.8 million or 50.4% from
RMB2,460.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
RMB3,701.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. Gross
profit margin for the coke and coking chemical manufacturing
business decreased from 28.2% for the year ended December 31,
2020 to 23.3% for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Gross profit from the refined chemical manufacturing business
increased by RMB822.9 million or 212.4% from RMB387.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB1,210.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021. Gross profit margin for the refined
chemical manufacturing business increased from 6.6% for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to 9.6% for the year ended December
31, 2021, primarily due to the rebound in the selling price of most
refined chemical products.

Gross profit from the operation management business decreased
by RMB119.3 million or 76.3% from RMB156.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB37.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021. Gross profit margin for the operation
management business decreased from 26.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to 14.2% for the year ended December 31,
2021, primarily due to the completion of the acquisition of Shunri
Xinze.

Gross profit from the trading business increased by RMB362.2
million or 165.2% from RMB219.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to RMB581.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021. Gross profit margin for the trading business
increased slightly from 4.7% for the year ended December 31, 2020
to 6.0% for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENmAIIT(E)

Other income

The Group’s other income consists primarily of interest income,
income from production waste sales, and government grants
received from several government authorities as subsidies for
the Group’s contribution to the environment protection, energy
conservation recycling resources, relocation, purchase of land use
rights, and infrastructure construction. Other income increased by
RMB21.2 million or 18.2% from RMB116.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020 to RMB137.4 million for the year ended 31
December, 2021 mainly due to the increase in interest income.

Other gains and losses

The Group had other losses of RMB95.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 primarily due to the fair value losses of listed
equity securities of RMB99.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2021.

Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal

The Group had impairment losses under ECL model, net of
reversal of RMB115.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 primarily due to the impairment loss of prepaid land use right
deposit for Risun Ling Steel and impairment loss of compensation
receivable from Dingzhou City Government.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by RMB152.8 million
or 19.4% from RMB789.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 to RMB942.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021,
primarily due to an increase in transportation expenses and staff
costs.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately RMB485.6
million or 99.5% from approximately RMB488.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020 to approximately RMB973.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to an increase in
staff costs and R&D expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Finance costs

Finance costs primarily consist of interest expenses on bank loans,
other loans and finance expenses on discount of bills receivables.
The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB372.9 million or 70.1%
from RMB532.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2020
to RMB904.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The
increase was mainly due to the interest on unpaid consideration for
the acquisition of Shunri Xinze.

Share of results of associates

Share of results of associates increased from a loss of RMB4.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to a profit of RMB72.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the
increase in the price of chemicals products.

Share of results of joint ventures

Share of results of joint ventures increased by RMB91.8 million or
23.0% from RMB398.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 to RMB490.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021,
primarily due to the increase in profit shared from CNC Risun
Energy and Risun China Gas.

Profit before taxation

As a result of the foregoing factors, the profit before taxation
increased by RMB1,247.2 million, or 63.9% from RMB1,950.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 to RMB3,197.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

Income tax expense

The Group incurred income tax expenses of RMB601.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021 and RMB296.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 respectively at effective tax rates
of 18.8% and 15.2%. The increase in income tax expense is mainly
due to the increase in profit before taxation of RMB1,247.2 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BHEE MM ()

(n) Profit for the period

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group recorded a
net profit of RMB2,596.0 million, which represented an increase
of RMB942.1 million or 57.0% as compared to the net profit of
RMB1,653.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s primary uses of cash are operating costs, capital
expenditures and repayment of debts in the PRC. To date, the Group
has funded the investments and operations principally with cash from
operations and debt financing from banks and other financial institutions.
The Group believes that the liquidity requirements will be satisfied
through a combination of cash flows generated from the operating
activities, bank loans and other borrowings, and the net proceeds from
the Global Offering in March 2019 and the Placing in June 2021. Any
significant decrease in the demand for, or pricing of, the products and
services, or a significant decrease in the availability of bank loans, may
adversely impact the liquidity. As at December 31, 2021, cash and cash
equivalents held by the Group were mainly cash in the banks and on
hand denominated in RMB and deposits denominated in RMB that are
readily convertible into cash.

The following table sets forth the cash flows for the periods indicated:

(n) FAREF|

HZE2021F12A318 L FE » A%E
SRSHALFI AR Y2 596.08 87T HE
Z2020F12A31HILFEMNATIAR
#1,653.98 BT A REE942 1
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BEILH57.0% °
REBESRUBKEER

AEENHESFEZARNPRENEENS - &
AAZREREEL - 25 AEBEEXZEN
LEFBIRE A RRITREM S RIEEER
BMERMNIREREE - AEBEGELEED
FIERERE  RITERREMER UK
20193 AR B EE K2021F6 AN &
FEMAEFIBEFESULREABE SR
ko HERRIRBHF RS HERDIEKNE
T8 - SKAJESRIRITER KRR - 97
BEERBE S EN TR - 20214124
318 - AEBFFHHNRELBESSENEE
BUAARETENRITEFRIRS - UKk
BERFE I AR S MIAAREAHENER

TREFINPATHENRSRE

For the year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEFE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFIT ARETFT
Net cash generated from operating activites & & EENFT1SIR & F 58 4,205,355 1,170,307
Net cash used in investing activities BEEEAREFE (5,126,726) (2,203,516)
Net cash generated from financing activites ~ B& /EE TSI & F58 2,022,107 1,156,510
Net increase (decrease) in cash and R RREFEFEMOR
cash equivalents 1) 1,100,736 123,301
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ~ #¥IIRE& RREEHEY
of the period 1,181,955 1,061,598
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRESHHH L (1,777) (2,944)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end HRRE RS EEY
of the period 2,280,914 1,181,955

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited



(@)

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Net cash generated from operating activities

For the year ended December 31, 2021, our net cash generated
from operating activities was approximately RMB4,205.4 million and
was more than our net cash generated from operating activities for
the year ended December 31, 2020 of approximately RMB1,170.3
million, primarily due to the increase of profit and contract liabilities.

Net cash used in investing activities

For the year ended December 31, 2021, our net cash used in
investing activities was increased from approximately RMB2,203.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to approximately
RMB5,126.7 million primarily due to the increase of purchase of
property, plant and equipment and loan to related parties.

Net cash generated from financing activities

For the year ended December 31, 2021, our net cash generated
from financing activities was increased from approximately
RMB1,156.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to
approximately RMB2,022.1 million. The increase was primarily due
to the proceeds from the issue of new shares at the Placing in June
2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EIRE SR AT ()

INDEBTEDNESS 818

(a) Borrowings (a) B
Most of our borrowings are denominated in RMB. The following RBAEFAAREE - THRET
table shows our bank borrowings as of the dates indicated: HZEFTR B AR RITER

December 31,2021 December 31, 2020
2021%12A31H 2020%12A31H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥BEET AREEET

Bank loan, secured IRITER - BRI 5,286,852 3,550,270

Bank loan, unsecured IRITE - I 4,488,217 3,648,967

9,775,069 7,199,237

Other loans, secured HibER - B 2,331,098 1,146,306

Other loans, unsecured HEmER - 41,224 273,662

2,372,322 1,419,968

Discounted bills financing AR RIR A E 1,439,289 1,878,529

Total it 13,586,680 10,497,734

2021 2020
20215 20205

RMB in million %  RMB in million %

ARE¥BET % AREBET %

Fixed rate bank and other borrowings EERITREMBER 9,473.6  1.82%~12.00% 72954 2.99%~12.00%

Floating rate bank and other borrowings FERITREMBR 41131  1.58%-~8.00% 3,202.3  2.89%~11.4%

Total 5T 13,586.7 10,497.7

The total borrowings increased by approximately RMB3.1 billion, or BN EE2020FE12A31HM A
29.5%, to approximately RMB13.6 billion as of December 31, 2021 R¥105BTIB IO AREI1EITK
from RMB10.5 billion as of December 31, 2020, primarily due to an 29.5% » BEFE2021F12 A31HHL
increase in bank loan and other loan. ARBA36ET  TEARBITERR

HAbEFIE M
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The borrowings denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of respective entities are set out below:

BEEwm MO ()

NEBENNEEEUINERFE
EERESIINT -

As of December 31,

M12A831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB in millions RMB in millions
AREHET AREEET
usb ETT 1,023.9 757.3
JPY Hit 3.7 -
Total 15T 1,027.6 757.3
Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
Our Group had the following total future minimum lease payments as RNEBNA~ BB R K EFERE
of the dates indicated: FARFENT

December 31, 2020
2020912 A31H

December 31, 2021
2021%12H31H

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARKEET AR EET
Lease liabilities HEAE 214,008 69,526

Long-term payables

As of December 31, 2021, long-term payables for unpaid
consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary amounted to
RMB2.9 billion. Such payables carry a contractual interest rate of
10% per annum.

(c) FHIEFHIA

HZE2021412A318  ARWE—XK
MBI KRS RENREBENKE
BARB20ET - WHEEMKIEBENE
BFFFEE10% o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB Mo ()

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments outstanding of the Group are set out
under Note 43 of the Financial Statements.

CURRENCY RISK AND MANAGEMENT

The Group maintained some of the capital denominated in foreign
currency, mainly USD, EUR and HKD. Fluctuations in exchange rate
would influence the reserve in foreign currencies to a certain extent and
the Company is exploring and discussing measures to respond to foreign
exchange risk. The analysis of the exposure to exchange rate risk is set
out in Note 41 to the Financial Statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group entered into guarantee agreements with certain commercial
banks in the PRC with respect to loan facilities granted to a joint venture
and a related party. Under these guarantee agreements, the Group
agreed to be jointly and severally liable for the borrowings incurred
by such joint venture and related party. The table below sets forth the
maximum liabilities under such guarantees as of the dates indicated.

BARESE

REBERBITEARENFBINMBRE
TR

E¥ERRER

AEBENBFIHROUINEHENES  EB
RET BT RET - BERNRBEINEE
EHBE—EFE  ARALEERRKFI®
FEEIHINE R R AV R 3E o P ERIE R AR A D
IrE R B IR R R4 -

i

g

RE
HARES

\

AEBEREETHERTRR T —RKEE
CER-RBEHITNERBE R LERT
7o REBEZFERGZ  AKEREZHZA
BR MR ELE B FIR RAER A
B - TREJIHEERATBHLBERET
M= B AR -

As of December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB in millions RMB in millions
AR¥BEET AREEET

Financial guarantees issued to joint ME S NMBER

ventures 1,647.9 1,280.0
1,647.9 1,280.0

As of December 31, 2020 and 2021, the outstanding balance of loans
under the loan facilities guaranteed by the Group was RMB936.0 million
and RMB876.5 million, respectively. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group were insignificant
at the date of issue of the financial guarantee and no provision is
necessary at the end of each reporting period, taking into account that the
net realizable value of the pledged assets held by the banks exceeded
the facilities and credit granted to the relevant parties. In addition, the
Directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against us
under any of these guarantees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FUTURE PLANS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in
March 2019

The shares of the Company were listed on March 15, 2019 (the “Listing
Date”) on the Stock Exchange. The Company issued 600,000,000 Shares
on the Listing Date, and issued additional 90,000,000 Shares on April 11,
2019 pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option, at the Offer
Price of HK$2.8 per Share. The total issuance size and gross proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$1,932 million. As at December 31, 2021,
all the gross proceeds from the Listing were used up.

During the Reporting Period, the net proceeds from the listing had been
applied as follows:

BEEwm MO ()

RIRETEIRFAERAERE
R201993 BB R FrER £

RATERRH 201963 158 ([ LM B E))
£ BARQERM T A HE17600,000,000
RERE (D - 7A201945 4 A 11 BiRIE BB A A #E
WITEBRIE SRR 2.8 T B EEHIT
90,000,000 [ 17 ° 42 3ITHRIE MK FRBFIA
A A1,932B BB T © 2021612731
A -t EmASFIRREE T ATE -

RIRE R - 2B EMEREFENER
BT

Unused net Actual use of Unused net

proceeds net proceeds proceeds

Proposed as at during as at

use of net December 31,  the Reporting December 31,

proceeds 2020 Period 2021

#2020 #2021

12A3101 RERE 12A318 1

FEMERE RERFB FEREFE RERFE

BERE NEEH BERAR RIEFHE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)

(BE¥T) (B%8T) (BE%T) (B#%T)

Debt repayments EHER 7456 = = =
Investment plans REHE 559.2 = = =
Environmental protection plans and  BRIRATEI R ZHF R 3728 735 735 =

system upgrade
Working capital HEES 186.4 = = =
Total st 1,864 735 735 -
2021 3R
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BHEE MM ()

Placing of new shares in June 2021

The Company placed 350,000,000 new shares at the placing price of
HK$5.90 per share (the “Placing”) in June 2021 which has been the first
issuance in equity capital market in Hong Kong since its listing is March
2019. During the Reporting Period, the net proceeds of HK$2,062.10
million from the Placing had been applied to upgrade the existing coke
and coking chemicals and refined chemicals manufacturing equipment
and environmental protection facilities and to fund the investment in
overseas coke enterprises by 80% as well as to replenish the working
capital of the Group by 20%. The Placing enabled the Company to
obtain further equity funding for upgrading the Group's existing coke
and coking chemicals and refined chemicals manufacturing equipment
and environmental protection facilities as well as potential mergers and
acquisitions, which is beneficial for the Group’s future expansion and
development.

In addition, the Placing further enlarged the Company’s shareholders’
equity base, optimized the capital structure of the Company, strengthened
the financial position and liquidity of the Group and provided support and
flexibility for the development of the Group.

As at December 31, 2021, the cash and cash equivalent reached
RMB2,280.9 million (as at December 31, 2020: RMB1,182.0 million)
reserved for the future development needs of the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG Xuegang (% Z ), aged 57, is an Executive Director, the chief
executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the Board. He was
appointed as an Executive Director in November 2007. He is responsible
for the overall management and business development of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yang graduated from Hebei Hydraulic College (Ja/dt7KF|EH £
) (now known as Hebei University of Water Resources and Electric
Engineering (A 47K FIE 1 E6x)) in Cangzhou, the PRC in July 1985
with a diploma in hydraulic engineering construction and obtained the
hydraulic engineer qualification issued by the Handan City Labour
Bureau (HBE3M 4 #HAER) in December 1993. He completed a
master-level training course in business administration at Renmin
University of China (B AR AKZ2) in Beijing, the PRC in March 2000 and
was a supervisor of a master’'s degree program at Hebei University of
Economics and Business (JAIdEA&EE A E) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in July
2002. He completed a further master-level training course in business
administration at the ZhongHua Yanxiu University (FREHHEAZ) in
Beijing, the PRC in September 2003. In November 2003, he obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (Z2M0RPIBIER AFARE) in Macau. He obtained the
senior engineer qualification awarded by the Hebei Provincial Department
of Human Resources and Social Security (AitE A HE R ET SRE
E2) in December 2012. In January 2017, Mr. Yang obtained an executive
master’s degree in business administration from Hebei University of
Technology (3L TZK22) in Tianjin, the PRC.

Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Yang was employed at the
Dongwushi Reservoir Management Center (BRET/KEEIEE), a public
body directly subordinated to the Handan City Hydraulics Bureau (HBEB7K
# /), on a full-time basis for approximately 10 years from August 1985,
and became a deputy director of the Dongwushi Reservoir Management
Center from January 1988. He then joined the Group as general manager
as a result of his entrepreneurial efforts since the establishment of
Xingtai Risun Coking Limited in May 1995 and became chairman since
May 1996. Since September 2012, he has been a director of Beijing
Automic Technology Co., Ltd. (Gt RERFEZEHEAR M BRAF]) (“Beijing
Automic”), a company previously listed on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations (ZBIF /M2 15 8838 E47T) (stock code: 430245), whose
principal business is the planning of water conservancy information
projects, consultation and assessment, as well as software and hardware
product development and services, and held as to 49.92% by Mr. Yang
and parties acting-in-concert with him.
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Over the years, Mr. Yang has taken up leadership roles in a number of
industry associations, including those relating to the coking industry.
He has been the vice president of CCIA since October 2005, and the
president of HBCCIA since January 2006. In February 2008, Mr. Yang
was elected and had served as a deputy to the 11th NPC and in February
2013, he was elected as a deputy to the 12th NPC.

Mr. ZHANG Yingwei (FR%{&), aged 50, is an Executive Director and a
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director in
July 2009. He is responsible for the overall management of the Tangshan
Production Base and the Cangzhou Production Base.

Mr. Zhang graduated with a bachelor’s degree in coal chemistry from
Tangshan Institute of Technology (LU T FMERT) (now known as
North China University of Science and Technology (ZE4b¥E T K&)) in
Tangshan, the PRC in June 1993. He completed a master-level training
program in business administration at Hebei University of Economics and
Business (A 1b4E & K E) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in November 2004. He
also obtained a master’'s degree in metallurgical engineering at Hebei
Polytechnic University (f[1£32 T K) (now known as North China University
of Science and Technology (Z4£3 T X&) in Tangshan, the PRC in April
2007. In December 2012, he obtained the senior engineer qualification
from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province (JAl4t%& Bt
MR RS/ NMEPRE).

Mr. Zhang has over 28 years of experience in iron and steel industry
and coal chemical industry. Mr. Zhang worked for Xingtai Metallurgical
Machinery and Mill Roll Joint Stock Corporation (78 & )& & ## $L 88 i%
B ABRAT]) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery & Mill Roll Co.,
Ltd. (/R B & ®mELEE AR A 7)), whose principal business is the
manufacturing of metallurgical machinery and parts for the production of
metallurgical rolls and equipment, from September 1993. He then joined
the Group in February 1996. He has been serving as a vice president of
the Coking Chemistry Sub-committee of the National Technical Committee
on Coal Chemical Industry of Standardization Administration of China
(ERE( TEEFEITZ E€) since May 2016, an expert on the expert
panel of the CCIA since January 2018 and an expert of both the HBCCIA
and the Department of Industry and Information Technology of Hebei
Province since April 2018.

Mr. HAN Qinliang (5%)%), aged 48, is an Executive Director and a vice
president of the Group. Mr. Han was appointed as an Executive Director
in May 2011. He is primarily responsible for the management of the
financial, accounting and information systems of the Group.
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Mr. Han obtained a diploma in industrial economy administration from
Hebei College of Mechanical Engineering (A1t#EE67) in Xingtai, the
PRC in June 1993 (as a result of a merger, Hebei College of Mechanical
Engineering is now part of Hebei University of Science and Technology
(AL RHE A E2)). In December 2001, he obtained a bachelor’s degree
in accounting from Hebei University of Economics and Business (J/dt
& KE) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC. In July 2001, he became a member
of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (& Bl & 5tEl 1
) in the PRC. In December 2003, he obtained the senior accountant
qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province

(it e BN ERE AR A E).

Mr. Han joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Han has approximately 28
years of experience in steel and coal chemical industry. From September
1993 to April 2004, he was the deputy head of the finance department
cost division in Xingtai Machinery and Mill Roll (Group) Corporation (F8&
M EL BT 2 @B R A 7)) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery & Mill
Roll Co., Ltd. (FHiE B & #mELERFR A F])). In March 2004, Mr. Han
joined Xingtai Risun Trading as a general manager assistant.

Mr. WANG Fengshan (E L), aged 63, is an Executive Director and a
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
in September 2018. He is primarily responsible for the procurement and
sales management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a diploma in statistics from Hebei University (i 1t X £2)
in Baoding, the PRC in June 1989.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Wang has approximately
33 years of experience in procurement and sales management. From
August 1983 to September 1996, he was the sales manager in Hebei
Hongxing Automobile Factory Co., Ltd. (R/dt4L 2 /REEEAR A A]), a
company principally engaged in the automobile and automobile parts
manufacturing business, and from October 1996 to October 1998, he was
the general manager of Bear Asia Furniture Co., Ltd. (38ZREBMBRE A
A]), a company principally engaged in the metal furniture and furnishings
manufacturing business. From February 1999 to January 2004, he was a
general manager of Xingtai Zhongxing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (ff&
M BRAA]), a company principally engaged in the pharmaceutical
business. In March 2004, Mr. Wang joined the human resources
department of Xingtai Risun Trading and oversaw the human resources
and administrative management in CNC Risun Coking from November
2004 to August 2009. He has been overseeing the Group’s procurement
and sales management since August 2009. Mr. Wang has been a vice
president of the HBCCIA since December 2016 and an expert on the
expert panel of the CCIA since January 2018.
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Mr. WANG Nianping (£ %), aged 59, is an Executive Director and a
vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director
in September 2018. He is primarily responsible for the legal and risk
management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from the Institute of
Hubei Finance (#1bBIAEE6T) (now known as Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (FEIPEBIEKRZ)) in Wuhan, the PRC in July
1984. He obtained a post-graduate degree in international trade and
a juris doctor degree from the University of International Business and
Economics (#9MEEE 5 AE) in Beijing, the PRC in June 1994 and
December 2007, respectively. He was admitted as a qualified lawyer in
the PRC in June 1987 and obtained the senior economist qualification
issued by the Sinopec Group in November 2004.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2011 and prior to joining the
Group, he had over 12 years of extensive experience in the petrochemical
industry. He was recognized as a third level lawyer in April 1990 by the
China National Petroleum Corporation (F BlARK AR LA R]) where he
worked. In January 1996, Mr. Wang joined China Petroleum Engineering
Construction Corporation, a company whose principal business is building
oil and gas infrastructures and undertook various positions including
contracts administrator, senior officer of the debt recovery department
and deputy manager of the projects department. In May 2001, he joined
Sinopec International Petroleum Exploration and Production Corporation
(“SIPC”), a company whose principal business is in overseas oil and
gas investment and operations, as the deputy manager of the legal
department. From November 2004 to December 2008, he served as the
vice president of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Kazakhstan and as the deputy
general manager of the SIPC’s subsidiaries in Syria from January 2009 to
October 2010.

Mr. YANG Lu (#58%), aged 31, is an Executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the import, export and domestic
trading business of the Group. He was appointed as an Executive
Director in September 2018.

Mr. Yang Lu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in chemical engineering
from the Washington University in St. Louis, the United States in May
2012. He obtained the fund management qualification from the Asset
Management Association of China in June 2015.

Mr. Yang Lu joined the Group in November 2013. Prior to joining the
Group, he was a junior consultant at Roland Berger Management
Consultants (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (BB ERCEEE FEBERAR), a
global strategy consulting firm, from September 2012 to September 2013,
and from October 2013 to November 2014, he worked in the marketing
department of Beijing Automic. Mr. Yang Lu has been the chairman’s
assistant of Hong Kong Risun since November 2013 and worked in the
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market research department as deputy manager of Risun Marketing Co.
Ltd. (JBFZ & $EBRAR]) (previously named as Beijing Risun Hongye
Chemicals Co., Ltd.) from December 2014 to May 2016. He then worked
in Beijing Risun Fund Management Co., Ltd. JQt ZBIGE S BB ER A7),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xuyang Holding, between June 2016 and
September 2018, first as deputy general manager and subsequently as
general manager. Since September 2018, he was the general manager of
Risun Marketing (JEFZ %4 £4).

Mr. Yang Lu is the son of Mr. Yang.
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KANG Woon (EJE), aged 59, is an Independent Nonexecutive
Director and also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director between November
2011 to September 2015 and reappointed in September 2018.

Mr. Kang obtained a doctorate of jurisprudence from the University of
Texas in Austin, Texas, the United States in May 1990. He has been
an attorney-at-law of the Supreme Court of the State of New York since
March 1991, and a member of the Law Society of England and Wales
since May 1998.

Mr. Kang served as a supervisor from May 2004 to June 2007 and was
an independent non-executive director of Anhui Conch Cement Company
Limited (Z#USIZICERDEMRAA]), a company principally engaged in
cement products manufacturing dually listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock codes: 914 and
600585, respectively), between October 1997 and May 2004 as well
as between June 2007 and May 2013. Mr. Kang was an independent
non-executive director of China Yurun Food Group Limited (FFEIFEE
mEE AR AT]), a company whose principal business is manufacturing
meat products and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1068), from April 2005 to January 2010.

Mr. YU Kwok Kuen Harry (REI#), aged 52, is an Independent
Non-executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. He
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director in September
2018.

Mr. Yu received his diploma in accountancy from Morrison Hill Technical
Institute in Hong Kong in 1991 and master’s degree in business
administration from Manchester Business School in the United Kingdom
through long-distance learning in July 2000. Mr. Yu is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Yu is also a Certified
Public Accountant in the Macau Special Administrative Region.
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Mr. Yu joined KPMG, an international accounting firm in October 1991
and was a partner of KPMG from July 2002 to June 2011.

Mr. Yu also serves as an independent non-executive director at
Impro Precision Industries Limited, a manufacturer of high-precision,
high-complexity and mission-critical casting and machined components
and a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1286) since April 2019.

Mr. WANG Yinping (£5|F), aged 61, is an Independent Nonexecutive
Director and also a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
in September 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from Renmin University
of China (FEI AR KE) in Beijing, the PRC in July 1985 and a master’s
degree in business administration from the China Europe International
Business School (FEXEIFE TREET) in Shanghai, the PRC in November
2004.

Mr. Wang has extensive experience in corporate management. He joined
China National Chemical Import & Export Corporation (f Bt Ti# O
4\ F]) (now known as Sinochem Group Co., Ltd. (TEF{tEEBRA
Al)) (“Sinochem”), a conglomerate offering exploration and production
of oil and gas, energy, agriculture, chemical, real estate and financial
services, in March 1988 and held various senior positions between March
1988 and March 2014 in Sinochem and its subsidiaries (“Sinochem
Group”), including the deputy general manager of the Hainan branch of
Sinochem, the general manager of the Pudong branch of Sinochem, the
deputy general manager of China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust
Company Limited (FF BI$9MEEE S 1555 B R 2 7]) a company principally
engaged in microfinance, industrial finance, capital market and wealth
management, the general manager of the human resource department
of Sinochem Group, the vice president of Sinochem Group, the general
manager of Sinochem International Trading Company Limited (now
known as Sinochem International Corporation (F{t BIFEIE R (5 B IR
7~ 7)), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600500) and principally engaged in the chemical and rubber business,
the chairman of the China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust Company
Limited and the chairman of the Sinochem Lantian Co., Ltd. (f{t&X
E£EAERAF]), a company principally engaged in research, production
and sale of fluorinem chemicals. Mr. Wang also served as chairman of
the board of Zhejiang Int'l Group Co., Ltd. (ITREFEBRMNHERAF]), a
company that produces and sells pharmaceutical and Chinese medicine
health products in China and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 000411) from December 2010 to March 2014. From January
2015 to December 2016, Mr. Wang was an executive director of China
Pioneer Pharma Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
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the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1345) and a comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service provider dedicated to
imported pharmaceutical products and medical devices in the PRC, and
was re-designated and has been serving as a non-executive director
since December 2016.

Mr. Wang has been an independent non-executive director of Yida China
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3639) since December 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIA Yunshan (Z3&l), aged 54, has been a vice president of the
Group since December 2004. He is primarily responsible for the financing
and cash management of the Group. In July 1990, he completed a
program in financial accounting from Hebei Materials Institute (jit4#7& £
#2) (now known as Hebei Economy Management School (i 1L 4% & 1R 2
1)) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC. In July 2003, he completed a master-level
training program in business administration at Hebei University of
Economics and Business (JAI1LAS & X&) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC.

Mr. Jia has approximately 26 years of experience in financing and
cash management. Mr. Jia has been employed by the Group since the
establishment of Xingtai Risun Trading in May 1995. He has held various
management positions in the Group, including financial manager and
deputy general manager of Xingtai Risun Trading from May 1995 to
November 2004. He has been a director of Beijing Automic Technology
Co., Ltd. since September 2012.

Mr. LI Qinghua (ZE#), aged 58, has been a vice president of the
Group since June 2015. He is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Dingzhou and Xingtai Production Bases. He
graduated from the Anhui Economic Management Cadre Institute (Z2#4E
EEIEAEREART) in Hefel, the PRC in July 1987 with a diploma in industrial
enterprise management and obtained a master's degree in economics
from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party
of China (AR RER) in Beijing, the PRC in July 2001. He obtained a
senior economist qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office
of Hebei Province (Jf1 3t & B il 2 E 8/ MESF A ZE) in November 1999.

Mr. Li joined the Group in November 2004 as a deputy general manager
of Xingtai Risun Trading. He has approximately 27 years of corporate
management experience. Prior to joining the Group, he undertook several
positions at Hebei Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. ()]
I RADREEEAR AT, an automobile manufacturer, from July 1983
to October 2004, including director of the special cars factory from May
1993 to June 1998, deputy director and director of the general factory
from June1998 to September 2002 and deputy general manager of Hebei
Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. from September 2002 to
October 2004.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Mr. YUAN Xixian (38% ), aged 59, has been a vice president of the
Group since August 2017. He is primarily responsible for management
of the Group’s strategic investments, production and engineering. He
graduated from the Hebei Institute of Mining and Metallurgy (aldtizAE
Bt) (now known as the North China University of Science and Technology
(1t T K2)) in Tangshan, the PRC in July 1983. He obtained a senior
engineer qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of
Hebei Province in December 2004.

Mr. Yuan has approximately 38 years of experience in the steel and coke
industry. He joined the Group in May 2017. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuan joined Xingtai Iron & Steel Corp., Ltd. (& HEHBRELRA), a
high-end, specialized, wire manufacturer in July 1983 and was a deputy
general manager, general manager and chairman from June 1998 to
October 2016.

Mr. HO Pui Lam Joseph (f5fi#), aged 41, is the company secretary
of the Company. He is responsible for the management of corporate
governance and company secretarial matters, participation in the making
of material business decisions and development of the business strategy.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from the
University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 2002. He has been a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 2018.

Mr. Ho has approximately 18 years of auditing, financial and company
secretarial experience. He joined the Group in September 2017. Prior to
joining the Group, he was an audit manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from September 2002 to November 2009. He also served as the financial
controller and company secretary of Renheng Enterprise Holdings
Limited, a company principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
tobacco machinery products in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3628), from June 2010 to August 2017.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The Board hereby presents their report together with the Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 to the Shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

OPERATING ENVIRONMENT AND PROSPECTS

Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — Overview” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Business Review” in this annual
report for details.

LAWS, REGULATORY AND COMPLIANCE MATTERS

As of December 31, 2021, there are no material pending or threatened
litigation matters or other proceedings, and the Group is not involved in
any litigation or other proceedings that we believe would materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Directors have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, the Group
had complied with the applicable laws and regulations in all material
respects, and did not have any incidents of material non-compliance, and
had obtained all relevant permits, approval documents, qualifications,
authorizations and approvals upon examination material to our business
operations.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are provided in Note 47 to the
Financial Statements.

EEEHE

BEeENABRRIE LSRG EREZE2021
F12A31B L FEMTHRE -

£ E)
RERENRE

FEF2HAERIERENWEDNT -
BIRIERET®EIT — %L -

wE - EENMAREA

HZE2021F12A318 @ HESANRRIE
ERFASEREMERRER - NERBI
ESRTRNBRMARESYUBRMANES - UK
R L BEEEEAEATHEEMNFAN
HEERF o

EEXCHR RHREHRN - AREERFAE
BATHESTPEERERER  XEME
AEATNAREN  AAKELRECEEF
REBLEMSBEENMAMRBA - #t
X B BEREL -

BRHREIR

BEAMREEABERTBRKRME47 -

2021 F3R
FEEREEERAD G

79



80

eport of the Board of Directors (Continued)

EEgWmE(E)

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

We recruit new employees based on specific job requirements, our
resources and needs from time to time. We provide technical as well as
operational training for our employees, and we have tailored specific
courses for our management personnel in order to build a competent
team.

As of December 31, 2021, we had 7,678 full-time employees (2020:
4,407). Most of our senior management members and employees are
based in Beijing and Hebei province.

We enter into a standard employment contract with each of our full- time
employees. Compensation for our employees includes basic wages,
variable wages, bonuses and other benefits. For the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2021, our staff costs amounted to RMB521.0
million and RMB1,097.7 million respectively.

The Company’s remuneration policy is set out by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are set by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to among others, salaries
paid by comparable companies as well as time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions of the Group.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and
there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the directors as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme to motivate and reward
its Directors and eligible employees. For further details, please refer to the
section headed “Report of the Board of Directors — Share Option Scheme”
of this report.

During the Reporting Period, we had not experienced any interruptions
to our operations caused by major labor disputes and there were no
complaints or claims from our employees which had a material adverse
effect on our business. Our Directors believe that we have a good
relationship with our employees. During the Reporting Period, the Group
had no major labor disputes which might produce significant impact of
the normal business and operation of the Group.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

We sell our coke primarily to customers in the iron and steel industry
in the PRC, and export a portion to overseas customers. We sell our
refined chemicals primarily to manufacturers and traders in the chemical
industry in the PRC, and export a small portion to customers overseas.
Our end customers may purchase directly from us or purchase through
their affiliated trading arms. Our customers for trading business are
primarily companies in the iron and steel, non-ferrous, coking and
chemical industries. During the Reporting Period, we did not adopt any
distributorship business models in selling our products.

We maintain long-term cooperative relationships with our major
customers. Some of them have maintained business relationships with
us for more than five years, of which the customer with the longest
relationship has maintained a business relationship with us for 16 years.
Furthermore, we have entered into long- term framework agreements with
certain of our customers. Our products supplied under such long-term
framework agreements mainly include coke, benzene, caprolactam and
methanol.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue attributable to our top five
largest customers was approximately RMB8,726.1 million, accounting
for 22.7% of the total revenue of the Group (2020: RMB4,159.0 million
or 21.0%). The revenue attributable to our single largest customer was
approximately RMB2,697.5 million, accounting for approximately 7.0% of
the total revenue of the Group (2020: RMB1,198.2 million or 6.1%). Our
top five customers during the Reporting Period were independent third
parties, and none of our Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
(who, to the knowledge of our Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2021) had any interest in
any of our top five largest customers during the Reporting Period.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS

The principal raw material used for our coke and coking chemical
production is coking coal. We mainly source our coking coal from
external suppliers. The major types of coking coal we purchased included
hard coking coal, fat coal, gas coal, 1/3 coking coal and lean coal.
We purchased a large proportion of our coking coal from suppliers in
Shanxi province and Hebei province. If overseas coking coal is more
competitively priced than domestic coking coal, we will source coking
coal from countries such as Mongolia and Australia.

For the production of our refined chemicals, the principal raw materials
are coking chemicals, which include crude benzene, coal tar and coke
oven gas. Coking chemicals are by-products in the coking process. We
mainly source such raw materials externally from our suppliers, but also
source a portion of such raw materials by utilizing by-products from the
coke production facilities at our Dingzhou Production Base and from CNC
Risun Coking at our Xingtai Production Base.

We generally enter into annual procurement arrangements with key
suppliers. These supply arrangements specify the indicative quantities
of raw materials that we plan to purchase in the relevant period and are
subject to separate purchase orders to confirm delivery. Our suppliers
typically granted us credit terms of 30 to 90 days. Pursuant to these
arrangements, our procurement department purchases the required raw
materials from suppliers in accordance with production plans prepared
by our production department. Generally, purchase prices are based
on prevailing market prices at the time of delivery of the raw materials.
We make and implement our raw material procurement plans in line
with our production plans which are primarily based on periodical
review of customers’ orders in order to reduce our exposure to market
price fluctuations of raw materials. The internal market analysis reports
generated by our market department also provide us with a basis for
determining procurement prices.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Co

We have a broad base of suppliers and do not depend on any single
supplier. For instance, we procured coking coals from over 100 suppliers
in the PRC and overseas during the Reporting Period. A broad base
of suppliers help enables us to procure a wide range of quality raw
materials at competitive prices. Though we did not enter into any long-
term agreements with our suppliers of raw materials, we maintained long-
term cooperative relationships with our key suppliers. Some of them have
maintained business relationships with us for more than five years.

Our subsidiaries engaged in the production business have passed the
ISO 9001:2008/ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System standard
which imposes detailed supplier selection and assessment procurement.
The selection and assessment of our suppliers include:

° the quality and specifications of the raw materials they offer;
o the size and locality of their operations; and
o their past transaction records and terms of trade with us.

During the Reporting Period, our purchases from our top five suppliers
were approximately RMB8,700.9 million, accounting for approximately
26.3% of our cost of sales (2020: RMB4,014.9 million or 24.2%).
Our purchases from our single largest supplier were approximately
RMB4,315.1 million, accounting for approximately 13.1% of our cost of
sales (2020: RMB2,049.5 million or 12.4%). Except for CNC Risun Coking
disclosed in Note 39 to the Financial Statements, our top five largest
suppliers are independent third parties, and none of Directors, their
associates or any Shareholder (to the knowledge of Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital as of December 31, 2021)
had any interest in any of our top five largest raw material and equipment
suppliers during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, we did not experience any material
shortages or delays in the supply of our raw materials, and we do not
foresee any material shortages or delays in our procurement of raw
materials in the future. We closely monitor the inventory levels of our
raw materials, and we adjust our procurement volumes accordingly in
anticipation of periods in which we may encounter raw material supply
shortages or product demand increases.
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2021 are stated on pages 131 to 132 of the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income. The financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
December 31, 2021 are stated on pages 133 to 134 of the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. The consolidated cash flows of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2021 are
stated on pages 136 to 138 of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow.

The discussion and analysis on the Group’s business performance and
financial position for the current year are stated under “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 48 to 70 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2021, the total issued share capital of the Company
was HK$444,000,000.00 divided into 4,440,000,000 shares of HK$0.1
each. During the Reporting Period, the Company issued 350,000,000 new
shares upon the placing of shares in June 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s
securities.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group has not issued any debentures during the year ended
December 31, 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT TO ACQUIRE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

RESERVE

The details in relation to the changes in the reserve of the Company for
the current year are stated under Note 36 of the Financial Statements.
The details in relation to the reserve available for distributing to the
shareholders are stated under Note 36 of the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s property, plant and equipment consist mainly of machinery
and equipment. We purchased our machinery and equipment mainly with
cash from operations and debt financing from banks and other financial
institutions. Machinery and equipment are primarily the various types of
machineries and equipment at our production site at our seven production
bases in China, including Xingtai Production Base, Dingzhou Production
Base, Tangshan Production Base, Cangzhou Production Base, Huhhot
Protduction base, Yuncheng Production Base and Dongming Production
Base.

As of December 31, 2021, our property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately RMB16,677.0 million, with a year-to- year growth of
49.9%. This was mainly because of the addition of RMB3,015.2 million
in property, plant and equipment, the addition of RMB3,835.3 million
by acquisition of a subsidiary and partially offset by the depreciation of
RMB1,125.5 million.

E=gRE(E)

BIER R

EXUTHNERBERAFAAARIESM
R EARIE -

(G

BRARRNAFENFEZEFE - N
PR ERAKMIFE36 - BRAIH DI TR AV
R BRI M B IRRMEES6

M%x - BERRE

AEENYE BEMKBIERREBER
R BHPTEAREMBREUARRITR
Hit BB BETREBEMEBELRE - %
BLRBEE/EMETENLELEERR
A BRSNS B MR BRBeE
ERR  EMEEERR  BLULEERRE &
MEEERE  FAEREERRR - BREE
ERERBLEERR -

HZE2021F12A318 - HINYE BEM&
RENBARE16,677.088L ' AR
49.9% c EEX EHRMNYE - BE KEEE M
AR®3,015.28 8T WE—REHBAR)IE
IMMARY3,835.3EETLRIBABITEARE
1,125 5B B LAy -

2021 FR
FEEBEEERA G

85



86

eport of the Board of Directors (Continued)

e
H
2
i
S3d
Of
i

)

DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

After obtaining the shareholders’ approval at the 2020 annual general
meeting on May 24, 2021, the Company paid a final dividend of RMB10.5
cents per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended December 31, 2020 in
cash to shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members
of the Company on June 17, 2021, and the final dividend was fully paid
on June 30, 2021.

On August 27, 2021, the Board declared an interim dividend for 2021
of RMB12.3 cents per share (tax inclusive) in cash to its shareholders
whose names appeared on the register of member of the Company on
September 14, 2021. The interim dividend was fully paid on September
28, 2021.

The Board recommends the distribution of a final dividend of total
amount of RMB279,720,000 (dividend amount of each ordinary share is
RMB6.3 cents (tax inclusive)) for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
all shareholders, details of which are set out in Note 15 to the Financial
Statements. Subject to the approval at the 2021 Annual General Meeting,
the final dividend will be distributed on or before June 30, 2022 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of Shares of the
Company on June 20, 2022. Further announcements will be made by
the Company in due course regarding the details of the date of dividend
distribution and other specific arrangement.

The recommendation of payment and the amount of any future dividends
will be at the absolute discretion of the Board and the amount of any
dividends actually distributed to our Shareholders will depend on our
results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, payments by our
subsidiaries of cash dividends to us, our future prospects and other
factors that our Directors consider important. We expect to distribute no
less than 30%.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The details in relation to the bank borrowings and other borrowings of the
Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2021 are stated under
Note 32 of the Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of D|rectors (Co

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors currently consists of nine Directors, among whom,
six are Executive Directors and three are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Directors have been appointed with a term of three years,
after which they may be re-elected.

The information regarding the Company’s Directors are set out as follows
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Relationship with other
Roles and Appointment Date of Directors and Senior
Name Age Position Responsibilities Date Joining the Group Management
#E 3 B RERBE ZERH MAFEER B S RHMESRSRERRENER
Mr. Yang Xuegang 57 Executive Director, ~ Overall management and ~ November 8, May 12, 1995 Father of Mr. Yang Lu
chairman of the Board  Business development of 2007
and chief executive the Group
officer
ASmAL 57 YiTES BRELRE FARENEREERER  2007F11A8H 1995458128 BREENLE
R R
Mr. Zhang Yingwei 50 Executive Director and Overall management of the  July 24, 2009 February 5, 1996 N/A
vice president of the  Tangshan Production
Group Base and the Cangzhou
Production Base
RABEE 50 YrEFRAEE  BLEEEERAMEE  200057A24E 19964258 TR
s ERfBREE
Mr. Han Qinliang 48 Executive Director and Management of the May 18, 2011 March 1, 2004 N/A
vice president of the  financial, accounting and
Group information systems of
the Group
BYntE 48 YTEFRAEE  AREONE  eHRES 211FSA1BE 20044381H Bl
Bl ZoER
Mr. Wang Fengshan 63 Executive Director and Management of procurementSeptember 29, March 1, 2004 N/A
vice president of and sales of the Group 2018
Group
TREE 63 YTEERAEE  AEEFELEEEE  018F9A208  2004F381A TR
B
Mr. Wang Nianping 59 Executive Director and Legal and risk management September 29, February 22, 2011 N/A
vice presidentof the  of the Group 2018
Group
TEVESE 59 PIESRAEE  AEEEERERER 2018%9H29H 011624228 TiEA
Bl
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Relationship with other
Roles and Appointment Date of Directors and Senior
Name Age Position Responsibilities Date Joining the Group Management
#E 3 B BEREE ZERH MAKZEEHRE REMESRSRERRNEE
Mr. Yang Lu 31 Executive Director ~ Management of the import, September 29, November 1, 2013 Son of Mr. Yang Xuegang
export and domestic 2018
trading business of our
Group
BREE 31 Hi1ES ERASEMELORER 20185978298 2013F11A1R PERAENTT
B5%%
Mr. Kang Woon 59 Independent Non- Oversight of the compliance September 29, November 11, 20110 N/A
executive Director and corporate 2018
governance matters of
the Group and provision
of independent advice to
the Board
REBRE 59 BUFHTES EERSENSGHREEE 2018598208  2011E11ANAY TR
BEH TMEFERME
BUE
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen 52 IndependentNon-  Same as above September 29, September 29, 2018 N/A
Harry executive Director 2018
REEEE 52 BUFHTES AL 2018F9A29R 201859729 TR
Mr. Wang Yinping 61 Independent Non-  Same as above September 29, September 29, 2018 N/A
executive Director 2018
Fol Tk 61 BUNES G 201849A29A 201849A29A TEA
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The information regarding the Company’s senior management are set out ERARARRRERENERESINT
as follows:

Relationship with other
Roles and Appointment Date of Directors and Senior
Name Age Position Responsibilities Date Joining the Group Management

2 R Bz BEREE Z{TEH MAKSEH A HENESRARERENEE

Mr. Jia Yunshan 54 Vice president of the ~ Financing and cash December 6, May 12, 1995 N/A
Group management of the 2004
Group
BEIL%EE 54 TEEEISH FEENBARRSER  2004512A6H 199565128 TER

Mr. Li Qinghua 58 Vice president of the  Overall management of the June 8, 2015 November 1, 2004 N/A
Group Xingtai Production Base
PRERE 58 REERIRH BetEERTMEER 201556A8A 2004511718 Bl
B HERRRSES

BB

Mr. Yuan Xixian 59 Vice president of the  Management of the Group’s August 1, 2017 May 8, 2017 N/A
Group strategic investments,
production and
engineering
BRREE 59 REEREH ERASENKRRE £ 201768A18 2017%5A8H TR
ERTR

Mr. Ho Pui Lam 41 Company secretary  Management of corporate ~ September 29, September 20, 2017 N/A
Joseph governance and 2018
company secretarial
matters, participation in
the making of material
business decisions and
development of the
business strategy
fbREE 4 NAHE ERARMABALANES 2018598208  2017F9A20R i
H 2EEREBRER
e R R
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The Company has received the confirmation of the independence issued
by the Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and is of the opinion that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent of the Company.

CHANGES TO THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

According to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, during the Reporting
Period, there is no change made to the information disclosed by Directors
pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that may not be terminated by
the employer within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and five
highest paid individuals are stated under Note 13 in the Financial
Statements. The range of remuneration of the senior management are as
follows:

ARBCEREFEIFNTESRE TR
B3 BGBENBLUERAE - ARA/FE
BY FATEFEHBHILINARA -

EEERNED

RIE LR AIZE13.51B(1) 1§ - RS HIA -
BERE ETHRAIE13.512)KE (@) ZE(e)&
KE(Q)BMERE < BRI EE

o

EERBESH

BEARREFRARRIEE[FMEAF
IR EEIN —FARRIEMBAX NS
ECEERERINORBEEL -

EERSREERNEH

AAREERELREHALHIMOHEH
REBBMANES - B RE B HHEE
T :

Number of
Range of Remuneration (HK$) Senior Management
e E s ) SREEEBAK
0-1,000,000 0
1,000,001-1,500,000 0
1,500,001-2,000,000 0
2,000,001-2,500,000 4
6,000,001-6,500,000 1

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR CONNECTED
ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

None of the Directors (and their connected entities) is or was materially
interested, directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance entered into by the Company or the Controlling
Shareholders or any of their respective subsidiaries at any time during the
Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors nor their associates
had any competing interests in such business that is in direct or indirect
competition with any of the Group’s business.

THE INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, as of December 31, 2021, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code as set out in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

ﬂnued)

=(8)

EE2H

EENHFERBHER

RREHR - BEEEREBEARERE
EEKEENMEERGEOESRHREET
A5 e o

EERSREEERRG - HER
D RESNERRXR

BRI XFTIRERE SN - B E2021F 128318 -
BEEERARAETESENAARHET
FEEEEE (B & R EH R B EHI S XVER)
R - ABERMSESTR - BERIEES
NEE GBI EXVERET7 N ESH HAME AR
AR BB EMERSAR - IRE
BE RIS 5P E35215 BR8N % I AT T
ERMHTERSOAR - SR ETRA
FrEiZ T RIZEA S AR r R B BB ZFTH
E s A R ©

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
HAEARFE

BAITRAAE

BEgE B, EnittE R BE NN BE DL
Mr. Yang®" Interest in controlled corporation 3,122,444,928(L) 70.33%
B AED R EE RS 3,122,444,928(L) 70.33%
Mr. Han Qinliang Beneficial interest 300,000(L) 0.01%
B AL BEnEBA 300,000(L) 0.01%
Mr. Wang Feng Shan Beneficial interest 432,000(L) 0.01%
FRLEE BEnEBA 432,000(L) 0.01%
Mr. Yang Lu Beneficial interest 3,130,000(L) 0.07%
Bt BEnEBA 3,130,000(L) 0.07%

(L)  denotes long positions

Note:

(1) Texson is wholly-owned by Mr. Yang. Accordingly, Mr. Yang is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Texson.

(L) sEREFA
Mt -

(1) ERHRAGELEREES Bl HEE
BRARERREENRD P HREEES -
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN
SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors of the Company, as of December 31,
2021, the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) had interest and short positions in the Shares, or
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, or which had already been notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange:

EFRRRRRAD S

TARBESFA - HE2021F 128318 -
TIHAL(ESHARAEESERINDA
NGO SHERO T - BERBIZIHFK
GBI EXVEE 2R EIHEHAME AR
AR R AR - IIRBRES RAEGIIE
336147E L BRI SR 16 P I8 & so Ay i s T2
B REMEARARREBHIERZ KR

P

o

)

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital in

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
LR N

ERITRALRE

EEpnE B, RmtEg RDEE MBI E ot
Texson Beneficial interest 3,122,444,928(L) 70.33%
ZFF ey 3,122,444,928(L) 70.33%

(L)  denotes long positions
Notes:

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2021, the Directors of the
Company were not aware of any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interest or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein, or which had already been notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On February 21, 2019 (the “Adoption Date”), the shareholders adopted
the Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The terms of the
Share Option Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
Participants (as defined in the following paragraph) to contribute to the
Company and motivate them to higher levels of performance, and to
enable the Company to recruit high caliber employees and attract or
retain human resources that are valuable to the Group.

WHO MAY JOIN

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to subscribe for
such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set out in the Share
Option Scheme (“Options”) to any employee, executive director or non-
executive director (including independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group (the “Participants”).

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Maximum
Number of Shares”) and any other Share Option Scheme of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately upon completion of the Global Offering, however, that,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules:

(i)  the Company may, at any time as the Board may think fit, seek
approval from our Shareholders to increase the Maximum Number
of Shares, up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue at the
date of approval by our Shareholders in general meeting. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other
scheme of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
or any other scheme of the Company) shall not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the new Maximum Number of Shares. The
Company will send a circular containing the details and information
required under the Listing Rules to the Shareholders;

(i) the Company may seek separate approval from the Shareholders in
general meeting to permit the granting of Options which will result
in the number of Shares in respect of all Options granted exceeding
the then Maximum Number of Shares, provided that the Options
exceeding the then Maximum Number of Shares are granted
only to Participants specifically identified by the Company before
Shareholders’ approval is sought. The Company will send a circular
containing the details and information required under the Listing
Rules to the Shareholders;

E=gRE(E)

=l

BREGFIEERN2EE(ERR TR EMH
HEVARARBEHERL B REELE
ERR - UREAARIEAFRESERES
YRS HBEBEHANEEAEBENANER

ASEAL

\

S22 ERBREBRESBIFTERI&E
RAAREBERKERBREMEE - ST
EEFMTES(RIEBIFNTER (2
HE])R2ARBEE R A AR R E
(B -

ReROHE

RATE AR AR B AR 5T 8 N AN SR B A (] At B
B HERT B3 TR B AP A BB R T A RE AT
MEREENEE (REBROHEBE D - &HTE
HBREEEHREE KRN D EITRNAH
M10% @ HEEEST LR RIMEIRET ¢

() ARAATREZFERAGENEME
) = SRR SR HE /B 32 N AR 17 &= = AR 1 &L
B &Z5BREAKREARSHERH
BETRMDAI10% ° 7RI & 3B A
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EOBEnHBEBHER &R EE
mEkE  EBHERESROEE
MEBBRBERR TARRERS
BERAERCIHENDEE - KQF
MRARRFHHAE LMRARENF
BRERNBEK
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(i)~ the total maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other options granted and
yet to be exercised under another scheme of the Company will not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company if this will result in such limit
being exceeded.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to each Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as of the date of grant.
Any further grant of Options in excess of the 1% limit will be separately
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. The Company will send a
circular to the Shareholders disclosing the identity of the Participant,
the number and terms of Options to be granted to the Participant, and
containing the details and information required under the Listing Rules.
The number and terms (including the subscription price) of Options to
be granted to the Participant must be fixed before the approval of the
Shareholders and the date of the Board meeting proposing the grant will
be taken as the offer date for the purpose of calculating the subscription
price of those Options.

GRANTING OPTIONS TO CONNECTED PERSONS

Where any offer of the grant of an Option is proposed to be made to
a director (other than an independent non-executive director), chief
executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates, the offer must be
approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors (excluding any
Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee of an Option).
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Report of the Board of Directors (Co

Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all Options already granted and to be granted
(including Options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue; and (ii) having
an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares at the date
of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of Options
will be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and approval by
the Shareholders in general meeting at which all connected persons of
the Company must abstain from voting in favor at such general meeting
and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options will be taken as a poll.

PERFORMANCE TARGET AND CONDITIONS FOR
VESTING

No performance targets are to be achieved before an Option can be
exercised.

SUBSCRIPTION PRICE

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on
the exercise of an Option shall be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and notified to a Participant, which shall be at least
the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the relevant offer
date in respect of such Option;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the relevant offer date in
respect of such Options or where the Company has been listed for
less than five trading days, the new issue price shall be used as the
closing price; or

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

ﬂnued)
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LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on the Adoption Date, i.e. February 20, 2029, after which period no further
Options will be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any Options granted before that. Options granted before
that but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

OPTION GRANTED

No option has been granted under the Scheme during the Reporting
Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into any contracts
in respect of the management and administration of all or any significant
portion of the business (except for such service contracts entered into
with the Group’s Directors and all employees) and there existed no such
contracts in respect of the management and administration of all or any
significant portion of the business (except for such service contracts
entered into with the Group’s Directors and all employees).

During the Reporting Period, the Group renewed the service contracts
with nine Directors of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We have entered into some transactions with connected persons of the
Company. In accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, such
transactions have constituted Continuing Connected Transactions of the
Company.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

BT SR HIIR

ERBRETEERMBRR T - BIRETE A
RMBBHEI ZE-AF=A=+H)#5F10
FRNERRER - KNG — PITHER
o ERERERTEIMIE AR T R_H D
WAENBSHHBE R AR - AFELLATR AT
RERRIEIT 2 A o AR B EMRITER
B EAS B A - WA R RIS RT BIM
BFRATLE ©

B RO B A i

HIA - SEEREF SR B ERBR

off

ik

REpD HEBHETR MITHR ITAERT MR A4
(BEAEEEER2BEEFTZNRE ALK
5N - BBEFAER AR BREMNERED
EBNEERITR TR L AEA & 49 (AR
SEEER2RBERIZMRBELRIN o

WERA - AEBERARRNBEEETR
BEK -
BREXS

BPEEARRBEALITILETRS - 1R
BETRAUE4AE BFEZXZHEBERAEAR
AINFBRER S o



Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

PROJECT SERVICES FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

The Company entered into a project services framework agreement
on February 22, 2019 (the “Project Services Framework Agreement”)
and a supplementary agreement respectively on April 29, 2020 and
September 15, 2021 with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang
Group will provide project design, construction management and general
contracting services to the Group in relation to our various initiatives to
upgrade our energy saving and environmental protection capabilities and
improve the efficiency and quality of our existing large-scale production
facilities in light of the adoption by the relevant PRC government
authorities of more stringent energy saving and environmental protection
requirements. Relevant members of Xuyang Group may enter into
separate contracts with the Group to set out specific terms and conditions
of the relevant services in accordance with the principles provided in the
Project Services Framework Agreement.

The initial term of the Project Services Framework Agreement and any
separate contracts entered into under it expired on December 31, 2021
and such term was renewed on December 31, 2021 until December 31,
2024 with mutual written consent of the Company and Xuyang Holding
and approval in accordance with applicable laws, regulations and the
Listing Rules. The Group is free to contract with other independent third
parties for the relevant services if Xuyang Group is unable to provide such
services or the terms that Xuyang Group offers become less favorable to
the Group than those offered by other independent third parties.

Xuyang Holding is a company wholly-owned by our Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Yang and his spouse. Pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1),
Mr. Yang, an Executive Director and our Controlling Shareholder, is a
connected person of the Company, and thus, Xuyang Holding is an
associate of Mr. Yang and a connected person of the Company.

While the Group could procure independent third parties to provide
such services, the Group considers that the Project Services Framework
Agreement is beneficial to the Group as:

(i)  the project design and construction management of various
chemical production facilities requires certain technical expertise
and experience in the design and construction management of
coal, coking and refined chemicals systems and facilities which
Xuyang Group can provide;

(i)~ Xuyang Group has extensive knowledge of our existing production
facilities and our technical and operational requirements, and may
thus be more efficient in implementing the projects; and

(i) the terms and prices offered by Xuyang Group may be more
favorable than what we may obtain from independent third parties.
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The Group conducts a public tender process for each project for which
we require project design, construction management and general
contracting services. Interested bidders would be selected on the bases
of the prices proposed, the technical specifications achievable, the
business model and background of the bidders, payment terms proposed
and the estimated delivery dates, and the bidder offering the best overall
terms would be awarded the project. As such, the fees for the services
provided by Xuyang Group under the Project Services Framework
Agreement would be in line with the prices proposed by Xuyang Group in
its submitted bids, and the Group would compare such bids with the bids
submitted by other independent third parties.

The amounts of fees charged by Xuyang Group with respect to the project
services for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB301,949,000
(tax-exclusive).

INTEGRATED PROCUREMENT FRAMEWORK
AGREEMENT

The Company entered into a procurement framework agreement
on February 22, 2019 and a supplemental procurement framework
agreement respectively on April 29, 2020 and September 15, 2021
(together we called as the “Chemicals Procurement Framework
Agreements”) with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang Group
shall provide to our Group certain water purification chemicals for sewage
treatment in accordance with the principles set out in the Chemicals
Procurement Framework Agreements. Pursuant to the Chemicals
Procurement Framework Agreements, Xuyang Group shall provide the
Group with certain water purification chemicals for sewage treatment in
accordance with the principles set out therein. In view of the operational
requirements and development strategies of the Group as well as the
market conditions, the Group will also procure thermal coal from Xuyang
Group for power and heat generation in the course of its daily production
and operation on top of the water purification chemicals under the
Chemicals Procurement Framework Agreements.

The initial term of the Chemicals Procurement Framework Agreements and
any separate contracts entered into under it expired on December 31,
2021 and such term was renewed on December 31, 2021 until December
31, 2024 with mutual written consent of the Company and Xuyang Holding
and approval in accordance with applicable laws, regulations and the
Listing Rules. The Group is free to contract with other independent third
parties for the relevant services if Xuyang Group is unable to provide such
services or the terms that Xuyang Group offers become less favorable to
the Group than those offered by other independent third parties.

Xuyang Holding is a company wholly-owned by our Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Yang and his spouse. Pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1),
Mr. Yang, an Executive Director and our Controlling Shareholder, is a
connected person of the Company, and thus, Xuyang Holding is an
associate of Mr. Yang and a connected person of the Company.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

While the Group could procure independent third parties to provide
such products, the Group considers that the Chemicals Procurement
Framework Agreement is beneficial to the Group as:

(i)  Xuyang Group can provide stable supply of water purification
chemicals and thermal coal;

(i) based on the past transactions, Xuyang Group has extensive
knowledge of the Group’s requirements for water purification
chemicals and thermal coal, and is capable of providing products
that meet the Group’s operational and quality requirements; and

(i)  the terms and prices offered by Xuyang Group may be more
favorable than what the Group may obtain from independent
thirdparties.

The amount of fees charged by Xuyang Group with respect to the
chemicals procurement for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB691,804,000 (tax-exclusive).

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) for the Project Services Framework Agreement is less than 5%, the
transactions under the Project Services Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company which are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but exempt
from the circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION BY THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the aforementioned continuing connected transactions and confirmed that

the transactions have been conducted:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with relevant agreement governing the relevant
transactions, on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

EEgWmE(E)

CONFIRMATION BY THE AUDITOR

The auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, have issued a
letter to the Board, confirming that for the year ended December 31, 2021,
in respect of the aforementioned continuing connected transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the transactions have not been approved by the Board of Directors;

2. the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

38 the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements; and

4. the amount of each of the transactions has exceeded its annual cap
mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Note 39 to the Financial Statements discloses the related party
transactions of the Company in accordance with IFRS. The transactions
disclosed therein between the Company and the following parties
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules: Mr. Yang
Xuegang, Ms. Lu Xiaomei, Texson and the entities controlled by Mr. Yang
Xuegang. During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On February 20, 2019, the Controlling Shareholders have entered into
a Deed of Non-competition, pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders agreed that, except for the supply of coal as described
above, (i) he or she or it will not engage in, participate in or assist others
to engage or participate in any business that competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with our business within the PRC, Hong
Kong or any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates,
and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to engage in any
business that competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business (the “Competing Businesses”) in the PRC, Hong Kong or
any part of the world in which any member of the Group operates; and
(i) he or she or it will inform us of any new business opportunities of the
Competing Businesses, and use his or her or its best efforts to procure
such opportunities be made available to us.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

A% R HERR

EEZSEWE AR RZERESHER S
FHEDITH LS ERER HMER IR - R
ﬁimmimﬂmatif FHE EaisE
BERD  BERTEITMEERE BEHE
RBE

1. ZERHAREEEESHME

2. RERINMBERTEAZRALE

B2 EEECRHIT

3. RERHRMBEEAFERERREE
AT ¢ R

4. FEXRGEEBBLIFBEXRHZ
FELMR -

BAE SR 5

Bt 765 ¥ 2% P 52 39 T AR 13 81 R Bt 75 i o5 ZE R
WERRBNER TS - RIBLTHRAE
14AE » ERFIEBEARAENTET 2H
MR SEUARRINBER ZRFEMER
% BEREL  BIMELE FTRHEES
ERALEEFNER REBEHR - ARF
—EETETRAB4ABRE °

BFTmFRE

12019524200 » #ERRRE RIS
RE - Bt SERRRRE - R LER
RSN (WVETEEFEER - FAERLE
B{ERK R R RRLEXFOH RERE T
= 2HENB MG ARE LS BT ERA
R SETS B I Sk R R A S S AT BE R A
RZERS - A IR (B E P B & R (W@ M) T
TE - FELAAKBEEARERRARLEER
%ﬁﬁ&ﬂmﬁ%%&ﬂﬁ&ﬁ%%%ﬁ%
SRR BT R REERBRF RS (3

FEKD R mﬁhﬂAﬁﬁ SR Y30k
M EBRELBRAL KK MESHE
e -



Report of the Board of Directors (Con

Each of the Controlling Shareholders have also undertaken in the Deed of
Non-competition that during the term of such agreement, he or she or it
will not, and will procure its subsidiaries (where applicable) not to:

° directly or indirectly engage in or participate in, or assist others
to engage in or participate in, any Competing Businesses in
any form (including but not limited to investments, mergers and
acquisitions, joint ventures, cooperation agreements, partnerships,
contractual arrangements or purchases of shares of listed or private
companies) within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates;

° assist any entity other than the Group to engage in any Competing
Businesses within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates; or

° engage in any Competing Businesses (directly or indirectly) in any
manner.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible
for examining, reviewing, considering and determining whether to adopt
and accept the new business opportunities referred to the Company by
the Controlling Shareholders.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed that they complied with the
Deed of Non-competition during the Reporting Period. The independent
non-executive Directors of the Company have examined and reviewed the
implementation of the Deed of Non- competition and have confirmed that,
during the Reporting Period, the Controlling Shareholders fully complied
with the deed and there had no violation of the deed.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the retirement and employee benefits plans of the Group are set
out under Note 38 of the Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Please refer to “Corporate Governance Report — Compliance of the Code”
in this annual report for details.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

When it applied for the listing of its Shares, the Company applied to the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange has
granted the Company a waiver that the minimum public float requirement
under Rule 8.08(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules be reduced and the
minimum percentage of the Shares from time to time held by the public to
be the higher of (i) 22.1%, the percentage of Shares to be held by the
public immediately after the completion of the global offering (assuming
the over-allotment option is not exercised); and (ii) such percentage of
Shares to be held by the public after the exercise of the over-allotment
option.

Based on the Company’s publicly available information and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, as of the Latest Practicable Date, the number
of Shares in public hands represents approximately 29.67% of the total
issued share capital of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and as of the Latest Practicable Date, the
Company (including but not limited to) had purchased and maintained
a group liability insurance for the Directors of the Company and its
associated companies (as defined for such term under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Financial
Statements as for the year ended December 31, 2021 prepared in
accordance with IFRS.
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Report of the Board of Directors (Continued)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants is appointed as
the auditor for the Financial Statements as for the year ended December
31, 2021 prepared in accordance with IFRS. Such Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS as stated herein this annual report
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants and a standard unqualified audit report has been issued.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, there was no change in the
auditor of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

By Order of the Board
Yang Xuegang
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 25, 2022
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRS

The Board of Directors of the Company has hereby submitted
its Corporate Governance Report for the Reporting Period to the
Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE

The Company focuses on maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for purposes of enhancing the value for shareholders and
protecting their interests. The Company has adopted such provisions of
the Code as stated in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) and
Corporate Governance Report provided in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Company has established and perfected the corporate
governance structure in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
Code and has set up a series of corporate governance system. During
the Reporting Period, the Company has been observing all mandatory
provisions of the code as stipulated in the Corporate Governance
Code except the provisions of C.2.1 (please refer to below for detailed
explanation).

The Board of Directors will continue to examine and review, from time
to time, the Company’s corporate governance practices and operation
in order to meet the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules and to
protect the shareholders’ interests.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS CONDUCTED BY
DIRECTORS AND THE RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the standard code against which the Directors
of Listed Issuers conduct securities transactions as provided in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Standard Code”), taking such Code against
which the Directors of the Company may conduct securities transactions.

Upon specific enquiry conducted by the Company, all the Directors
have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, they have been fully
observing the Standard Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (C

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Composition of Board of Directors

The Board comprises nine Directors, including six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Directors have been appointed with a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation requirements under the Articles of Association
of the Company.

The Company has at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board), and among
whom, at least one Independent Non-executive Director must
possess professional qualifications or accounting knowledge
or professional knowledge related to finance management in
compliance with the provisions of the Listing Rules. Moreover, after
taking into consideration of the factors regarding the evaluation
of the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the written
confirmation of all Independent Non- executive Directors, the Board
of Directors believes that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
are independent individuals.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Board of Directors of the Company comprises the following:

ARRESSAKMT

Name Age  Sex Position Appointment Date
®eE Fie MH B ZERY

Mr. Yang Xuegang 57 M Executive Director, chairman of the Board and chief executive officer November 8, 2007
BEEEE 57 s BTES BESTRARTHERN 200711 A8H

Mr. Zhang Yingwei 50 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group July 24, 2009
REERAE 50 s BTERHRASEE R 20097 A24H

Mr. Han Qinliang 48 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group May 18, 2011
Bkt 48 s BITEERASEE R 201145R18H

Mr. Wang Fengshan 63 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
FRIWLEAE 63 s BITEFRASEE R 201859 A29H

Mr. Wang Nianping 59 M Executive Director and vice president of the Group September 29, 2018
IFEFRE 59 Es BITEERASEE B 201859 A29H

Mr. Yang Lu 31 M Executive Director September 29, 2018
B EE 31 3 WITES 2018F9A29H

Mr. Kang Woon 59 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
RBRAE 59 s BAFRTES 201859 A29H

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 52 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
REES & 52 3 BUERTES 2018494 29H

Mr. Wang Yinping 61 M Independent Non-executive Director September 29, 2018
FaIFEAE 61 3 BUERTES 2018494 29H

The Directors may, at the Company’s expense, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances. The Company
will provide separate independent professional advice to Directors
upon request to assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the
Company.

Before each Board meeting, the senior management will provide
relevant information pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to the operational and
financial performance of the Group. Where any Director requires
more information than is supplied by the senior management, each
Director has the right to separately and independently communicate
with the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries.
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Corporate Governance Report (C

Job Duties and Authority of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be accountable to the Shareholders
and have the duty to report to the General Meeting. The Board
of Directors is responsible for convening the General Meeting,
implementing the resolutions of the General Meeting, determining
the operational plan and investment proposals of the Company,
setting up the annual financial budget proposal, final accounts,
profit distribution proposal, proposal for increase or decrease of
capital and others, deciding on the establishment of the Company’s
management authority, determining the appointment or dismissal
of chief executive officer, chief financial officer and other senior
management officers, formulating the basic management system
of the Company and determining the establishment of the special
committees of the Board of Directors.

Job Duties and Authority of the Senior Management

The senior management is responsible for the specific
implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors and of
the daily business management of the Company, which includes
formulating (i) the Company’s operating plan and investment
proposal, (ii) the plan of establishing the internal management
authority, (iii) the basic management system of the Company and (iv)
the Company’s specific regulations.

(b)

(c)
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
rEREAHE(E)

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS EESEgBREE

During the Reporting Period, the Company convened a total of fourteen RIEHA - ARae X8R+t NAESS
Board meetings and one general meeting. The attendance of the FEE-ARERG - ESFSHESRBLE
meetings by the Directors is as follows: FanT™
Board meetings EEggR
Number of Number of Times of
meetings should meetings attendance by
Name Position attend attended Attendance rate alternate
#H B BLEEERE CHESERE HE=E ZREHERE
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 14 14 100% -
BEREE HITES 14 14 100% -
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 14 14 100% -
RAEERE HITES 14 14 100% =
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 14 14 100% -
B kL HITESR 14 14 100% =
Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 14 14 100% -
FRWEE HITES 14 14 100% -
Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 14 14 100% -
IFEFEE WITEF 14 14 100% -
Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 14 14 100% -
BTt HiTES 14 14 100% -
Mr. Kang Woon Independent
Non-executive Director 14 14 100% -
BELE BAUFMTESE 14 14 100% -
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry Independent
Non-executive Director 14 14 100% -
RERELLE BUFRTESE 14 14 100% =
Mr. Wang Yinping Independent
Non-executive Director 14 14 100% -
FalFEE BUFRTESE 14 14 100% -
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General meeting BRAE
Number of Number of Times of
meeting should meetings attendance by
Name Position attend attended Attendance rate alternate
®E B ELHESEZERE CHRSERY HER ZREHERE
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 1 1 100% -
ZE b WITES 1 1 100% =
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 1 1 100% -
REELE WITES 1 1 100% -
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 1 1 100% -
BEYEE WITES 1 1 100% -
Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director 1 1 100% -
FRWEE WITES 1 1 100% -
Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director 1 1 100% -
TEFEE WITES 1 1 100% -
Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director 1 1 100% -
Bt WITES 1 1 100% -
Mr. Kang Woon Independent
Non-executive
Director 1 1 100% -
BERE BIUFRTESE 1 1 100% =
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry  Independent
Non-executive
Director 1 1 100% -
REEEE BIUFRTESE 1 1 100% =
Mr. Wang Yinping Independent
Non-executive
Director 1 1 100% -
F3ITEE BIUFRTESE 1 1 100% =
2021 3R
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TERERME(E)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Yang is our chairman and chief executive officer. In accordance with
Rule C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as provided in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be held by the same person.
The Board of Directors has noticed that there was deviation from Rule
C.2.1 of the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. However,
with extensive experience in the coke, coking chemicals and refined
chemicals industries, Mr. Yang is responsible for the overall management
and business development, the operations of our subsidiaries and their
corresponding production facilities and human resources of the Group
and has been instrumental to our growth and business expansion since
our establishment in 1995. The Board considers that vesting the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial
to the management of the Group. The balance of power and authority
is ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board
currently comprises six Executive Directors (including Mr. Yang) and
three Independent Non-executive Directors and therefore has a strong
independence element in its composition.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Directors have been appointed for a term of three years,
after which they may be re-elected. At each general meeting, one third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of members after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
The procedures and process of appointment and re-election of directors
are laid down in the Articles of Association. The Nomination Committee
shall be responsible for nominating new Directors and then submitting
such nomination to the Board of Directors for review and consideration.
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A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company
before the expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any
claim which such Director may have for damages for any breach of any
contract between him and the Company) and member of the Company
may by ordinary resolution appoint another in his place. Unless otherwise
determined by the Company in general meeting, the number of Directors
shall not be less than two. There is no maximum number of Directors.

TRAINING AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Directors of the Company actively
participated in seminars on the obligations and responsibilities required
to be fulfilled for being the directors of a listed company in Hong Kong,
as well as the obligations for the listing compliance of a listed company
in relation to the continuous professional developments in the following
manner:
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Name Position

o= B

Type of continuous
professional development
programmes (Note)

FEEXBRABER (D)

Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director

HBEmEELE HITES

Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director
RRELE HITES

Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director
BE =L HITEE

Mr. Wang Fengshan Executive Director
FRLEE HITESE

Mr. Wang Nianping Executive Director
FTHEFEE HITE=R

Mr. Yang Lu Executive Director
B EE HITE=S

Mr. Kang Woon Independent Non-executive Director
==L BIYFMTES

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry
REEELE

Mr. Wang Yinping
E5IFEE

Independent Non-executive Director
BIFNITESR
Independent Non-executive Director
BIENITESR

NN MNDNDNDMNDNDNDNDNDDND

= N
Qo
N

1502
182
15012
182
15012
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Notes:

-

Attending seminars/courses for development of professional skills and
knowledge.

2. Reading materials in relation to regular update to statutory requirements,
listing rules and other relevant topics related to listed company

COMPANY SECRETARY AND HIS TRAINING

Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph acts as the company secretary and is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial and accounting operations and
internal controls, and provides financial and business advice to the Board
and senior management of the Group. Mr. Ho shall report significant
events to the chairman. The profile of Mr. Ho is stated in the section
of “Profiles of the Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
During the Reporting Period, Mr. Ho undertook more than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should be held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Agenda
of board meetings are presented to the Directors for comments and
approval. The Board of Directors is provided with adequate, timely and
reliable information about the Group’s business and developments before
each board meeting at which the Directors actively participate and hold
informed discussions. A notice of regular board meeting shall be given to
all directors at least 14 days before the meeting is convened pursuant to
the requirements of the Code, and such notice shall state the date, time
and venue of the meeting to be convened and the format to be adopted
of such meeting. Other interim board meetings have reasonable notices
be delivered to all Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Company shall
publish an announcement at least 7 clear business days in advance
of the date fixed for any board meeting at which the declaration,
recommendation or payment of a dividend is expected to be decided or
at which any announcement of the profits or losses for any year, half-year,
quarter-year or other period is to be approved for publication.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

it

1. 2NEMERIXERERABNHATES
ARIE °

2. HMEAHEHEMNEEELR  ETHA
K ER AR E AR R

NEIME KA

MHHREEEETARNE  BEEEALE
R BF T8 K & B R B R A R ARSI - S
AEBEES RSN ERBREVHE L ES
BE - MEEBARAEIEREEANSEMN - @€
EBRESERAREEERERERER
FE|—8&h - MIBEIA - FIELEDEITHEIBI5
N VBRI I DA R ELA BE R AN

5388

i

%
£33

BREAEEATANTAGIECSE &
FEATHRTERNEZTRSHRAESFR
LPROTUR - BT R -EXEGHE
EAEREBEFRHERILME - BERAEE
EBRBERORSH RERAEENERE
REZESIRRHTESTS  CEFTHE
B2 EREMEER T o REBETRIOR
T EFETHERBAEENERAHER
B RD4BRAMEERREYE  ZBES
HyeZCMAH KR RZEEE
RANERN - EFZ9HMBERSZREHEAR
BERTRAMEESHEDL -

RIBEMRAURE  ARRAEENEES
EREERTAYNESLETEEEAT
BAE  RELEHREEIR - ZEIRM
RE - FHAEERIFE  FFE - F
RSk HE b A B BRI M sk B B A 2 5 A T
oo

f



Corporate Governance Report (C

The quorum for a board meeting shall be the presence of two Directors.
Directors may participate in any meeting of the Board by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment through which
all persons participating in the meeting can communicate with each other
simultaneously and instantaneously and, for the purpose of counting a
quorum, such participation shall constitute presence at a meeting as
if those participating were present in person. The company secretary
is responsible for preparing and safekeeping the minutes of the board
meetings and ensuring that the Directors can enquire about such minutes.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has strictly complied, and will
continue to comply, with the provisions in relation to the meetings of the
Board of Directors.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors delegates certain responsibilities to various
committees. In accordance with relevant laws, regulations and the Articles
of Association of the Company, we have formed three board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in accordance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has expressly stated the
scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry, Mr. Kang
Woon and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members of the Audit Committee are
Independent Non- executive Directors. Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in ensuring that
the Company has an effective financial reporting, risk management and
internal control system in compliance with the Listing Rules, overseeing
the integrity of the financial statements of the Company, selecting, and
assessing the independence and qualifications of, the Company’s
external auditor, as well as ensuring effective communication between the
Directors and the internal and external auditors of the Company.
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As for the selection, appointment and dismissal of external auditors or
resignation of auditors, the Board and the Audit Committee have reached
a consensus.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings was held by the Audit
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out below:

BRSNS BEI PR - RIERBREREE
MEHEEE  EFQHEBERZEGCER—
HMER -

RBERAR - EXZERCETHEREH °
BERZBeERKENHFELCHEHEIIMT

Name of committee members Number of meetings attended/should attend Attendance rate
EEERENR BHE EHEEERE HER

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 5/5 100%
REEELE 5/5 100%

Mr. Kang Woon 5/5 100%

EB%AE 5/5 100%

Mr. Wang Yinping 5/5 100%
FaIFEE 5/5 100%

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee:
1. assessed the independence and objectivity of external auditors;
2. advised the Board on re-appointment of external auditors;

&) reviewed the internal control and risk management systems of the
Company;

4. reviewed the audited annual results for the year ended December
31, 2020;

[} reviewed the unaudited interim results for the period ended June
30, 2021; and

6. reviewed the audit plan 2021.
In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective

communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and has
expressly stated the scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Kang
Woon, Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry and Mr. Wang Yinping. All members are
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Kang Woon is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include establishing
and reviewing the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on employee benefit arrangements. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for determining the vesting of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Remuneration
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is set out below:
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FHZEENIEREBRHIERERAR
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BERNZHANESTSRHEES - THES
eNBEEEREBRESBIR L ORERE
BRE o

RIEEA - HFWEESERIT KNSR -
FNEESeERKENTELEEHIIT

Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

ZEEREHE BHE EBHESERE HE=
Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%
REBSLE 11 100%
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 11 100%
RERERLE 11 100%
Mr. Wang Yinping 11 100%
E5IFEE 11 100%

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee:

1. reviewed the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
Senior Management’s remuneration; and

2. reviewed and approved the remuneration proposals of individual
executive Directors and Senior Management, as well as
non-executive Directors for the year 2021, with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives formulated by the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, and has expressly stated the scope of job duties of
such committee in writing. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Yang Xuegang, Mr. Kang Woon and Mr. Yu Kwok
Kuen Harry. Except for Mr. Yang who is an executive Director, all other
members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Yang is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors to
determine their eligibility, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-election and removal of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held by the Nomination
Committee. The attendance record of each member of the Nomination
Committee is set out below:

RERLE®

ARRCHRE EMRAME4REERER
SAKZIREREEE YEEAHZZES
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Name of committee members

Number of meetings attended/should attend

Attendance rate

ZEEREMA BHiE ELHEEEAE HE=
Mr. Yang Xuegang 11 100%
AE T E 17 100%
Mr. Kang Woon 11 100%
FRBEE 11 100%
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry i 100%
REIRESE 1/1 100%

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited



Corporate Governance Report (C

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. made recommendations to the Board as to nomination of Directors
for re-election at the 2020 AGM; and

B assessed the independence of INEDs;

4. considered and assess the performance of the Board and consider
such performance against the boards of comparable companies;
and

(5% monitored the implementation of, and reviewed, the board diversity
policy of the Company.

In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and effective
communication amongst themselves through channels such as e-mail
and electronic communications to ensure the discharge of their duties.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and
to support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development, we have adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, we
seek to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors when selecting candidates to the Board, including but not
limited to gender, skills, age, professional experience, knowledge,
cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of service.
Appointments will ultimately be based on merit and the contributions the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board believes that such
merit-based appointments will best enable the Company to service our
Shareholders and other stakeholders.
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The Nomination Committee of the Board is responsible for reviewing
the structure, number of members, and composition of the Board of
Directors. In addition, the Committee makes recommendations to the
Board relating to the size and structure of the Board of Directors based
on the Company’s strategic plans, business operations, asset size and
shareholding structure. The Committee also discusses and reviews the
selection standard, the nomination and appointment process of relevant
Directors, and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors.
In identifying candidates, the Company solicits candidates through
recruitment agencies, referrals by existing directors, and recommendation
by shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association. The candidates will be approved by the Board of Directors.

The Board Diversity Policy needs to be followed when the Nomination
Committee of the Board makes recommendations on the candidates
or when the Board of Directors makes nomination. The Nomination
Committee of the Board is responsible for monitoring the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing it at the appropriate time to
ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
amendments when necessary and make recommendations to the Board
of Directors for final approval.

Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including in
overall management and strategic development, sales and marketing,
finance and accounting, law, consulting and corporate governance,
as well as experience in the coke industry. Our Directors also obtained
degrees in various majors including business administration, coal
chemistry, metallurgical engineering, industrial economy administration,
accounting, statistics, law, international trade and chemical engineering.
The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing one-third of the members
of the Board. Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging
from 31 years old to 63 years old. Out of the nine Directors, only Mr. Yang
Xuegang and Mr. Yang Lu are related. Taking into account our existing
business model and specific needs as well as the different backgrounds
and abilities of our Directors, the composition of the Board satisfies the
Board Diversity Policy, despite the lack of gender diversity.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the diversity of the
Board. The Nomination Committee monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy, and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy from time
to time to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
also included in our annual corporate governance report a summary of
the Board Diversity Policy together with measurable objectives set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the progress made towards
achieving those objectives, as well as the Board’s composition from a
diversity perspective.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board of Directors and concluded that the Company
had met the diversification requirements with regard to gender, skills, age,
professional experience, knowledge, cultural and education background,
ethnicity and length of service. When making the appointment and
re-appointment of Directors in the future, the Nomination Committee
will nominate new Directors pursuant to the requirements of the Board
Diversity Policy to achieve the objective of diversity in Board members.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
our Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times. In
order to ensure the internal control operate effectively, the Company has
adopted a series of internal control policies, procedures and programmes
designed to provide reasonable assurance for achieving objectives
including effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Board reviews
the risk management and internal controls annually. Highlights of the
Company’s internal control system include the following:

(a) Code of conduct. Our code of conduct explicitly communicates to
each employee our values, acceptable criteria for decision-making
and our ground rules for behavior.

(b) Internal audit. Our internal audit team regularly monitors key
controls and procedures in order to assure our management and
the Board of Directors that the internal control system is functioning
as intended. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is
responsible for supervising our internal audit function.
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Compliance with Listing Rules. Our various policies aim to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules, including but not limited to
aspects related to corporate governance, connected transactions
and securities transactions by the Directors.

(d) Enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
non-compliance incidents. The Company also adopted a number of
enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
noncompliance incidents.

We have established a set of risk management policies and measures to
identify, evaluate and manage risks arising from our operations. Our risk
management process starts with identifying the major risks associated
with our corporate strategy, goals and objectives. Each of our operating
departments is responsible for identifying and analyzing risks associated
with its function, maintaining a comprehensive risk register, preparing risk
mitigation plans, measuring effectiveness of such risk mitigation plans
and reporting the status of risk management. Our audit personnel, the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and ultimately the Board of
Directors supervise the implementation of our risk management policy at
the corporate level by bringing together each operating department, such
as quality control, research and development and sales, to collaborate on
risk issues among different functions.

The Board of Directors and the senior management are accountable for
the overall responsibility in respect of monitoring the implementation of
internal control and risk management procedures and other measures in
the Group. The Company’s risk management and internal control system
aims at managing but not eliminating the risk for not being able to achieve
the business objective. Moreover, only reasonable but not absolute
guarantee is made for materially untrue statement or loss. The Board of
Directors will conduct an examination on the Company’s risk management
and internal control system once per year. The Board of Directors has
confirmed that it has examined the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system as of December 31, 2021. The
Board believed that the Company’s risk management and internal control
system is effective and sufficient. The Company’s risk management and
internal control system can effectively guide against such risks existing in
the operation.
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Corporate Governance Report (

We have appointed and renewed the appointment of external professional
advisors (including the auditor, legal or other advisors) for provision of
professional suggestions in respect of how we observe all applicable
related laws and regulations.

THE DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has not encountered with any significant and uncertain
events and circumstances that might produce significant doubts on the
Company’s capability of its continuous operation of business. The Board
of Directors has confirmed that it is responsible for the preparation of the
Group’s Financial Statements as of December 31, 2021.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

For the Reporting Period, the Company has appointed Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, an international accounting firm,
to provide the Company with auditing service in accordance with IFRS
and the amounts of remuneration in connection to annual audit service
are RMB6.2 million. The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
to the Financial Statements are set out on pages 125 to 130 of this annual
report.

Non-audit services provided to the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2021 of approximately RMB8.06 million represented
the fee for the assurance of the environmental, social and governance
report of the Company, the review of continuous connected transactions,
the relevant services of circular of major transaction, the review of
digital factory planning project (but not including the system design
and implementation) and interim fee for review of the unaudited interim
financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
rEREAHE(E)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

SHAREHOLDERS HAVE THE RIGHT TO INITIATE AND
CONVENE THE GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the following right: Any
one or more shareholder of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one(21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group at a general
meeting. Proposals shall be sent to the Board or the company secretary
in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS ARE ENTITLED TO THE INQUIRY
RIGHT

Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries to the Board should by
sending written enquiries to the Company at its principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 2001, 20/F., Sino Plaza, No. 255
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company will deal
with all enquiries in a timely and appropriate manner.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communications with its
Shareholders is essential to enhancement of the relationship with
investors and enhancement of investors’ understanding of the Company’s
business and strategies. The Company highly values Shareholders’
opinions and suggestions, and actively organizes and conducts various
activities related to the relationship with investors in order to keep the
communications with Shareholders, and to timely satisfy the reasonable
demands of all Shareholders.

To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains its website
at http://www.risun.com where latest information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

The 2021 annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company will
be held on May 27, 2022. The notice of the AGM has been sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors may help
build more stable and consolidated shareholder base. As a result, since
the Listing, the Company has been and will be dedicated to maintaining
a higher degree of transparency, observing the Listing Rules and timely
providing investors with comprehensive and accurate information, and
sustainably performing the obligation of disclosing the information as a
listed company. The Company will strengthen its communications with
investors and let investors understand corporate strategies and business
operation by organizing road shows, participating in investors summit,
voluntary information disclosure and others.

The Company will continue to maintain open-up and effective investors
communication policies for purposes of timely providing investors with
the latest information on the Company’s business when the Company is in
compliance with the relevant regulatory provisions.
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ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the Reporting Period, there is no amendment to the Articles of
Association.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
provisions of “Comply or Explain” stated in the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide. Please refer to “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” for details.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RISUN GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Risun
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 131 to 282, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BB S ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BREETEE )

Key audit matter

BRESE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNARERREENSE

Revenue recognition from contracts with customers

BF A TR

We identified revenue recognition from contracts with
customers attributable to the coke and coking chemicals
manufacturing segment as a key audit matter because
the amount, the increase in revenue and reportable
segment result are significant. Furthermore, revenue from
contracts with customers is a key performance indicator
of the Group and therefore there is a high inherent risk of
misstatement

ﬁ&méﬁm&’ittéuuié"*ﬂéémzﬁ AU 2 T
M% HERENEFE  AAZEHE  Wa ki 28mo
BABIEER - I BEPEHWE Ea%lﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁ%xﬁlh
2 Bt FEHERRAORSEE R

As disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised revenue from contracts
with external customers attributable to the coke and
coking chemicals manufacturing segment amounting
to RMB15,900,844,000 for the year ended December
31, 2021, and increased by RMB7,185,223,000 when
compared with that of prior year.

iR A IS RRME 7P IEE - EEERREE2021F124
A EFREERRECEREEDHEENINDEE,E
#)las B A R #15,900,844,0007T + B ELBA FE LGN
AR7,185,223,0007T °
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Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition from
contracts with customers attributable to the coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing segment included:
EERBERRENEMEEDBELENT S G ORRFERD
EHEFEIE

° Understanding the key controls relevant to our audit on
revenue recognition from contracts with customers;

. TRERMEEFEONRERETEENERIEY

° Performing analytical procedures to assess the
reasonableness of the unit selling price, and compare
the quantity sales against the quantity production and
the quantity of freight charges;

s HIIHMIRFIMEEMEENSIEN - WSHESHARE
EREEBETHE

° Obtaining confirmations for the sales to the top ten
customers;

o BEAITATFHBEERIUKE

° Checking, on a sample basis, the recorded transactions
by examining the underlying supporting evidences
such as receipt notes, final settlements, delivery notes,
and sales contracts
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B Z BRI s (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kam Chiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
March 25, 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

sre oM EMEEEER

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
HiaE AR¥TFT AREFT
(Restated)
(& E )
Revenue g 7 38,430,411 19,784,866
Cost of sales and services SHE RARTER A (32,900,168) (16,561,423)
Gross profit E 5,530,243 3,223,443
Other income HA A 8 137,365 116,176
Other gains and losses Hb e K &8 9 (95,632) 27,865
Impairment losses under expected BHEEBERAET
credit loss model, net of reversal ZBERE - BEFEE 10 (115,633) (1,005)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEFAT (942,110) (789,337)
Administrative expenses THAZ (973,848) (488,237)
Profit from operations KRR 3,540,385 2,088,905
Finance costs [ELEENDIN 11 (904,931) (532,032)
Share of results of associates DI E N T EE 72,156 (4,688)
Share of results of joint ventures DMhEEEEEA 490,269 398,479
Profit before taxation BREL AR 12 3,197,879 1,950,664
Income tax expense FriSifsz 14 (601,840) (296,812)
Profit for the year FERR 2,596,039 1,653,852
Other comprehensive income Hit 2wz
Item that may be reclassified HE gt EF D2 1R IEA -
subsequently to profit or l0ss:
Exchange differences arising on BREINEREEMEN Z5
translating foreign operations 9,387 2,678
Other comprehensive income FEHMBEWE
for the year 9,387 2,678
Total comprehensive income for the FEEXHEKSAR
year 2,605,426 1,656,530
2021 3R

TEBEEBERA R
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

reaBalEMmEERaR(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
st AR¥TFT AREFT
(Restated)
(& E )
Profit for the year attributable to: A FERR
Owners of the Company ARARER A 2,613,314 1,652,990
Non-controlling interests Eealiig T (17,275) 862
2,596,039 1,653,852
Total comprehensive income for the BEFEXEKSERE
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARARERA 2,622,701 1,655,668
Non-controlling interests FEVEIR I A (17,275) 862
2,605,426 1,656,530
Earnings per share (R\MB) BRERBFALLE) 16
Basic BN 0.61 0.40
Diluted o N/A N/A
TEA NEA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sre ISR ILR

At December 31, 2021 #20214F12831H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
iz ARKEFT AREFr
(Restated)
(#TE )
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REEE 17 16,677,012 11,123,326
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 18 1,722,474 1,294,029
Goodwill [GES 19 232,435 31,808
Intangible assets EmREE 20 847,108 78,748
Interests in associates REEE N B RS 21 393,421 346,623
Interests in joint ventures REETENER 22 1,778,744 1,355,575
Other long term receivables and Hfth = BRI R FE ST IR
prepayments 23 1,929,960 2,589,411
Financial assets at fair value through BRAREFABENSREE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") 24 507,579 251,038
Deferred tax assets BERIEAE 25 125,251 187,787
Restricted bank balances SR IR THE R 28 356,000 =
Amount due from related parties e A 5 R 39(c) 80,810 =
24,650,794 17,258,345
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 26 2,189,078 1,507,383
Income tax prepayments SEANIIE ) 22,644 7,311
Other receivables Hfth fE A FRIA 27 3,605,522 1,830,232
Trade and bills receivables measured at AR EFAE M2 E KT EH
fair value through other comprehensive 2 5 EUFIE K BN E S
income (“FVTOCI") 27 951,378 1,005,281
Amounts due from related parties FEUR B 5 5R08 39(c) 2,108,128 367,717
Financial assets at FVTPL RAOnEAERNeREE 24 89,647 8,175
Restricted bank balances IR IR TAEER 28 900,073 1,294,656
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS ED 29 2,280,914 1,181,955
12,147,384 7,202,710
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RAonEHAERNEREE 24 19 52,329
Trade and other payables COE AN 30 5,283,894 3,911,642
Contract liabilities SRBE 31 2,252,747 994,517
Income tax payable FERT RIS HL 839,803 237,097
Bank and other loans HRITREA &K 32 8,209,846 7,771,801
Lease liabilities HEarE 33 71,208 27,790
Amounts due to related parties e AR 5 5108 39(c) 183,024 194,456
16,840,541 13,189,632
2021 Fik
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e B (E)

At December 31, 2021 720214F12H431H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 ARETFTT ARMFT
(Restated)
(#TE )
Net current liabilities REBAERE (4,693,157) (5,986,922)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 19,957,637 11,271,423
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other loans RITREMER 32 5,376,834 2,725,933
Lease liabilities HEarE 33 142,800 41,736
Deferred income EIEUTA 34 127,736 81,652
Deferred tax liabilities FIERTEE & 25 297,992 39,314
Long-term payables KHEER B 37 2,901,000 =
8,846,362 2,888,635
NET ASSETS EEFRE 11,111,275 8,382,788
Capital and reserves EXRGEE
Share capital & 35 383,604 354,699
Reserves & 36 10,600,906 7,884,049
Total equity attributable to owners PNGIE: S DN e b
of the Company 10,984,510 8,238,748
Non-controlling interests R 126,765 144,040
TOTAL EQUITY R 11,111,275 8,382,788

The consolidated financial statements on pages 131 to 282 were FINE282E FTHGE VM HEHRREEFTERN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on March 25, 202253 A25 At/ R TIZEW B AT A
2022 and are signed on its behalf by: TRERFEEZ:
Yang Xuegang Han Qinliang
BEM By
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes iIn Equity
/\\/T\ T_"_//\ Dm@]%

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN PN
Non-
Share Share  Merger  Reserve Safety Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve profits Total  interests equity

Bx  ROBE ANRE HEEE  22Ee  BMERE  REER B FEREE W 4ER
ANBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  AMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBUOO  AMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMBU00
NEETT AEETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note35)  (Note 36) ~ (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)

(W) W%  WEse) i) W) (B

Balance at December 31, 2019

R2019512A31 AL 354699 1377224 384869 468581 3219 (30,176) 4104017 6691404 108698 6,800,102

Business combination under 01 FLREHTH

common control in 2021 ot 3 DEARNEY) : - 205000 : : - (51564) 153436 - 15343
Balance at January 1, 2020 202051 A1 48

(restated) (®Ei) 354699 1377224 589869 468,581 32190 (30,176) 4052453 6,844,840 108698 6,953,538
Profit for the year (restated) FERH(EER) = = = - - - 1652990 1,652,990 862 1653862
Other comprehensive income A2 ERE - - - - = 2678 = 2678 = 2678
Capitalisation issue non-controling ~ FEATRERHBRRA

interests - - - - - - - - 34,480 34,480
Net transfer to safety fund FERETEES = = = = 3,688 - (3689) = 5 5
Transfer to reserve fund BPEHERS - = - 30354 5 - (303542) = 5 :
Divicends appropriation (nofe 1) BEMEMWE15) - - - - = - (261,760) (261,760 - (261,760)
Balance at December 31,2020 2020 12A31R 48

(restated) (@) 354699 1377224 589,869 172,123 35878 (27,498) 57136453 8,238,748 144040 8,382,788

Balance at December 31, 2020

RONF12A31BES 354699 1377204 384869 772,123 35,878  (27498) 5235068 6,132,363 144,040 8,276,403

Business combination under A FLREHTH

common control in 2021 (ot g DEARNEY) - - 205000 - - - (98615 106,385 - 106,385
Balance at January 1, 2021 RN E1A1R 4L

(restated) (®Ei) 354699 1377,224 589,869 772,123 35,878 (27,498) 5136453 8,238,748 144,040 8,382,788
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - - - 2613314 2613314 (17,275) 2,596,039
Other comprehensive income EhrEkE - - - - - 9,387 - 9,387 - 9,387
Net transfer to safety fund FEVERRES - - - 1,605 - (1,605) - - .
Transfer to reserve fund EPREEE - - - 395049 - - (395,049) - - -
Issue of new shares (noie 35) BRI 2,905 1,676,476 - - - - - 1,705,381 - 1,705,381
Business combination under A FLRZHTH

common control in 2021 (note 3 REABIES) - - (570,000) - - - - (570,000) - (570,000
Dividends appropriation (nofe 15)  RESRMH15) - - - - - - (1,012,320) (1,012,320) - (1,012,320)

Balance at December 31, 2021

ROAE12A31E48 383604 3,053,700 19,869 1,167,172 37483 (18,111) 6,340,793 10984510 126,765 11,111,275

2021 F3R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE
2021 2020
202145 2020
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETFT ARETFT
(Restated)
(#xE L)
Operating activities REEE
Profit before taxation BREL AT A 3,197,879 1,950,664
Adjustments for: HUATSIRFHE -
Finance costs BERA 904,931 532,032
Interest income FEBA (66,573) (39,516)
Share of results of associates DIEEE N REE (72,156) 4,688
Share of results of joint ventures DMEEELEEE (490,269) (398,479)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss HHEEEEEX T ZRERE -
model, net of reversal BBl 115,633 1,005
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BEREETE 1,125,208 668,523
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 121,776 57,904
Amortization of intangible assets B EEE 104,157 12,206
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W% - BEREBHNE 25,032 45,633
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment L&Y% - R MR EHEIE 84,594 841
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRAEEENKE (53,779) (24,619)
Deferred revenue released to profit or loss BHEZERNEERA (8,212) (6,428)
Change in fair value of financial assets/liabilities at ZAAEABENEREE BENDA
FVTPL B% 97,699 59,870
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) fE X 518 (ks 1,777 (36,430)
Operating cash flows before movements in working 284 ¢ ZBRIHNE LR ERE
capital 5,087,697 2,827,894
Increase in inventories FEEM (218,432) (543,704)
Increase in amounts due from related parties U5 BTSSR TR (521,915) (229,972)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related JE < BB 5 ZIB ORI /38 0
parties (14,251) 940
Increase in other receivables H A FEU R IE IS (941,190) (836,401)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills BAREFARMMEZEARGSTENES RE
receivables measured at FVTOCI fth FEMR R IBR A (45h0) 34,015 (305,802)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables & 5 & EAENZUECR L),/ (41,218) 472,191
Increase in contract liabilities BHBEEN 1,241,327 55,567
(Increase)/decrease in other long-term receivables E ftb & B fE Uk 2018 I F& 1+ 7008 (4240) 5L >
and prepayments (9,012) 292
Cash generated from operations KERERE 4,617,021 1,441,005
Income tax paid, net of tax refunded EFTER - MRER (411,666) (270,698)
Net cash generated from operating activites K& EHABREL TR 4,205,355 1,170,307

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flovvs (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE
2021 2020
202145 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
(k23 ARETFT ARETFT
(Restated)
(#CE )
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BELSE (3,429,614) (1,810,099)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand  HEME « BiRE RREMSHE
equipment 15,605 95,475
Purchase of right-of-use assets BEFRAREE (220,535) (50,000)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets & FFEEEFSTIA 191,765 102,318
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (20,517) (15,040)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERAAEABRENERHEE (526,904) (181,643)
Loan to third parties A= HREER (8,922) (368,367)
Repayment of loan to third parties RE=HEEER 34,000 331,000
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary U iE— IR B A BB 5% 37 (206,149) (413,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~ EER AR EFABSFENERHEE
FVTPL S RIE 36,693 145,653
Interest received BHFE 66,573 39,516
Government grants received BRI T HE B 55,998 9,776
Dividends received from a joint venture BE—REELENRE 93,496 131,804
Dividends received from associates SR AN [E) 35S 29,600 =
Placement of restricted bank balances FAZRHIRITER (4,883,473) (5,034,458)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances REERHIRITIFER 4,922,056 4,813,549
Loan to related parties ﬁ A R EER 39(c) (1,254,021)
Investments in joint ventures AMREERE 22 (14,644) -
Investments in associates REERERE (7,733) =
Net cash used in investing activities RETBDFFARE TR (5,126,726) (2,203,516)
2021 Fik
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE
2021 2020
202145 2020
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETFT ARETFT
(Restated)
(#xE L)
Financing activities AEEE
Net proceeds from issue of shares B BEITISIBF R 1,705,381 =
Capital contribution from a non-controlling — R E
shareholder - 34,480
Dividend paid to shareholders BRI (1,012,320) (261,760)
Interest paid BAFIE (1,015,483) (616,224)
Proceeds from new bank and other loans MBI R EMEFAEHE 12,243,981 9,487,710
Repayment of bank and other loans BRBTREMER (9,322,157) (7,452,790)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREARE (33,745) (13,556)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to related & BIEE A BB I, (RLD)
parties 26,450 (21,350)
Business combination under common control  FEREIEHI N E N EA G (570,000) =
Net cash from financing activities BETHELENRETE 2,022,107 1,156,510
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BE&RELSEYHEINFEE 1,100,736 123,301
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FERERELZEY
of the year 1,181,955 1,061,598
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERgEnTE (1,777) (2,944)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the HFERRERALZEY
year 2,280,914 1,181,955
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Risun Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands on November 8, 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The respective addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are stated in the section headed
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of
the Company is Texson Limited (“Texson”, the “Ultimate Holding
Company”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI"), and ultimately controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang (the “Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder”).

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 45.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to the “Group”) are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At December 31, 2021, the Group had net current liabilities of
RMB4,693,157,000. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
are of the opinion that, taking into consideration the availability
of unutilized banking facilities of the Group amounting to
RMB6,903,512,000 at the report date, of which RMB6,447,940,000
is unconditional and RMB455,572,000 is the outstanding portion
of syndicated loans for special purpose of construction of certain
production lines, and the assumption that approximately 50% of
bank loans and other banking facilities at December 31, 2021 will
be successfully renewed upon maturity, the Group has sufficient
financial resources to meet in full its financial obligation when they
fall due for the next twelve months from the date of this report.
Capital expenditure for business growth will only be taken place
when the Group obtained new sources of financing. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

—REHR
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2007 F11 ASARERERE N FIESE
22E (1961 F FE 35 LR - LirE RkiE
FEHSHEEAMK L AEREER
DA e ARBIRMDREBHAR ST
BRAR (AT ERKI £ &
DA ERE & B Bt
BN ERI DA ER—#D -

RRARNZREERA R RERZERA
BAAFERKRERARA(FRFR] @ [HE
ZEIRARD  ER—RKRRBRELES
(EBEXESDEMKINAT - I
A5 S 5T A ([ RAIE AR R ) ki
i o

RENCIENESE SN = RN
AREMBAR (R AKE &AM
BREAARE(TARE]) 27 - BA
RAIEEE AR -

GAMBRENFREE

2021128318 AEERHE
BEFEHSARKEA4,693,157,0007T ° &
REIEE(EENRE  BEELE
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#6,447,940,000C BEEL - AR
#455,572,0007T &R B E R K E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

3.

RESTATEMENTS ARISING FROM BUSINESS
COMBINATION UNDER COMMON CONTROL

On September 2, 2021, Tangshan Risun Chemicals Limited
(“Tangshan Risun Chemicals”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired 100% equity interest in Tangshan Risun
Petroleum & Chemicals Co., Ltd. (“Tangshan Risun Petroleum”) at
the consideration of RMB570,000,000, which was previously wholly-
owned by Xuyang Holding Limited (“Xuyang Holding”), a company
beneficially owned by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and his
spouse. The acquisition was referred to as the “2021 Acquisition”.

As the Group and Tangshan Risun Petroleum were under
common control of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder before
and after the 2021 Acquisition, the acquisition is considered as
a business combination under common control. The principle of
merger accounting for business combination involving businesses
under common control has therefore been applied. As a result,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared as if
Tangshan Risun Petroleum was a subsidiary of the Company ever
since it became under common control of the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder.

Accordingly, the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2020 have been restated to include the assets and
liabilities of Tangshan Risun Petroleum at carrying amounts in the
books of Xuyang Holding. The consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows have
been prepared as if Tangshan Risun Petroleum was a subsidiary of
the Group since January 1, 2020.

Respective notes to the consolidated financial statements have also
been restated. All significant intragroup transactions, balances,
income and expenses are eliminated on combination.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021
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HE2021F12A31HILFE

RESTATEMENTS ARISING FROM BUSINESS 3. HEEFTEESCASIERN
COMBINATION UNDER COMMON CONTROL Bl (&)
(CONTINUED)
As a result of the 2021 Acquisition, the relevant line items in the MR EAE2021F B SE IR - 7020204
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 12A31 ARG EEBBERPAIERE
2020 have been restated. The following table shows the effect for HEEHEM - TREVW T EEHEIEFE
each individual line item affected: CFZ
The Group Effect of
(as previously the 2021 The Group
reported) Acquisition Eliminations (restated)
AEE 2021 FUEE N 3
(ARImEEE) ZENTE R (&)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WERE 11,056,657 66,669 = 11,123,326
Right-of-use assets FRESE 1,119,374 174,655 = 1,294,029
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables HAib MR 1,825,706 4,526 = 1,830,232
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEY 1,181,390 565 = 1,181,955
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNFE 3,798,062 113,580 = 3,911,642
Amounts due to related parties FERERE R 168,006 26,450 = 194,456
Capital and Reserves ARG
Share capital AR 354,699 205,000 (205,000) 354,699
Reserves 1 7,777,664 (98,615) 205,000 7,884,049
2021 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

3. RESTATEMENTS ARISING FROM BUSINESS
COMBINATION UNDER COMMON CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

As a result of the 2021 Acquisition, the relevant line items in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2020, have been restated. The following table
shows the effect for each individual line item affected:

u]

HEEZES T RESHATSIER
it (&)

e

R EE2021FRIEEIR - {22020
F12A31H L FEMGaEE RAEM
PHRERREERERERTAIE
MEEHDEL - TREN T SEBHE
B E

The Group Effect of
(as previously the 2021 The Group
reported) Acquisition (restated)
N 3] 20215 s N3]
CARIREEE) FENTE (REit)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT ARETT

Consolidated statement of profitor 22020512831 AL FERABHER
loss and other comprehensive Ht2EkEx

income for the year ended

December 31, 2020
Administrative expenses G (441,186) (47,051) (488,237)
Consolidated statement of 22020512831 B L EERARETER

cash flows for the year ended

December 31, 2020
Operating activities BeEy 1,141,480 28,827 1,170,307
Investing activities REEH (2,194,863) (8,653) (2,203,516)
Financing activities BEES 1,177,860 (21,350) 1,156,510
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 4. FERRIERTEIRR I #5 R & %Al

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (BB B R = 22 8 )
Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective PAZNAE [ 58 1l 2 30 2 IEHE R B
for the current year PR R s 42 R
In the current year, the Group has applied the following RAFEE  AEECEREREE VB
amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards WERBEREANUTHBEE SR
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board s ((ERgsrElBREe DEMAR
(“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for 20211 A1 Ak 2z BB mFE M
the annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2021 for the o 1l A= 2 ) B R B 765 s 2 48 B ([ o B
preparation of the consolidated financial statements: EIREER D avEET -
Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions BIFRE 53R COVID-1948RM T
AIE165E (85T @B KM
)
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - BIRREAmE2e  FIRERERE %
39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and Phase 2 RIS - BB MR
IFRS 16 SETHERIFE39

5% - BIFREEt
7% B
BEENE4

5% 2 BB B 75
HEAERIZE16
SEUERTA)
In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the IASB issued UEoh - AEEERBEERE S EAIESE
in June 2021 which clarified the costs an entity should include as eEBRMEREEAREZER (R
“estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when determining the B&)R2021F6 A BMHHHRERE -
net realisable value of inventories. ZRATEBEEERETFENIEER
SFER KA ATHEE B EREEK
K] o
The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions AR E e R BB B S S MR A A (E ET
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the HAREERP BT FEOTBEMRR
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements. REER S LZERETHEREE

BREXEBEAZE -

2021 F 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

4. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

144 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond June 30, 2021"

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018 — 20202
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below,
the Directors anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met at
the end of the reporting period, even if the lender does
not test compliance until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of
the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

4.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s right to defer settlement
for bank loans of RMB1,097,993,000 and long-term payables of
RMB2,901,000,000 are subject to compliance with certain financial
ratios within 12 months from the reporting date. Such bank loans
and long-term payables were classified as non-current as the
Group met such ratios at 31 December 2021. Pending clarification
on the application of relevant requirements of the amendments, the
Group will further assess the potential impacts of the amendments
in relation to the bank loans and long-term payables with financial
and other covenants. The impacts on application, if any, will be
disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Except for as disclosed above, the application of the amendments
will not result in reclassification of the Group’s other liabilities as at
31 December 2021.

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition exemption
of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs
15 and 24 of IAS 12 Income Taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, for
leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to
the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 requirements to the
relevant assets and liabilities separately. Temporary differences
on initial recognition of the relevant assets and liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Continued)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will recognise a
deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary differences associated with the right-of-use
assets and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2023, with early application
permitted. As at December 31, 2021, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities which are subject to the
amendments amounted to RMB216,765,000 and RMB214,008,000
respectively. The Group is still in the process of assessing the full
impact of the application of the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment-
proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments specify that the costs of any item that were
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management (such as
samples produced when testing whether the relevant property,
plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the proceeds from
selling such items should be recognized and measured in the profit
or loss in accordance with applicable standards. The cost of the
items are measured in accordance with IAS 2.

The Group’s existing accounting policy is to account for sale
proceeds on samples produced during testing as reduction of cost
of the relevant property, plant and equipment. Upon application
of the amendments, such sale proceeds and the related costs will
be included in profit and loss with corresponding adjustments to
the cost of property, plant and equipment. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, sale proceeds and related costs included in
property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB942,903,000 and
RMB939,268,000, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements includes applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in
IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

For financial instruments which are transferred at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the
individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to financial assets / financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the International Accounting Standards
Committee’s Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in September 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and |IAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date;

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

. lease liabilities are recognized and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IFRS 16)
as if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition
date, except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends
within 12 months of the acquisition date; (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognized and
measured at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Merger accounting for business combinations involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined from the
date when the combining businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are consolidated using
the existing book values from the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognized in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase
gain at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements
are presented as if the businesses had been combined at the
beginning of the previous reporting period or when they first came
under common control, whichever is shorter.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RePBmRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit (or a group of
cash-generating units) may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-
generating units).

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognized
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognized is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognized in accordance with IAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss be recognized in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value on the date
it lost significant influence or joint control over the investee and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARN

()

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits or losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the products or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognized over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RePBmRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Existence of significant financing component

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

Revenue from the sales of products (mainly including coke and
chemicals products) directly to customers is recognized when
control of the goods has been transferred, being when the
products are accepted by the customers at the customer’s specific
destination or the Group’s plants. The customers have full discretion
over the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. A receivable
is recognized by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
customers as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due. Customers have no right to return
the products purchased once accepted.

Revenue from the management service provided to customers is
recognized when services are provided.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods
or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an
agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognizes
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Contract costs
Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its sales of products
and service contracts. The Group first assesses whether these
costs qualify for recognition as an asset in terms of other relevant
standards, failing which it recognizes an asset for these costs only if
they meet all of the following criteria:

° the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the Group can specifically identify;

. the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

. the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognized is subsequently amortized to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate. The
asset is subject to impairment review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NN

= A B TSR 5 ()

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lease
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of IFRS 16 or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under IFRS 16 at inception or modification date. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term is depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognizes and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;
and

° amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Lease (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Rental income from operating lease is recognized in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Variable lease payments for operating leases
that depend on an index or a rate are estimated and included in the
total lease payments to be recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognized as income when they arise.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange rates at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such
accumulated differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalization rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is a reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognized as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit scheme contribution

Payable to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the
retirement funds scheme managed by local social security bureau
in accordance with the government regulations in Hong Kong and
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), are recognized as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefit

Short-term employee benefits are recognized at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits to be paid as and when employees rendered
the service. All short-term employee benefits are recognized as
expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
difference associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognizes the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognized at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with the
tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the
relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most likely
amount or the expected value.

5.

eI RRNE(E)
HZE2021F12A31HILFE

REVMBBRRNERELER T
ESBERGE

PR ()

AT EAKBEEREREEE RIAR
HEARENEEXZNELEHREAM
o AKRBELAEERENRESE
AREREEESHERR -

HEEAEEEREBETRNEERZS
msE  AEEETHAEEEREES
& B E A B @t R E 1257 [ P15
BIZHE - AEAVBERAS - M
FRAREERTHEABRB TR
ZRW ARG HERAR LN HEERR
TR o

WMABEE AT ITHRN G AR AE E
HENBHBRAE  MELCHBEEE
RBEERFA-HEHBPFIAR—RHE
BHWHWAEVAR  AREHIRE
ERAERHEEERE -

BNEA R E R E R B P RERR - e
REMZERESKEERESRERL
B HHEEERIN  REBRT - BIEH
RIEERBIND BN E b 2wk
HERNESER WEBELSOH#
TR ST RIEME S ANHHELE
ERIE - BB EF AELEHN
S EENA -

AR Al P45 54 BE 32 19 (E f] T 2 1
B AEEEEEABEHEHMPES
ZER KB BB RIE RS HE
ERANHERERNTEERSEE
ZETREME o ORI - BIHARRAERK
HEEEBAENE 2 HFEIE -
HEETE o INRABRBEMFITAIBEE
M TEENRBEIE - FETEE T
FENARAAERAAEHRER
BA o

2021 F3R
FEEREEERAD G

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RePBmRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Ownership in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease
building element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the costs (other than
properties under construction) less their residual values over their
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited

REVMBBRRNERELER T
ESBERGE

W - BB KRB

WE - BEEREBRFIELEENMHE
EmARBERITHRARNELEE(T
MEEERIN) - W% - BB R&E
TR AR E %R R E R REFHRE
BERMA)RNEEPBARRARTIIR -

EREEEXHEERAMBHITR
P& B9 ) 5 TR BN R AE 7] 2 FERRUR
EERR KABREEEZDRE
WRREREREN T ARRLEM
BRI E R B R EENER
RARREBERAEENGFTBRREAR
e ERKA - BEERFRMAR
B I EEERGRERMBYEERE
MERIMEENE

HETHRETHREHE

ERKERNYENEREES (B
MELH REFRD)NRE - 28K
EREE L RAEFH D Z BIRVAE
HEREF MRS A A EMNLHIDER

ERBANRAENESENERT -
HETibREENEAMBRRRFT 2
JIRMEREEE] - ERESLIEMERA
HETMIFEERTRD RS H
A EDRR  BENEDE

FENERSERKABRERZYE
SN RHBREFMBREER - LER
SRR EIE A BN o R AT E R A
B MREERNETENERES
RETERMN  MERNGBIFZ2BNZE
RIBMELEARR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Ownership in leasehold land and building (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the profit
or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below). Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditure (Continued)

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognized,
development expenditure is recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (the “CGU") to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or the CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including
the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or a group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
applicable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount
of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or a
group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset (or the CGU or the group of CGUSs) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Costs of inventories are determined using weighted average cost
formula. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs to completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past events
but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits has become probable. If
it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will
be required for an item previously dealt with as a contingent liability,
a provision is recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in the reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognized and derecognized on a trade day basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortized cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI")
if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination
to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment
that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Amortized cost and interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortized cost and
receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortized cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for receivables
classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, are recognized in profit or
loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these receivables
are recognized in OCl and accumulated under the other reserve.
Impairment allowance are recognized in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these receivables. The amounts that are recognized in
profit or loss are the same as the amounts that would have been
recognized in profit or loss if these receivables had been measured
at amortized cost. When these receivables are derecognized,
the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any fair
value gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other gains and
losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including other long-
term receivables, other receivables, trade and bills receivables
measured at FVTOCI, amounts due from related parties and bank
balances) and financial guarantee contracts which are subject
to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of each reporting period.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of each reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties arising from contracts with
customers. The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate groupings except that significant
balances are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognizes lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognized is based on significant increases in the
likelihood of risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the end of each reporting
period with the risk if a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit
risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the end of each reporting period. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii)
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.
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5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes
a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date
of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts,
the Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended December 31, 2021
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5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical data and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables
using a provision matrix taking into consideration historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost and effort.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
ECL is the present value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtors or any other

party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective
interest rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if,
and to the extent that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting
the discount rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and other receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are
recognized at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognized over the guarantee period.

Except for trade and bill receivables measured at FVTOCI and
financial guarantee contract, the Group recognizes an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognized through a loss
allowance account. For trade and bill receivables measured at
FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognized in OCl and accumulated
in the other reserve without reducing the carrying amounts of these
debt receivables. Such amount represents the changes in the other
reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RePBmRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

5.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred financial asset,
the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the
financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the other reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost, including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and bank and other loans,
are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial
liabilities at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

5.

RePBmRRME(E)

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognized over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, canceled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is
recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 5, the Directors are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Application of various accounting principles related to the
measurement and recognition of revenue requires the Group to
make judgements and estimates. Specifically, significant judgments
include determining whether the Group is acting as the principal in
a transaction. The Group is a principal in a transaction if the Group
obtains control of the products sold or services provided before
they are transferred to customers. When the Group is primarily
obligated in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk, has latitude
in establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or has several but
not all of these indicators, the Group records revenues on a gross
basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net amount earned as
commissions from products sold or services provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RePBmRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

6.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve
months are as follows:

Useful life and impairment of property, plant and equipment

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the management
requires an estimation of recoverable amount of an individual asset
or the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, and has
to exercise judgement and make significant degree of estimation
in determining the recoverable amount of the assets, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset’s value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belongs.

Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine
the level of impairment, including product price, volume of sales
and growth rate, gross profit ratio or discount rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
as at December 31, 2021 were RMB16,677,012,000 (2020: RMB
11,123,326,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment of interests in associates at the end of each reporting
period. Test for impairment is required when there is an objective
evidence that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For
the interests in associates, an impairment exists when its carrying
value exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The value in
use calculation for the interests in associates requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the associates
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise.
The carrying amount of interests in associates as at December 2021
were RMB393,421,000 (2020: RMB 346,623,000).

Estimated impairment of doubtful receivables

The Group recognizes lifetime ECL for trade receivables, using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast conditions at end of the reporting period. In
addition, the Group recognizes lifetime ECL for other receivables
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL
model is measured as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise. Further details are included in note 41.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

6.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Taxation

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future
tax treatments of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatments of such transactions are
reconsidered periodically to take into account of all changes in tax
legislations.

The recognition of deferred tax assets require formal assessment by
the Group of the future profitability of related operations. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates, amongst other factors, the
forecast financial performance, changes in technology and future
assessable profits or taxable temporary differences. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, a reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognized in profit or loss for the period in which such estimates
are changed. Further details are included in note 25.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated, which
is the higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
(or a group of cash-generating units) and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash flows or upward
revision of discount rate, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at December 31, 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill
is RMB232,435,000 (2020: RMB 31,808,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the Group’s revenue represents the amount
received and receivable from the sales of goods to external
customers arising from the coke and coking chemicals, refined
chemicals, operation management services and trading. Except
for the provision of operation management services, which was
recognized over time, the revenue of the remaining operations is
recognized at a point in time when the customers obtain control of
the goods delivered or management services provided.

All sales/trading are for period of one year or less. As permitted
under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

Information reported to the executive directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM”"), for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8
Operating Segments are as follows:

. Coke and coking chemicals manufacturing segment: the
production and sale of coke and a series of coking chemicals
from externally sourced coking coals processed at the
Group’s coking facilities;

. Refined chemicals manufacturing segment: the purchase
of coking chemicals from the Group’s coke and coking
chemicals manufacturing segment and third parties, and
processing such coking chemicals into refined chemical
products at the Group’s refined chemicals facilities, as well as
marketing and selling such refined chemicals;

° Operation management segment: the operation management
service provided to the third-party plants, and the sale of
coke, coking chemicals and refined chemicals produced by
these plants under the management service agreements and
commissioned processing contracts; and

. Trading segment: the sourcing of coke, coking chemicals and
refined chemicals from third parties and the marketing, sale
and distribution of such coal chemicals.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The CODM reviews operating results and financial information
for each operating company separately. Accordingly, each
operating company, including associates and joint ventures held
by the relevant operating company, is identified as an operating
segment. Those operating companies are aggregated into coke
and coking chemicals segment, refined chemicals segment,
operation management segment and trading segment respectively
for segment reporting purpose after taking into account that those
operating companies are operating in similar business model with
similar target group of customers, similar products and similar
methods used to distribute their products. The accounting policies
of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 5.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

The CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reporting segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortization of assets attributable to those
segments.

All assets are allocated to segment assets other than unallocated
head office and corporate assets. All liabilities are allocated to
segment liabilities other than unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “segment results”.
To arrive at segment results, the Group’s earnings are adjusted
for unallocated head office and corporate expenses which are not
specifically attributable to individual segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
results, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter segment sales and share
of losses/profits of associates and joint ventures), depreciation,
amortization and additions to non-current segment assets used by
the segments in their operations.

Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices charged to
external parties for similar orders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4= A

For the year ended December 31, 2021

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s results, assets and
liabilities by reportable segments: (Continued)

FIs R MR ()

I R ==

HE2021F12A31HILFE

53 )2 70 BRE 4 ()

Year ended/as at December 31, 2021
BZE2021612A31 AL EE/ REZA

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing Manufacturing  Management Trading Total
RERREL BT
EREE EREE BEegER g5 @t
RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETFT AREFT
Revenue from contracts with external ~ SMNBEPALIKE
customers
Sale of coke and coking chemicals HEERKELER 15,900,844 - - - 15,900,844
Sale of refined chemicals HERBLIER - 12,579,203 188,408 - 12,767,611
Trading 25 - - - 9,688,958 9,688,958
Management services EERRE - - 72,998 - 72,998
15,900,844 12,579,203 261,406 9,688,958 38,430,411
Inter-segment revenue D ERrIdGS 1,438,291 298,334 - - 1,736,625
Reportable segment revenue B R e 17,339,135 12,877,537 261,406 9,688,958 40,167,036
Reportable segment results ERIHEE 2,837,149 595,590 35,978 242,384 3,711,101
Unallocated head office and corporate KA B i
expenses RAGIRZ (513,222)
Profit before taxation BB ATEA 3,197,879
2021 Fik
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s results, assets and AT A
k&

liabilities by reportable segments: (Continued)

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

53 )2 70 RRE 4 ()

Year ended/as at December 31, 2021
BE2021512A31 1L EE/ REA

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing Manufacturing  Management Trading Total
ERREL BALT
ERLEE EREE Eggn g5 o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
Reportable segment assets TERAHHEE
(including interests in associates and ~ (BEREELFRA
joint ventures) EERER) 13,348,381 15,956,428 114,535 6,433,174 35,852,518
Reportable segment liabilities IEHIBEE 8,350,050 8,932,430 95,911 5,151,833 22,530,224
Other information: HipE
Additions to non-current segment assets  FR3EREID HEE
during the year 0 4,593,551 3,645,804 - 41,512 8,280,867
Share of results of associates AEBENREE (2,929) 75,085 - - 72,156
Share of results of joint ventures AERELEEE 490,269 - - - 490,269
Depreciation and amortization for the  FRITE L&
year 555,100 735,987 20,130 8,779 1,319,996
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. K% K% &% ()
(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEFEE  BEERBRGE)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s results, assets and UTEBREBUSROIMESE  EE
liabilities by reportable segments: (Continued) RBEIN : (@

Year ended/as at December 31, 2020
BZ2020512A31A L EE /R A

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing ~ Manufacturing ~ Management Trading Total
BERREN BT
EmiE EmiE ERER 2% @zt

RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
ARBTL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT

(Restated) (Restated)
(fEEit) (BEin)
Revenue from contracts with external ~ SMEEFA#IME
customers
Sale of coke and coking chemicals HEERRENER 8,715,621 - 20,484 - 8,736,105
Sale of refined chemicals HERMLIER - 5,845,621 420912 - 6,266,533
Trading 25 - - - 4,622,776 4,622,776
Management services EERS - - 159,452 - 159,452
8,715,621 5,845,621 600,848 4,622,776 19,784,866
Inter-segment revenue A e 822,912 201,498 - - 1,024,410
Reportable segment revenue TR B 9,538,533 6,047,119 600,848 4,622,776 20,809,276
Reportable segment results TERIPEE 1,932,528 (67,229) 131,696 62,979 2,059,974
Unallocated head office and corporate  RATAHER
expenses RAFRR (109,310)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

HZE2021FE 12831 ILFE

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s results, assets and
liabilities by reportable segments: (Continued)

7. WEKkDHERE

Bl

Year ended/as at December 31, 2020
BZ2020F 1231 B ILERE /R %A

Coke and
Coking Refined
Chemicals Chemicals Operation
Manufacturing  Manufacturing ~ Management Trading Total
ERREL BT
EMEE EmEE ERER g5 it
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFL ANREFT AREFT  AREFRT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (feE)
Profit before taxation BRBLADER 1,950,664
Reportable segment assets 2RI PEE
(including interests in associates and (B
joint ventures) EERER) 9,466,094 9,429,035 809,763 3,383,078 23,087,970
Reportable segment liabilities 2RI HEE 5,867,401 6,455,401 125,133 3,272,583 15,720,518
Other information: Hi &R
Additions to non-current segment assets  ERIEREN D HEAE
during the year = 898,716 1,191,426 - 20,235 2,110,377
Share of results of associates HMEBERFEE 658 (5,346) - - (4,688)
Share of results of joint ventures DEREEEE 398,479 - - - 398,479
Depreciation and amortization for the 4RI E R # 8
year 312,394 400,343 20,130 7,923 740,790
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, results, assets and TE2HoENE XL BENAE

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. W& K5 H&ER )
(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DEELE  BEREEGE)

Year ended/as at December 31

BZ12A31HLFE REAR
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFr
(Restated)
(4 Ea)
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue Al 23R o Bz 40,167,036 20,809,276
Elimination of inter-segment revenue K iE o EpE s (1,736,625) (1,024,410)
Consolidated revenue e 38,430,411 19,784,866
Results B4
Reportable segment results Al 2O IHEE 3,711,101 2,059,974
Unallocated head office and corporate RoBBHER R AR H )
expenses (Note) (513,222) (109,310)
Profit before taxation B 758 B A 3,197,879 1,950,664
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets Ao EEE 35,852,518 23,087,970
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBHERNLATEE
assets 945,660 1,373,085
Consolidated total assets EBERS 36,798,178 24,461,055
Liabilities 8E&
Reportable segment liabilities AIZ2WmoEaE 22,530,224 15,720,518
Unallocated head office and corporate RATCHEN BRI AR (H77)
liabilities (Note) 3,156,679 357,749
Consolidated total liabilities e BaEeE 25,686,903 16,078,267
Note: included in unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as at HieE : R2021F 12 A31EM R D IRE NI =

BERARBENREE20216128
SIELEFENRDBEAHRBERA
AIAZ D R B EWE — MW E A A
AR ERMREARE2,901,000,000
TRAERREEEOHFEHIZA
R #301,066,0007T °

December 31, 2021 and unallocated head office and corporate
expenses during the year ended December 31, 2021 were unpaid
consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary of RMB2,901,000,000
and interests expense arising from the unpaid consideration of
RMB301,066,000, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Geographic information

Substantially all of the Group’s revenue and profit were derived
from the PRC and all principal assets employed by the Group are
located in the PRC during the reporting period.

Major customers

No individual customer had transactions exceeding 10% of

the Group’s revenue for each reporting periods. Details of
concentrations of credit risk are set out in note 41.

8. OTHER INCOME

53 )2 70 RRE 4 ()

okt

B4  BERBEGE)

D

& & R
RIRERAN - KB EAREBEATA WS
MaFTRahRHEE  MALEF
BB X B EEINAFTE -
FEERF
RERERR - FREEBBZFETH
RHGBBAEEEETE10% - BEE
PEERBRAFEIHTIRM 41

H A

Year ended December 31

BZ12A31HLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT ARBFr
Interest income FEUA 66,573 39,516
Production waste sales HEERERHHE 15,031 5,228
Equipment rental income HRERSWA 4,066 4,398
Government grants (Note) AT Bh (K7 77) 27,569 39,694
Others HAth 24,126 27,340
137,365 116,176

Note: Government grants were received from several local government
authorities as subsidies for the Group’s contribution to the
environmental protection, energy conservation recycling resources,
relocation, purchase of land use rights and infrastructure
construction.
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9.

10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

For the year ended December 31, 2021

9.

eI RRNE(E)
HE2021F12A31HILFE

Htt Wz & &8

Year ended December 31

BZ12A31BLFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARBFT ARBFr
Fair value (loss) gain of financial assets/ BAREABRENSREE BEN
liabilities at FVTPL: AR EGER) G
— Listed equity securities — FTIRAES (99,503) (3,415)
— Unlisted equity securities — I LR ES (2,921) (8,230)
— Private equity investment funds —NERIESEES (644) 8,524
— Futures contracts —HIEA4) 74,022 76,671
— Derivative financial instruments-swaps ~ — T4 ¢ TE 55 10,281 (69,668)
— Other non-derivative financial assets — BT EEmAE (4,912) 12,919
Impairment losses of property, plant and Y% - BB RERERERIE
equipment (Note 17) (Krz#17) (25,032) (45,633)
(Loss) gain on foreign exchange, net HNE IR =5 (B518) /558 (18,988) 25,531
Gain (loss) on disposal of: HENTEE/M (8
— right-of-use assets —(FREEE 53,779 24,619
— property, plant and equipment —WE - BRE KRB (84,594) (841)
Others Hi 2,880 7,388
(95,632) 27,865

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

10. EHEEEEER T HRERS
B kRS

Year ended December 31

BZE12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFR ARETFT

Impairment losses recognized on: RUTEBRR BE2RESS
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HMFEWGRIA (58,793) 13,022
Other long term receivables Hib REFFEWGRIR (46,245) (13,588)
Amounts due from related parties LR BAES: 7 FRIE (10,595) (439)
(115,633) (1,005)

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 41.

ERHE R FBER K T4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. @E KA
Year ended December 31
BZ12A31BLFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETFTT AREFr
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 506,055 425,270
Interest on other loans HibEZRFE 160,679 106,980
Interest on unpaid consideration for BB AR AREMNRENTE
acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) (H17%37) 301,066 =
Finance expenses on bills receivable ERLREWEE % E R
discounted 47,683 92,247
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEEENTHBER 15,982 2,926
1,031,465 627,423
Less: Amount capitalized under W EEIRE NEMNMEMES R
construction in progress (Note) (126,534) (95,391)
904,931 532,032
Note: The finance costs were capitalized at annual rates of 6.46%- Hiat - BE2021F12A31BIEFE - &
10.78% per annum during the year ended December 31, 2021 ERABIRFEFNE6.46%-10.78%
(2020: 6.58%-11.40%). (20204 : 6.58% % 11.40%) TLAE
M o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

12. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

12.

HE2021F12A31HILFE
BRBE AR

BRI A AR FNER

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFr
(Restated)
(&)

Staff costs (including directors’ BTKA(BIEEZESZEH)

remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEMEAMEF 1,030,082 504,322
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme ERIEFFT 21 67,638 16,696
Total staff costs BT A42%E 1,097,720 521,018
Capitalized in construction in progress FERIREARC (72,993) (48,847)
Capitalized in inventories FEERNE (577,202) (265,599)

447,525 206,572

Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB RERETTE

equipment 1,125,450 670,680
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 121,776 57,904
Amortization of intangible assets mLAEEE 104,157 12,206
Total depreciation and amortization e M SE A RE 1,351,383 740,790
Capitalized in inventories FEERE (1,167,539) (641,578)
Capitalized in construction in progress FERIREARL (242) (2,157)

183,602 97,055

Auditors’ remuneration 125 B B 9,433 9,596
Cost of inventories recognized as an REHAZFERR

expense 32,821,921 16,679,113
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. E  FESEREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Year ended December 31, 2021

B22021F12A31ALFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 28 RIKER
Eznd BNEH WA R #act

RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000
AREFT  AR®FrT  AREFT ARETT ARETZ

Executive directors HITES

Yang Xuegang BEH - 4,235 1,000 53 5,288
Zhang Yingwei REE - 812 1,000 53 1,865
Han Qinliang B - 800 1,000 53 1,853
Wang Fengshan TR - 806 1,000 - 1,806
Wang Nianping TEY - 800 1,000 53 1,853
Yang Lu 5% - 859 1,000 29 1,888
Subtotal et - 8,312 6,000 24 14,553
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Wang Yinping F5F 294 - - - 294
Yu Kwok Kuen Harry REIRE 294 - - - 294
Kang Woon B 294 - - - 294
Subtotal Nt 882 - - - 882
Total st 882 8,312 6,000 241 15,435
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. E - FESEREEMS

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (18)
Year ended December 31, 2020
HZ2020F12A31ALEE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefits

Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total

=L RIKEF
EENE  REDEN [iDj=prz HELGS @t

RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETET  ARETL  ARETT  ARETZT

Executive directors HITES
Yang Xuegang CES - 3,525 960 4 4,489
Zhang Yingwei SRR - 776 960 4 1,740
Han Qinliang EESE - 800 960 4 1,764
Wang Fengshan FRW S 803 960 - 1,763
Wang Nianping FEF - 800 900 4 1,704
Yang Lu 15 - 584 660 3 1,047
Subtotal NEt - 7,288 5,400 19 12,707
Independent non-executive BIFHITES

directors
Wang Yinping F31°F 252 - - - 252
Yu Kwok Kuen Harry REIHE 252 - - - 252
Kang Woon 5971 252 = = = 252
Subtotal INaE 756 - - - 756
Total st 756 7,288 5,400 19 13,463
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their FTRATEEME AREREEARFRAK
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the SESEHIREHREHME -

Company and the Group.

The emoluments of non-executive directors and independent FHIERITEERBUIENTEETHE AR
non-executive directors shown above were for their services as FEITEENNE -
Directors.

Directors are entitled to bonus payments which are determined EEARNDREERBRETARKEER
based on the duties and responsibilities of the Directors as well as (R SR T MTEALT R o
the operating results of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 13. E5 - FESEREEMS

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any RIBEBA - ITTRAHSIARNESY
emoluments during the reporting period. RIEEMBE -
Five highest paid individuals hEHE=HALT
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year ended HE2021F12A318LFE - A5 H
December 31, 2021 included four Directors (2020: two Directors), hAEEeHFALTERENZEE(2020
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments in F MEBES) BEHER LEXHE
respect of the remaining highest paid individuals during the BoRWENMA BESRTEaSHA
reporting period are as follows: THEMT
Year ended December 31
BE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARETFTT AREFr
Salaries and other emoluments FehEMAME 1,840 5,287
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  EARAEFIEH &I 7k 31 27
1,871 5,314
The remunerations of the five highest paid employees (including BEBRH BT (REESR)OFMEN
Directors) are within the following bands: TEHER
Year ended December 31
BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEAK EEAZ
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 2£2,500,000/8 7T 4 4
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,0018 7T 25,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7T 2£6,500,000/8 7T 1 -
During the reporting period, no amount was paid or payable by the Eﬁ\iﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ : Zl»‘%flﬁ%ﬁ%%iﬁ&
Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as {‘Ejﬂ%%%ﬁ{\iiﬁgmgﬁﬂlﬁ{/ﬁ
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation ﬁﬁ%ﬁfiﬂﬂ)\%ﬁ@ﬂﬂk$% iS3:0k3)
for loss of office. R RS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

e B RRMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

14. FIBFHRAX

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB000
ARKEFT AREFr

Current tax BIHEA%E1E

PRC income tax for the year FERBEH 542,307 263,444
Withholding tax for the year FETEH 25,000 15,750
Deferred tax charge (note 25) IEERE X W (H/7725) 34,533 17,618
601,840 296,812

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group did not earn any income subject to any income tax
in these jurisdictions during the reporting period.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong had no assessable profits
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, and no provision
for taxation is made.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
applicable for PRC group entities is 25% for the reporting period,
except for certain subsidiaries which enjoyed tax rate of 15% due to
relevant incentive policies.

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, 3
subsidiaries of the Company are qualified as “High and New Tech
Enterprises”, which are subject to PRC enterprise income tax at
the preferential rate of 15% of the estimated assessable profit as
determined in accordance with relevant tax rules and regulations in
the PRC. This preferential rate could be applied for three years, and
the subsidiaries are eligible to apply the tax concession again upon
expiry of the three-year period.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the PRC are
eligible for tax holiday and concession. Pursuant to the relevant
tax rules and regulation in PRC, revenue from comprehensive
utilization of resources (“&EiR&R& M MA") is eligible for additional tax
deduction.

REASHERAEBREZHENHR R
il AREBERRE AL ERNAZHZE
AIEBEERAEHAEMEA -

HZE2021F K2020F12A31HIEFE © &
EEMEBMBRARLEEZRF G - BXWE
EH B IE B -

RETBECEMSTOE(REMRSTUED) ki
EFRRTRBRIGD - TEEEERNERE
HAKERREA25%  BRETHEARH
R ABIBRE R E R15%I)

HZE2021F K2020F12A31HILEFE © K
AR =R B AR ER SRR E]E
1% ERBEFBREET AR EREE 2B
HERFE R ZE15% M P B EATER
BEEHE - WEEBERAUERA=F - B
ARR=FHEEmEYEEERENRE
ZHEER o

ARBRRHELENE THBARNEER
FAELRHRBER R - RIE+ BEHER
RARER  BERGANAEEZRES
BIRESRIIMEIRER -
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

14. FiSHiRx (&)

REEHFRERAXEEARERE
L 2 TR Ui 2 2% A R A5 AR 1) B 3 AR 20

T

Year ended December 31

BE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT ARETFT
(Restated)
(fe &)
Profit before taxation R 752 Al g A 3,197,879 1,950,664
Tax at the PRC tax rate of 25% R BR R 25% 5T E T IE 799,470 487,666
Tax effect on: AN EIEN BT E
Share of results of associates and joint DMEEE R REEREES
ventures (140,606) (98,448)
Non-deductible expenses AAHIBRFAS 13,083 6,025
Unused tax losses and temporary RERRE AT EEE X =58
differences not recognized 213,550 66,813
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB RERNTIBEE
recognized (19,389) -
PRC tax concessions R IR R (289,268) (180,994)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of P BIE B2 2R % F FO TE IR
PRC entities 25,000 15,750
Income tax expense for the year FEMEHRY 601,840 296,812
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15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

DIVIDENDS 15. RE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 FRMB'000
AREFT ARBFT

Dividends recognised as distribution FAERBDIKLIRE -
during the year:

2021 Interim, paid - RMB12.3 cents per share2021FR HiE B - B — SR ARKE12.37 546,120 =
2020 Final, paid - RMB10.5 cents per share 2020F RHILE - BIF —BRARE105% 466,200 -
2020 Interim, paid - HK2.92 cents per share 2020 EiRLE - B+ — FA%2.9278 1l - 105,522
2019 Final, paid - HK4.19 cents per share ~ 2019F KM S » B — R4 19781l - 156,238
1,012,320 261,760

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the proposed
final dividend in respect of the year ended December 31, 2021
of RMB6.3 cents per ordinary share, equivalent to HK$7.7 cents
per share, with total amount of RMB279,720,000 (equivalent to
HK$341,880,000) has been proposed by the Directors and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020 are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares issued.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company is based
on the following data:

16.

REHRE - EFEBEE2021F
12A3 1B IEFERRAARETRY
BRAARES ID(HBERSRT.7E
ill) - 4258 5 AR¥E279,720,0007T (F8
& 1341,880,000/8 ) * W/BALI R A
BIig ST 2 IREBF RS L ARG
AEE -

BREF

HZE2021F12H31H k2020512 A 31
H L 0 S RERBRIEALRA
B AR 2 IR DB B 1T 2 AR
3l EER

RAREBEBRBREESRERRE
SBERN TR T BEE

Year ended December 31

BZE12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20215 2020F
(Restated)
(&)
Earnings B
Profit attributable to the owners of the RAEIHEE AEE ST
Company (RMB'000) (AE#EFT) 2,613,314 1,652,990
Number of shares RHEEAR
Weighted average number of ordinary MERERRFIM S LB
shares for the purpose of basic earnings IS
per share 4,292,732,240 4,090,000,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BRERZF(ARE) 0.61 0.40
2021 Fik
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AN
A

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HZE2021FE 12831 ILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI e ()

For the year ended December 31, 2021

17. Y% - BERRE

Machinery
and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
£ BRERRE RE BAERE ERIR @t
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB OO0 RMB 000 RMB000
ARETFT ARETT ARETFT ABETFT ARETT ARETFT
Cost KA
At December 31, 2019 M2019612A31H 4,471,193 7,581,529 48,321 55,154 1,127,748 13,283,945
Addition from acquisition of a  WEE K EHEHI T A0 - 263 651 107 53,284 54,305
subsidiary under common  BAFENE
control
At January 1, 2020 (Restated) #2020%1A1H 4,471,193 7,581,792 48972 55,261 1,181,032 13,338,250
(@Ei)
Additions (Restated) AEWE) 1,519 44,878 7,848 4,545 1,984,199 2,042,989
Transfer from constructionin ~ #&SERTE 491,314 834,650 636 11,455 (1,338,055) =
progress
Disposals (Restated) HEER) (219) (14,686) (11,286) (118) = (26,309)
At December 31, 2020 2020612318 4,963,807 8,446,634 46,170 71,143 1,827,176 15,354,930
(restated) @z
Additions HE 1,397 80,062 10,833 28,799 2,894,110 3,015,201
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ KE—EHBAR 1,202,770 2,271,701 550 6,863 353,393 3,835,277
(note 37) Wiit37)
Transfer from construction in ~ EEBERIR 647,794 1467557 = = (2,115,351) =
progress
Disposals e (84,053) (157,876) (4,271) (2,255) - (248,455)
At December 31, 2021 2021512318 6,731,715 12,108,078 53,282 104,550 2,959,328 21,956,953
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERRE &)

(CONTINUED)
Machinery
and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
¥ BERRE "E WAERE EEIR @t
RMB000 AMB 000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB 000 RMB000
ARETFT ARETT ARETFT ANEETT ARETT ARETFT
Depreciation and FERAE
impairment
At December 31, 2019 #2019F12A318 1,092,138 2,373,375 26,835 40,251 - 3,532,599
Addition from acquisition of  MREE2kEE A T AN - 233 443 69 = 745
a subsidiary under BAREME
common control
At January 1, 2020 (Restated) 342020415 1R 1092138 2,373,608 27,278 10320 - 3,533,344
(g
Depreciation (Restated) HEEED 196,996 454,784 11,834 7,086 - 670,680
Impairment WE = 45,633 = = = 45,633
Disposals (Restated) HEEER) (65) (7.981) (9,908) (99) = (18,053)
At December 31, 2020 H2020%12A318 1,289,069 2,866,044 29,204 47,287 - 4,231,604
(restated) (&)
Depreciation e 309,750 793,075 9,864 12,761 = 1,125,450
Impairment WA 9,434 15,598 - - = 25,032
Disposals b (30,202) (66,396) (3,661) (1,886) (102,145)
At December 31, 2021 H2021E12A318 1,578,051 3,608,321 35,407 58,162 - 5,279,941
Carrying amounts REE
At December 31, 2021 2021F12A318 5,153,664 8,499,757 17,875 46,388 2,959,328 16,677,012
At December 31, 2020 202012318 3,674,738 5,580,590 16,966 23,856 1,827,176 11,123,326
(restated) (@=Ei)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than PBRIEETIRSN - Lz - BB K&
construction in progress, after taking into account their estimated BEEBRREGTRGEEELRE
residuals, are depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows: SEIEWT -
Buildings 20-30 years gF 20304
Machinery and equipment 5-30 years e ] 5% 304
Motor vehicles 3-12 years RE 3ZE126F
Office equipment 2-15 years L NES 2F15%F

2021 F 3R
FEEREEERAD G
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE I IEEHRER MR (&)
For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Details of the pledged property, plant and equipment are set out in
note 44.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group recognized
impairment losses of RMB25,032,000 based on the fair value less
costs of disposal related to property, plant and equipment of the
fumaric acid production line which was shut down in May 2021.
During the year ended December 31, 2020, an impairment losses of
RMB45,633,000 was recognised based on the fair value less costs
of disposal related to property, plant and equipment of dimethyl
ether production line which was shut down in May 2020.

17. ¥1% - BRERRE@

BEAYE  BERRBEHFBEN
fizta4 -

R2021F12A31H ILFEHM - A&
EREAABER2021F5 ABFAEE
BREESNYE  BEREHBRER
AEERREIEX B ARK25,032,000
JC ° 72020512 A31 8 1-F E HifE -
REBBERD L RENR2020F5 A#
FIZ_RBEESNDE  BE KR
EREEXNEAERBREBRIAEARE
45,633,0007T °

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FAEEE

Carrying amount Office and
leasehold lands Equipment Total
IREE et &E Bet
RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT AREFT

(Note)

(Hi#t)
As at December 31, 2019 72019 12H31H 1,099,310 45,293 1,144,603

Addition from business combination Ui t B2l T 1 2 A& 1%

under common control IPEE] 178,424 = 178,424
As at January 1, 2020 (restated) 1202051 A1H (&) 1,277,734 45,293 1,323,027
Additions NE - 52,348 52,348
Disposals HE (23,442) = (23,442)
Depreciation charge (restated) WEX @ ER) (33,413) (24,491) (57,904)
As at December 31, 2020 (restated) 722020F 12 31 H (& & i) 1,220,879 73,150 1,294,029
Additions NE 189,873 222,624 412,497
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— MM B A | (#3137)

(note 37) 316,577 - 316,577
Disposals & (178,853) - (178,853)
Depreciation charge TEXH (42,767) (79,009) (121,776)
As at December 31, 2021 R2021412 8318 1,505,709 216,765 1,722,474
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

19.

Re BB RARNE(E)

HE2021F12A31HILFE

18. ERAEEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#FT ARETIT

Expense relating to short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets EHHENMEEEEERERBEAY 9,770 14,654
Total cash outflow for leases HERS LA 43,515 28,210

For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouse
properties, equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 12 months to 6 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

RzmEFE  AEEHRESEREA
= REMERREAREEZ - HE
BHIA121E A =6 B EHHIRIIL
HEGRDEMERER LRS- 815
PEMEFR AR - R EEE B R AT G
NE R E SR R ER - AEEER
BHAMEERLETE S R A EEIBITH
HAfE o

GOODWILL 19. B8
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Acquisition of Cangzhou Risun Chemicals UEEAMBISE THR A A
Limited (“Cangzhou Risun”) (M) 31,808 31,808
Acquisition of Wuhu Shunri Xinze Equity ~ ZHIEBE2BREREARLE
Investment Partnership (LP) (“Shunri (BRE® (IBEFE])
Xinze”) (note 37) (H17#37) 200,627 =
232,435 31,808

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill generated from the
acquisition of Cangzhou Risun is attributable to its caprolactam
production line, and goodwill generated form acquisition of
Shunri Xinze is allocated to a group of coke and refined chemical
production lines, each of which constitutes a CGU.

AETRENR - WERMNBBES
WEERBRNECARREER M
WEIEREZEEENAE EEE—4
BN ERMBALCTIEREE
R BEBRESEHNER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AT

For the year ended December 31, 2021

19.

= A B TSR 5 ()

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

As of December 31, 2021, the Group prepared cash flow projection
for Cangzhou Risun based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax discount rate
of 14.1% (2020: 12.6%). The cash flow beyond the 5-year period
was a steady 2.5% (2020: 3%) growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations related to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin,
such estimation is based on Cangzhou Risun’s past performance
and management’'s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of Cangzhou Risun to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of Cangzhou Risun.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group prepared cash flow projection
for Shunri Xinze based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of
15.1%. The cash flow beyond the 5-year period was a steady 2.5%
growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on
Shunri Xinze’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of Shunri Xinze to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of Shunri Xinze.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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19.

[k ¢

HZE2021F12A318  AEBREE
EEENSFHRNMEREERET
BNBERRSRETER - WiK14.1%
(20204 : 12.6%) TR ATALIR RHEE
BH - HBsFHEMNRERENFER
2.5%(2020%F : 3% ) WIIBE I REHE
B FREEFENEMEZ/RE
HIBSRA S REGETAER - B21F
TEEEEEMEMNE  pHEMETER
BINBEARARBEREREEEM S
RETEE - EEERA  AHZER
BT MEEAEEES TS ERA
NI B B5 B9 4 BR T B 1B B A N B RS A AT
U [l 458 o

HZE2021F12A318 » AEBREE
BEAENSFHMNMEBERR T
IEE¥TERIR S RETEN » WIK15.1%
WAL IR REE S - HBIRSF AR
MRS RENFEA2.5%MBFEER
HESL - FABENENEMEE
BEERSTA ML BEETERE -
BIEBEHEEBMENE - WA MG
AERIERFEBARBRERES ™
BRENELY - EBERE  TMZ
ERB[OEMESEAEEB YT T E
BIEEFEMNBRAAERRIERFZ
AT Uk Bl 42 %8 o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

e B RRMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

0. BEFEE

Year ended December 31

BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AR¥TFT
Cost: A :
As at January 1, ®W1A1H 166,237 151,197
Additions NE 20,517 15,040
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) W b — R ffY B A B (BY7£37) 852,000 =
As at December 31, W12H31H 1,038,754 166,237
Accumulated amortization and T BERRE -
impairment:
As at January 1, ®W1A1H 87,489 75,283
Charge for the year FATH 104,157 12,206
As at December 31, ®W12H831H 191,646 87,489
Carrying amounts: BRMEIE :
As at December 31, W12A31H 847,108 78,748

The intangible assets are mainly coking capacity indicator which
was acquired as part of the business acquisition as detailed in note
37, and patented use rights of techniques. The intangible assets
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the patented periods
ranging from 5 to 10 years, based on the shorter of the period of
their contractual rights or expected useful life.

No impairment was recognized for the intangible assets during

years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

BNEETZBSFREHRE I
7T EE SR L ERE IR IR R M EE37)
REBMEMERE BEEERALD
BANMRAFERATERFHIMEPR
RERSEN0FENENHHEARELRE

HZE20215 K 202012 A31 B IL4F
[ BEREREERINE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RePBmRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

21. REE QTS

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARBTFT
Cost of investments B 539,514 535,272
Share of post-acquisition profits and OBk B Uk K FE U AR B Y
other comprehensive income, SMEWEEE R &
net of dividend received and HEtEmEizs
receivable 74,815 32,259
Less: impairment (Note) B ORE W) (220,908) (220,908)
393,421 346,623

Note: As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, impairment of RMB220,908,000
was recognized against 30% equity interest in Yangmei Group
Shouyang Jingfu Coal Co., Ltd. (“Jingfu Coal”) held by the Group
mainly due to the coal price below the expectation at the initial

investment.

Details of principal associates at December 31, 2021 and 2020

were as follows:

MR2021F K2020F12A31H * &
EAR#220,908,0007T 3t A 2 E
REREESHEEREEZERRA
AI(IEBEEDFBERZ0%KRERE
R EEHRERERERTIRE
BHR)TEEA -

20214 2 2020F 12 431 H = EHE &
RNARIFFEWT ¢

Country of
incorporation/  Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting
Date of principal place interest held rights held
Name of entity establishment  of business by the Group by the Group Principal activity
rREERNES AEREREN
BRELE FX3 A 8 TEEELY 2RELA RERELL Bl FTEEH
2021 2020 2021 2020
20216 2020 20215 20204
Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited March 28,2008  The PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Production
(“Jinniu Risun Chemicals”) of refined
(LR BHC TERAT) (Note a) chemicals
Ak e EBIIBERAR 200837288 EERBNLT
(&4 I Hia) Em
Cabot Risun Chemicals (Xingtai) Co. Ltd.  June 23, 2011 The PRC 40% 40% 40% 40%  Production of
(“Cabot Risun Chemicals”) carbon black
(FEsREI(Ra)ERAR)
(Note a)
REHEB L IORE)ERAR 201156A230  +H FERE

(RERBSLI))Hita)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

HZE2021F12A31HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) PR N\ T RS ()
Country of
incorporation/  Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting
Date of principal place interest held rights held
Name of entity establishment  of business by the Group by the Group Principal activity
AEERENES AEEREN
ERER A=l TEEENE 2EELH RERELL B TEEH
2021 2020 2021 2020
20216 20205 20215 2020F
Yangmei Group Shouyang Jingfu Coal  June 27,1992 The PRC 30% 30% 30% 30%  Mining of coal
Co, Lid. (GREEESHEEEE
BRAF("Jingfu Coal")) (Note a)
BREEREREREERAT 1992%6A278  #E BERR
(RERED W)
PT KinXiang New Energy Technologies ~ August 27, 2021 Indonesia 20% - 20% - Production
Indonesia (“KinXiang New Energy”) of coke
(Note b) and coking
chemicals
MesrmREaRAAARA(EE 202158A278  Hfe EEERRILT
AaER ) (Wrztn) Em
Notes:
a. FEBE AR B EBOHR R EEHR
a. The English translation of the names of the above associates are 2%  BROERGEARX -
for reference only. The official name of the entities are in Chinese.
b. HZE2021F12A31BLEFE ' K
b.  During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group entered SEEE=FET I - Bk PT
into an agreement with third parties, pursuant to which all parties B NFRBEHEREERK L&
agree to jointly invest and establish KinXiang New Energy. MR - BEBEKRE W= - XEEA
According to the investment agreement, the Group has the right BETRBRESTH—%  WHE
to appoint one out of five directors and 20% voting rights in the 20%EAERRE - BRAE
shareholders’ meeting. KinXiang New Energy is accounted for EHSENMEROREAERES
as an associate of the Group, since the Group has significant BEERATEN  WEFEHMEIRY
influence on the shareholders’ meeting and the board of KinXiang RAEBENBE QA - PR2021F
New Energy. As at December 31, 2021, the Group has injected 12A318 - AEBEZFEARY
capital contribution amounting to RMB1,283,000 and the 1,283,000 % NHEBRIBE S
remaining will be injected according to the payment notices to be REREESR L NEBFBEIAEA -
issued by the board of directors of KinXiang New Energy
In the opinion of the Directors, none of the individual associates EXZRA MEEEABEQRNHAE
materially affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give BENXEREEFEREAVE - &

further details of the associates of the Group would, in the opinion

of the

Directors, results in particulars of excessive length.

ERR E—PREAKEBREQF
MEREERERBRITE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire M RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 21.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material:

REE A R Rk ()
SEERIEABE A

AR ER

Year ended December 31
HZ12A31HILEE

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive FERA (BB EREEEDK
(expense) income for the year L 149,700 (13,503)
Group’s share of profit/(loss) of REBMDRFEEBLARRF,
associates for the year (Es518) 72,156 (4,688)
Dividends declared by associates FABE R E SRS
for the year (29,600) -
22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22, REELENER
As at December 31
M12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Cost of investments WA 128,394 113,750
Share of post-acquisition profits and MR B R EWRAR SR D1
other comprehensive income, net of Wi e m T R E 2 E e
dividend received and receivable 1,650,350 1,241,825
1,778,744 1,355,575

216 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22,

Details of principal joint ventures as at December 31, 2021 and

2020 were as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2021

i)

R2021F 2 2020F 12 A31HA &%

Re BB RARNE(E)

HE2021F12A31HILFE

gihEaER (@)

BT

Country of
incorporation/  Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting
Date of principal place interest held rights held

Name of entity establishment  of business by the Group by the Group Principal activity

rEBRENES EEREN

o1 KA TEEXNH Ex b REREL B TEEH

2021 2020 2021 2020
20216 2020 20215 2020F

Hebei China Coal Risun Energy Limited ~ November 21, The PRC 45% 45% 45% 45%  Production
(“CNC Risun Energy”, formerly known 2003 of coke
as Hebei China Coal Risun Coking and coking
Limited) (1L P& B2 RBR A R) chemicals
(Notes a and ¢)

AR ERGERERAR(TERE  2003F11A21E HE EEERRENE
R - BRI RS A ER m
RE)Wiake)

Hohhot Risun China Gas Energy Limited  June 15, 2018 The PRC 55% 55% 55% 55%  Production
(“Risun China Gas”) of coke
(SRS EB TR ERER AR and coking
(Notes b and c) chemicals

A REE T Ra R B R AT 201867158 EEERRENE
(THBF5+ #RaeiR ) (b Ke) m

PT. RISUN WEI SHAN INDONESIA November 9, Indonesia 51% - 51% - Production
(“Risun Wei Shan”) (Note d) 2021 of coke

and coking
chemicals

SRR L (TaR R #itd) 2021F1A9R  HRE EEERRENE

m

PT. DE TIAN COKING (“De Tian Coking”) - September 29 Indonesia 24% - 24% - Production
(Note d) 2021 of coke

and coking
chemicals

ERELER)RAAFAEREL]) 202169A298  Hfe EEERRENE
(Hista) m

2021 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year

ended December 31, 2021 & Z=2021F12A318 1L F[E

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

The Group, China Coal and Coke Holding Limited (“CNC Coke"),
an independent third party, and another independent third party,
hold 45%, 45% and 10% equity interest in CNC Risun Energy,
respectively. Pursuant to the agreement dated January 1, 2007,
the Group has the right to appoint two out of five directors which is
responsible for making decisions on the financing and operating
activities of CNC Risun Energy, where these decisions require a
minimum resolution of two-third of the voting right of the board
of directors. Accordingly, the Group and CNC Coke who is also
entitled to appoint two directors share joint control over CNC
Risun Energy. In this regard, CNC Risun Energy is accounted for as
a joint venture of the Group.

In September 2019, the Group injected cash of RMB68,750,000
into Risun China Gas in return for 55% equity interest in Risun
China Gas. Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group
has the right to appoint two out of five directors and the financial
decisions about financing and dividend activities of Risun China
Gas require unanimous consent of all the shareholders. In this
regard, Risun China Gas is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Group.

The English translation of the name of the above joint ventures are
for reference only. The official name of the entities are in Chinese.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group entered
joint venture agreements with third parties, pursuant to which all
the parties agreed to jointly invest and establish Risun Wei Shan
and De Tian Coking. As at December 31, 2021, the Group has
injected capital contribution of RMB12,094,000 in Risun Wei Shan
and no capital was infected in De Tian Coking. The remaining will
be injected according to the payment notices to be issued by the
board of directors of these two joint ventures.

According to investment agreement of Risun Wei Shan, several
reserved matters, including but not limited to purchase, sale and
lease of land, appointment and removal of senior management,
procurement of fixed assets or raw materials with transaction
amount over US$5 million and disposal of assets, require
unanimous consent by the board of Risun Wei Shan. In this
regard, Risun Wei Shan is accounted for as a joint venture of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22, REAEDEWRER (@

Notes: (Continued) st - ()
Pursuant to the investment agreement of De Tian Coking, several BIBERELCNRERZE  ETR
reserved matters, including but not limited to annual operating BERBEETRAFELERN
and financial budget, procurement of fixed assets with transaction BRE REXFHLEBBESASE
amount over US$5 million, procurement of raw materials with THEEEE  KESFBEHB208
amount over US$20 million and financing decision, require BETHRME  ERKE) AL
unanimous consent of all the shareholders. Therefore, De Tian PEBRR—HEE - Bt - EXE
Coking is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group. LI AREREEERE -
Summarized financial information of CNC Risun FESESRE RN S E R E
Energy
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
2021 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,005,206 3,087,885
Current assets MENEE 1,361,115 2,049,481
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 21,392 524,129
Current liabilities REEE 1,141,702 1,953,771
Net assets BEFE 3,203,227 2,659,466
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: FMEERBBESEBAFEAT

As at December 31,

M12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 574,446 693,835
Current financial liabilities mBTRMBE(reEREES R
(excluding trade and other L SRR B 1)
payables and provisions) 369,131 588,539
Non-current financial liabilities FnBeHBECTEEEI R
(excluding trade and other L SRR B R)
payables and provisions) - 512,518

2021 F3R
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Summarized financial information of CNC Risun

HZE2021FE 12831 ILFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

22,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR e (&)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

REELENER @

U TR AR T AR

Energy (Continued) (8&)
Year ended December 31
BZE12A31HLLEE
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AR EFor
Revenue Weas 7,617,072 4,981,444
Profit and total comprehensive FERNREAWGERE
income for the year 749,891 692,044
Dividends received from the joint venture WENE A &AL E 93,496 302,804

The above profit for the year includes the following:

EREREFIEEAT :

Year ended December 31
BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARBTT

Depreciation and amortization PTE R 218,174 201,169
Interest income FBUA 25,194 6,142
Interest expense F B 40,423 81,955
Income tax expense FriSFim 114,549 110,777
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22, REAEDEWRER (@

i%@%%ﬁ%%%éﬂﬁ%

Summarized financial information of CNC Risun
Energy (Continued)

ERMBERMBEBNREMBERER
P HERR B AP R B B BE TR M s AR T E Y

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in CNC Risun Energy recognized in

the consolidated financial statements: HRR -
As at December 31,
MR12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Net assets of CNC Risun Energy PR ERGRE IR E EFE 3,203,227 2,659,466
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBRPEBS R A
interest in CNC Risun Energy REz=LL 5] 45% 45%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBERPEBS RS
interest in CNC Risun Energy HEEREE 1,441,452 1,196,760

Summarized financial information of Risun China

Gas

JBRZ R R IRA BT S B B

As at December 31,

MR12A318

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETF T AR¥TFT

Non-current assets IERBEE 1,640,253 710,864

Current assets MEEE 1,457,747 480,539

Non-current liabilities e EIN=E 929,175 460,249

Current liabilities mENAE 1,580,513 442,400

Net assets BESE 588,312 288,754
2021 F3R

TEBEEBERA R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/2\\5:\‘/\ %%$&%%MTNE(/\/\>

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22. AEEDENRERE)

Summarized financial information of Risun China TEFZ AR IRE BT 75 E R B2
Gas (Continued) (%&)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: TMEERBBESERRFENUT
As at December 31,
M12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEERBY 66,884 152,066
Current financial liabilities nREBeRBEECTRIEE S REM
(excluding trade and other JEATFRIE K B 4)
payables and provisions) 64,655 -
Non-current financial liabilities FnBeHMBECTEEEI R
(excluding trade and other payables Eoh PR RUE R )
and provisions) 929,175 460,249
Year ended December 31
BZE12A318LEFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFT
Revenue Was 2,926,585 1,811,930
Profit and total comprehensive FEHMNREMYEEEEE
income for the year 299,558 158,289
The above profit for the year includes the it EEHFFEIRIAT ¢
following:
Depreciation and amortization e R 123,184 63,395
Interest income FBE YA 1,315 807
Interest expense BRI 2,524 26,967
Income tax expense Fifsfim s 91,081 31,609
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22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 22,

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

Summarized financial information of Risun China

Gas (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Risun China Gas recognized in

For the year ended December 31, 2021

HE2021F12A31HILFE
REeghENER @
Jgiﬁj?'*ﬂfﬂ BREEIR B TS BRI 2

ERMBERBE BN R M BERE
MR KBS IR B IR S AR EE R

the consolidated financial statements: HHRR -
As at December 31,
MR12A318
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Net assets of Risun China Gas TBRS AR R B R E B B 588,312 288,754
Proportion of the Group’s ownership R EE B R BIG R B IR Y
interest in Risun China Gas B EER LD 55% 55%
Carrying amount of the Group's N BERBIG R R R Y
interest in Risun China Gas EmREE 323,572 158,815

OTHER LONG TERM RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

23. HfttRABWRIER AN IR

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFT AREFT
Prepayments for property, plant and Y% - B KR EHTEN A

equipment 1,246,186 395,690
Loan receivables (Note a) EWRE R (H5ta) 358,709 368,367
Prepayments for right-of-use assets FREEENTENKIEA 30,662 50,000
Deposits for operation management B BERGHRS (Wi37)

services (note 37) - 675,000
Deposits and prepayment for proposed ~ #tU BB B A FIRIE & K IER FUE

acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) (H7£37) - 1,088,000
Receivables for relocation compensation & 4 (& & W 8 (#31b)

(Note b) 139,091 -
Deposits for other loans EMERNIES 178,064 =
Others Hh 41,315 30,175
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (64,067) (17,821)

1,929,960 2,589,411
2021 3R

TEBEEBERA R

223



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

23. OTHER LONG TERM RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

a. As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, loan receivable of
RMB300,000,000 represents an entrusted loan to a third party
through a licensed financial institution, which carries interest at
5.75% and will be matured in July 2023.

b. Receivables for relocation compensation amounting to
RMB139,091,000 represents the compensation in relation to a
relocation of one of its plants between locations in Dingzhou
City, which was presented as current assets in prior years. As at
December 31, 2021, after negotiation with local government, the
compensation was expected to be paid before June 30, 2023 and
therefore presented as non-current assets.

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL

23. HitRHEAEWFRIER FAKIE
(#8)
a. R2021F &2020F12A31H » &
WEZHARK300,000,0007T 44K
BB REESREEBETE=
FTHETXTER  ZEXNFEA
5.75% @ W #142023F7 A B8 -
b. B8 PR UEUE A R #5139,091,000

TCAHE —EME £ N A F B
ZEBBOME ZWMERBESF
EIERBEE - R2021F12H31
A KEEMBTERR B
B M2023F6 A30H AT »
IEPIEIERBNVEEE -

24, MAREFABRNE@ME

B AR
December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
2021%F12831H 202012 831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Non-current assets B EE
Listed equity securities (Note a) EHRAES W 7Fa) 154,482 57,678
Unlisted equity investment FELETRAIE 38,182 43,103
Private equity investment funds (Note b) FLERAIEEEE (Witb) 206,992 117,846
Wealth management product (Note c) ~ BAEEIRE (W itc) 107,923 32,411
507,579 251,038
Current assets MENEE
Futures contracts (Note d) HE& L E 2a) 66 2,885
Structured deposit MR 20,000 =
Held-for-trading non-derivative financial 1EEZIFTESREE
assets 69,581 5,290
89,647 8,175
Current liabilities MENBE
Futures contracts (Note d) HEEH W2 (19) (140)
Derivative financial instruments-swaps ~ $14£& 8T A — 58 (#/te)
(Note e) - (52,189)
(19) (52,329)
597,207 206,884
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

a.

Included in the carrying amount of listed equity securities as
at December 31, 2021 was 7,703,000 H shares of China Gas
Holdings Limited purchased in 2021. The fair value of these
shares was RMB101,940,000 as at December 31, 2021.

Private equity investment funds mainly comprise a private equity
investment fund focusing on the reform of state-owned enterprises
in Hebei Province, in which the Group injected RMB50,000,000
as part of registered capital in 2020 and further injected
RMB 100,000,000 in 2021 as the limited partner.

The Group subscribed for two principal-protected wealth
management products from two asset management companies
in 2021 with fair value of RMB107,923,000 as at December 31,
2021. The wealth management product held by the Group as at
December 31, 2020 was liquidated in 2021.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group entered
into certain futures contracts of coke, coking coal, and chemical
products with licensed futures trading companies to mitigate its
price risk associated with the coke, coking coal, and chemical
products sold without applying hedge accounting, and recognized
a gain of RMB74,022,000 arising on changes in fair value of these
financial instruments in the profit or loss during the year ended
December 31, 2021 (2020: RMB76,671,000).

The Group is exposed to exchange risk and interest rate risk
mainly arising from certain floating-rate bank loans denominated
in USD. To manage and mitigate the foreign exchange and
interest rate exposure, the Group entered into various swaps (the
“Swaps”) with certain financial institutions. As at December 31,
2020, the Swaps have total notional amounts of USD45,942,000
and RMB461,000,000, of which the maturity dates match to
the maturity dates of these banks loans. The Swaps are not
designated as hedging instruments. Accordingly, they are
classified and accounted for as financial instruments at FVTPL.
The fair value was RMB52,189,000 as at December 31, 2020 and
hence an unrealized losses of RMB52,189,000 and realized losses
of RMB17,479,000 was recorded as change in fair value during
the year ended December 31, 2020. The Swaps have matured
during the second half of 2021, and the Group recognized a
realized gain of RMB10,281,000.

}E’Aﬁfﬁ*l?ﬁéﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ

a. R2021F12831H » EHRAZE
%E’Jﬁﬁﬁfﬁ@%ﬁﬁzomﬂ%“m
7,703,000/% F B RIERR B IR A
HA% - ®20214128318 - A#I&
N ARERAARK101,940,000
ﬁ o

b. LERAREESTIEAEHIRN
At AR B CERENFLERER
BES  HPRAEBMR2020F 8
AR #50,000,0007T1E A 88 5 5t
BR - WHR2021FEBEREEA
i — 5 & AR %100,000,0007T °

c. 2021F  AEBERMRXEEETER
AIRER2021FE12A31BN AR

AANRE107,923,0007T IR D R
MEBEEM - AEBENR20205F12
A31BAFEEMENEREN2021F
Bt

d. B ZE2021F12A31BILFE - K
SEERFEHEBREQRET
Bk BEREIERBEELHI
WEHEBBAREHRRK - fERE
TERESOHRR(TEEAERS
1) B E2021412A318 1EFE
RIERERZEECRIARRESY
FELNK=EARKT74,022,0007T
(2020%F = AR¥76,671,0007T) °

e. AEBEAIHEXRFEXRBREE
REWEZBF B AUETE
WETRITER - BT ERRRE
SNERBKFBAER  ANEEHES
FemEBERTISERHEAN(IE
BA]) - 20205128318 @ HHI%
ZHELFERA5,942, 000 TR AR
#461,000,0007C © HAPE|HIH 8%
LRTEROHNPACE - %S5
MY EBEPTAR - At »
ENERFABAA BT ABED
BT A - R2020F12A31BH R
REEARKE52,189,0007T @ At
HZE2020F12A31BEFEMNRE
BEEAARKS52,189,000t M E
Eiﬂ%%éi%/\ﬁﬁéfw 479,0007TLE
REEAAREES -  ZERBPER
2021FE THFRH  AEEERAE
FIR Wz ARY10,281,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

25. DEFERRED TAX 25. EEBIIE
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AEETF T
Deferred tax assets RIETIAE B 125,251 187,787
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE (297,992) (39,314)
(172,741) 148,473
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in RAFE R BEFERNLRE MR
the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements RERBEEFIBEE, (AR HERE
thereon during the current and prior years are as follows: DREBUNT :
Temporary
differences
on property,
plant and Fair value
equipment Impairment adjustment
Impairment and losson  onacquisition
losses on intangible interestin -~ of a subsidliary
receivables assets an associate (Notg) Others Total
Re
YE-%
% BER il EA
e REREY ATiER MrERR
MREER  AEERER FIREER (3 Ef h
AWBO00 AWBO00 AWBO00 AWBO00 AWB00 AWB000

NEETT NERTT NERTT NEETT ARETT NRETT

At January 1, 2020 R020F1A18 14,105 115423 55,221 (35,499) 16,836 166,091
Credited (charged) to profit or oss SAGRE)ER 655 (27.242) : 830 8139 (17618)
At December 31, 2020 R2020E12A31H 14,760 88,181 55,221 (34,669) 24,974 148,473
Acquisition of a subsidiary (rote 37) YE-RNBLAWHY) - = = (286,681) = (286,681)
Credited (charged) to proft or loss AR E)BE 15970 (68516) = 28,386 (10373) (34,533)
At December 31, 2021 021 12A31H 30,730 19,665 55,221 (292,964) 14,601 (172,741)
Note: Deferred tax liabilities of fair value adjustment recognized by the Bzt - AEBERNALEARELERIE
Group represented the fair value adjustment on property, plant BIEEYERNEBELNDE
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets arising ERRE  FRELSENEREE
from the business acquisitions. B AR ETHE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25. JEFERLIE (4B)

The use of the tax losses is subjected to the agreement of the
tax authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the tax
legislation of the PRC. The unrecognized tax losses will expire
in five years after they are incurred. No deferred tax has been
recognized due to the unpredictability of future tax profit streams.
The unrecognized tax losses declared will expire in the following
years:

ERAZEVHABRACHEKERE
WETHBEFRENE THRE - RIER
BEBEESREERAFARINE - 1
HERERELERE - TR AR R
MR AT FANE - REERRIBEE
RRATFERH

As at December 31,

A12831H
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
2021 20214 - 209,202
2022 20224 187,436 187,436
2023 2023%F 11,577 11,577
2024 20244 78,789 78,789
2025 2025%F 399,869 216,195
2026 2026%F 833,812 =
1,511,483 703,199

As at December 31, 2021, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB145,600,000 (2020:
RMB125,214,000), which are mainly arising from unrealized profits
arising from a land transferred within the Group and impairment of
trade and other receivables of certain subsidiaries. No deferred
tax asset has been recognized in relation to such other deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available for offset against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from January 1, 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to RMB 8,909,744,000 as at December 31,
2021 (2020: RMB6,382,884,000), as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

M2021F12A31H - Z"EEFEM A
R R 2= BB 49 A R #145,600,0007T
(20204 : AR#125,214,0007T) © =
DELAAEERNIEENERNER
BREMNEETHBRARINE S ME
fth FE U GRIBRU(E o I 48t L A $0 R
ERZEZHBERELCHIBEEE - AR
JERBUEF TR ge K rI B ARy A]
R E R =58 o

RIEFBSEAEEE - B2008F 1A
1R BN B AR AR NE
B AR B FE IR - 20214512 A
318 - RERE B 53R 0 & 5k - B i
BRARIRBEAEEEREBEARYE
8,909,744,000 T (20204 : AR¥E
6,382,884,0007T) 5T RIEIE T IR B -
TR AE B MG BRI ERE
RN MERNEEAETSENR
F N E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE
26. INVENTORIES 26. F&
As at December 31,
M12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFIT
Raw materials B 980,111 705,763
Finished goods 2k 351,193 237,954
Trading stocks BH9FE 543,192 403,760
Properties under development % 314,582 159,906
2,189,078 1,507,383

Details of the pledged inventories are set out in note 44.

B SRR IEHNM 44 -

H A fE KRR, R D A EE A
Htt2EWETENE S B

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS 27.
RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI

228

MIENEWEE
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TFT AREFT
(Restated)
()
Trade receivables measured at FVTOCI AR EF AHMEE KIS
HE 5 e IE 509,911 541,495
Bills receivables measured at FVTOCI EAnEir ARt EEKERE
ol e i 441,467 463,786
Trade and bills receivables measured BAREFAEMEEKEE
at FVTOCI BE Z W FIE R ERER 951,378 1,005,281
Prepayments for raw materials BRI TER R 2,209,398 1,153,479
Other deposits, prepayments and Hibize - FENFRIEREMER
other receivables IE 270,001 98,704
Loan receivables B EWGRIA - 34,000
Receivables for relocation compensation  #%:8 # & e U 7k 8 (#15723)
(note 23) 63,502 139,091
Receivables on behalf of third parties EARSGREBRERE=TE
as a trading agency WskIA 643,326 230,506
Deductible input Value Added Tax and ] 058 A S (EH R T
prepaid other taxes and charges 480,927 197,179
Less: impairment o ORE (61,632) (22,727)
Other receivables E A e R TE 3,605,522 1,830,232
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

As at January 1, 2020, trade and bill receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB699,479,000.

The customers usually settle the sales by cash or bills. The credit
period granted to the customers who settle in cash is usually no
more than 30 days, interest free with no collateral. Aging of trade
receivables based on invoice dates, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, are as follows:

27.

eI RRNE(E)
HE2021F12A31HILFE

HAnEUCRIE, R A RERA
Hi2EWHEENE SR
IR EWRRE (&)

R2020F1A1H ' RERFAEHMN
oW FEREREREAARE
699,479,0007T,

EFPFBEUNRSXEBREEE@ME
B ARG TUREEENTFH
EERBETEBE30A (%8RI &K
) - REZEBHZ5HNE HEUGR
AR (AR ER B #EE) 1
T

As at December 31,

A12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Within one month —@AR 326,630 399,913
1 to 3 months 1£231@ A 33,407 120,931
3to 6 months 3Z6(EA 3,078 2,611
6 to 12 months 62 121E A 146,796 18,040
509,911 541,495

No credit period is offered for sales to be settled by bills, carrying
interest at market rates. Bills receivable are bank acceptance notes
and the average aging based on the maturity date is from 90 days
to 360 days.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables are
set out in note 41.

BEREMEMNEFENRREEDN
HERKEED - BREBRRRITA
REE - BERIHRANFHRE —
AREHIOARE360K ©

BERE SRR KB RBRER
HHYRHIEBN M EE41 o
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27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

The following bills receivable as at December 31, 2021 and 2020
were transferred to banks or suppliers by discounting, pledging
to banks or endorsing those receivables on a full recourse basis.
As the Group has not transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to these receivables, it continues to recognize the
full carrying amounts of the receivables and the corresponding
liabilities are included in secured borrowings or trade payables,
whichever is appropriate. These financial assets are carried at
FVTOCI.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

HAi IR S RARER A
Htr2ElmrE8NEZER
AR B ERE ()

LA BR20214F %2020 12 A31HE
BEMAE2EBREEEIE - iR
ZERBFETFRITREEZSER
SRIE MR T IRITR M EE A ERE
& o RSB R SR
BRBAE D R RER - HEERE
REBFENZEFAEIEHEAE
TAEERERRE SR FHBEOAE
BEARE) - ZELMEERAANER
AHAMBEEUES -

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT AREFT
Carrying amount of transferred assets BEEEEREE 271,583 177,325
Carrying amount of associated payables #ERE & B ZBRE(E
to suppliers (note 30) (H17£30) (271,583) (177,325)

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, bills receivable issued among
subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions have been
discounted with full recourse to secure bank borrowings amounting
to RMB1,439,289,000 and RMB1,878,529,000 respectively, and
these bills receivable have been eliminated in these consolidated
financial statements (note 32).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

27. OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE AND BILLS 27. HMEWRIE RAAERA

RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT FVTOCI
(CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards relating to certain bills receivable
discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers even if the banks
and suppliers have the right of recourse. The Group’s obligations to
the corresponding counterparties were discharged in accordance
with the commercial practice in the PRC and the risk of the default
in payment of the endorsed and discounted bills receivable is
remote because all endorsed and discounted bills receivable
are issued and guaranteed by reputable banks in the PRC. As a
result, the relevant assets and liabilities were derecognized and
no longer included in the consolidated financial statements. The
maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the default of
these endorsed and discounted bills receivable at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

Htr2ElmrE8NEZER
AR B ERE ()

RBERR - AEECERAREE T
BRTROTXEETHEBNEEE
BEB AR D e B @ s (BN 8R 7T A0
HEFEERE) - ARBHAER
ZEFHERBORRPERRE)E
B EEERCHBARKEERNONR
EHNRBRASMTEM  BRMEES
ERCHRERERATBEARGE
MIRTTEIT RIEMR - Hit - HEAEE
REBEBEERIIERATHRBERGS
MBmERD - NEREPR - AKE
AZEEEERCHMARKEREY
AIREEEM R ARBINT

As at December 31,

MR12A318

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARTFT

Discounted bills for raising cash BEREBRNESR S 156,773 623,448
Endorsed bills for settlement of payables =2 = Z & LAE (] e L fERg

to suppliers A 2,744,985 2,663,339
Outstanding endorsed and discounted BB ZEMNH ARSI HE HE

bills receivable with recourse KB RLIR KRR 2,901,758 3,286,787

The outstanding endorsed and discounted bills receivable will be
matured within 12 months from the end of the reporting period.

HAZMHESEREURBERRE
1B ARE HIRE12[EA RBH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE I IEEHRER MR (&)
For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

28. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s restricted bank balances
placed to secure various liabilities of the Group are as follows:

28.

ZRHIRITEER

ARERARESREENAREX
RHIRITAERRABRE BT -

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ABR¥TFT ARETFT
Restricted bank balances to secure: EREZR BRI TR
Bills payable and letters of credit (Note) — FEN =48 k(= & (H:L) 732,200 935,865
Bank loans IRITE K 406,884 112,245
Letter of guarantee REK - 35,402
Futures contracts HEA4 116,989 211,144
1,256,073 1,294,656
Analyzed for reporting purpose as: DITESWMAE -
Current assets MENEE 900,073 1,294,656
Non-current assets EMBEE 356,000 =

Note: Certain restricted bank balance were placed to secure bills issued
among subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions
which have been discounted with full recourse to secure bank
loans of RMB1,439,289,000 and RMB1,878,529,000 as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 respectively. Further details of
which are set out in notes 27 and 32 respectively.

Restricted bank balances are deposited with banks mainly in the
PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
the exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government. These
bank deposits carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.30% to
3.85% per annum as at December 31, 2021 (2020: 0.30% to 1.75%
per annum).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. HERBFESEEY
Bank balances, included bank deposits, carried interest at market R2021F 128318  R1TEBR (BT
interest rate ranging from 0.01% to 2.70% (2020: from 0.3% to RITFEFORTSNENFEF0.01%
0.385%) per annum as at December 31, 2021. Bank balances and £2.70%(20204F : 0.3%%0.385%) 71
cash as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 were mainly denominated B o 120214 2020512 A31 B HIIR
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the international THHRASFTEUAARBHE - A
market and the remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject REWIHEBEEMB EERIBNE
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government. B mzSEeBERPRASHREIK

F e hn e BEE 54 PR )

Denominated in the currency other than the functional currency of RS E BN EB I E
relevant group entities: BEEHE -

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFT
United States Dollars (“USD”) ESSM(ESyW) 95,242 69,797
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) AT 21,071 6,896
Others (Note) HAth (#72) 285 1,621
116,598 78,314
Note: Others mainly contain Euro (“EUR”) and Japanese Yen (“JPY”). Met: HEtErEFEET(RIT)RBT
gzl -

2021 F3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EZRHMENRE
As at December 31,
M12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(& Em)
Trade payables ESREMNIE 1,688,476 892,193
Payables to be settled by the endorsed  H1& SN ERE R ENFE
bills receivable (note 27) (H1iz27) 271,583 177,325
Bills payable ANES 730,964 549,513
Payables for construction in progress HEIEEMFOE 1,140,154 794,695
Payables on behalf of third parties asa 1EARSREREE=FEMNFHIE
trading agency 603,850 883,222
Other tax payables E AR 181,640 181,119
Payroll payables B TE 296,427 132,209
Other payables and accruals E A pE A R ERHE A 370,800 301,366
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: AITEZ2HRAE ¢
Current liabilities MEAE 5,283,894 3,911,642

MEESREMENFTEALR —FA
A BERRNFHEEHRRI0E
90K °

All trade and other payables are due within one year. The average
credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to 90 days.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

ATREHRERARIZEZAMNE
DIENFIRFRE DT

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EFIT AEREFT
Within 3 months 3EARA 1,327,271 744,673
3 to 6 months 3Z6/EAH 73,393 69,487
6 to 12 months 6= 121E A 67,819 29,672
1 -2 years 1226 190,769 15,040
2 - 3 years 2&E3F 5,188 14,339
More than 3 years 3FL L 24,036 18,982
1,688,476 892,193
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. EWEaE
Contract liabilities primarily represent advance from customers, and EHNERFERREASERRNERD
are expected to be settled within one year. For the contract liabilities TE WA RO 2R B B P ) B R TR AR
as at January 1, 2020 and December 31, 2020, the entire balances —FRNEE - YHR2020F1 818 K
were recognized as revenue to profit or loss in the next reporting 2020512 A31BMERNAE - 284
year. MET —EREFENBRTHERAR

Weas o

As at January 1, 2020, contract liabilities amounted to MR2020F1A1H - GHEERARK
RMB938,950,000. 938,950,0007T °

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 32. RITRHEMER
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank and other loans is as RITRAEMEREREI AT
follows:

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARTFT
Bank loans IRITER
Secured [REeE 5,286,852 3,550,270
Unsecured diigt 4,488,217 3,648,967
Other loans EmER
Secured [z 2,331,098 1,146,306
Unsecured I 41,224 273,662
Discounted bills financing (note 27) ARIR IR R E (H7227)
— Discounted bills receivable from —REARRRMBEARN
subsidiaries of the Company ALIR R 5 1,439,289 1,878,529
13,586,680 10,497,734
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ire M RAME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 32. Hih & (&)
At the end of each reporting period, the bank and other loans were REREHR  RITEHEMERET
repayable as follows: BEEBERAT

As at December 31,

M12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFT
Within 1 year 1R 8,209,846 7,771,801
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F A H{B2FR 3,062,746 1,654,784
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F LA HBSFR 2,314,088 1,021,149
More than 5 years 5F A E - 50,000
13,586,680 10,497,734
Analyzed for reporting purpose as: AITE2WAS
Current liabilities Pk =N 8,209,846 7,771,801
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 5,376,834 2,725,933
13,586,680 10,497,734
Bank and other borrowings denominated in currencies other than U ERNNEEE I EEE
the functional currencies of respective entities are set out below: RYERTT M E A B FRE AT -
As at December 31,
M12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFT
uUsb E 1,023,906 757,314
JPY = 3,695 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

32. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 32.

The carrying amount of the bank and other borrowings and the
range of interest rates are as below:

RITREMERE)

P17 E A 12 2R O BE T (B B R R B )
AR

As at December 31,

R12A31A
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 % RMB000 %
AREFT % AREFT %
Fixed rate bank and other borrowings EBRTREMER 9473579  1.82~12.00 7295400  2.99~12.00
Floating rate bank and other borrowings (Note) % 83817 Rk Bt 34 (47:2) 4,113,101 1.58~8.00 3202334  2.89~11.40
13,586,680 10,497,734

Note: included in floating rate bank and other borrowings was a bank
borrowing of RMB835,025,000 carried at LIBOR. The remaining
floating rate bank and other borrowings are carried at loan prime
rate (LPR) issued by the People’s Bank of China.

The secured other loans represent mortgage loans from the
licensed finance companies secured by property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, as well as loans from licensed
financial institutions secured by the Group’s bank deposits.

Details of the assets pledged for securing the banking facilities of
the Group are set out in note 44.

Except for the bank and other loans guaranteed by the related
parties as detailed in note 39(d), a Group’s bank loan of
RMB3,695,000 as at December 31, 2021 (2020: Nil) is fully
guaranteed by an independent company.

B - MANFEBRITREMERN T AE
R BURIT R ZIREF RBITER
AR835,025,0007T ° #2848
TREMEBRDIZFEARRITE
B2 ERTSIREFRE -

EEMEMEREADE - BE k&R
BREREEEFEROFERMER
AIRIBER - URNAEERITER
TEEMOS RS REEER -

AEBRBGRITREMEEANE
ERIEBNMITE44

BREAEE S ERAIRIT R EMERGESE
BRHIEE39(d)) Fh - 7202112 A31
HERAEBIRITERARES,695,000
TL(2020%F : M)A~ RBULAAIE
R RN AEERZRITERE
B A EHRHRER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE
33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. fHEAE
Lease liabilities payables: HEAFEEMNIE :
As at December 31,
MR12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Within one year —FR 71,208 27,790
Within a period of more than one year 1E A E{E2F A
but not more than two years 51,914 12,705
Within a period of more than two years ~ 2F LA H{E5F R
but not more than five years 90,886 24,545
After 5 years 5% E - 4,486
214,008 69,526
Less: Amount due for settlement within & : JRBI & EE ~NER
12 months shown under current 12 ARNEEN S5
liabilities (71,208) (27,790)
Amount due for settlement after FERBEEIE TEM2E AR
12 months shown under non-current =Rkt
liabilities 142,800 41,736

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
liabilities range from 4.63% to 6.10% (2020: 4.63% to 5.35%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

34. DEFERRED INCOME

34. EIZEWA

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31B8LLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT
Government grant related to assets )8R E B A BBV 7 B
at the beginning of the year 89,280 85,932
Additions NE 55,998 9,776
Released to profit or loss BEER (8,212) (6,428)
At the end of the year REFER 137,066 89,280
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: DITESWMAE -
Current liabilities RENEEGT AN FRIE)
(included in other payables) 9,330 7,628
Non-current liabilities EmBAalE 127,736 81,652
137,066 89,280

Deferred income arising from government grants relating to assets
represents the government subsidies obtained in relation to the
purchase of the land use rights and the infrastructure construction,
which was included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as deferred income and credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the relevant
depreciable assets.

B ER B A BT B E AR E W
AEEREE T i AR R AR
ERATEBFHE - REA BN
RARINBBEERA - NEREER
BRI T E B ER TR A 28 F HE
ANFEBaREMEEWER o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RePBmRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. B
As at December 31, As at December 31,
W12A318 R12A31A
2021 2020 2021 2020
20216 2020F 20214 20204
Number of Number of
shares Shares HKD000 HKD'000
RiEE RirEH FET FET
Authorised EE
Shares of HKD0.10 each FHR010B TR
Authorized ordinary shares: ETELBR -
At beginning and end of the year FOREXR 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid of ERTRBEERER
ordinary shares:
At the beginning of the year F4) 4,090,000,000  4,090,000,000 409,000 409,000
Shares issued (Note) BETRN W) 350,000,000 = 35,000 =
At the end of the year FER 4,440,000,000  4,090,000,000 444,000 409,000

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT

Presented in the consolidated statement WA F SRR KR 255
of financial position as:

At the beginning of the year F4) 354,699 354,699
Share issued BT 28,905 =
At the end of the year FR 383,604 354,699

Note: On June 3, 2021, the Company placed new shares of 350,000,000
at the placing price of HK$5.90 per share (the “Placing”).
The gross proceeds received by the Company from the
Placing was approximately HK$2,065,000,000 (equivalent to

RMB1,705,381,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

36. RESERVES
Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amount included in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the share capital issued/consideration paid by the
Company and the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganization, accounted for as capital
contribution from/distribution to ultimate holding company under
merger basis of accounting.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group acquired
100% equity interest or share capital of RMB205,000,000 in
Tangshan Risun Petroleum at the consideration of RMB570,000,000
paid in cash and accounted for as business acquisition under
common control.

Reserve fund

The Articles of Association of certain PRC subsidiaries require the
appropriation of 10% of their profit after tax each year, based on
their statutory audited financial statements, to the reserve fund until
the balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective
PRC subsidiaries. The reserve fund may be capitalized as the paid-
in capital of these subsidiaries.

Safety fund

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulation, the Group is required to
transfer 1.5% on revenue generated from the core business into a
designated fund. The fund will be used for installation and repair
and maintenance of safety facilities. The movements in the reporting
periods represent the difference between the amounts provided
based on the relevant PRC regulation and the amount utilized
during the year.

36.

e B RRMEE(E)

HZE2021F12A31HILFE

RIEFSHBRRDEEER]D @ FTAR
REBRMEERTNEEADIRT A
RAEIRCR - AR R EREEE D RS
AMRARREAENEREERKB
EPEESIEET -

B

BHRERBEARRERITRAEE
BB R AR A R B = A PR RE I
BARARAFERZHNERE - BRES
HEFERERREERQRMEE
A/ DK °

HZE2021F12A31H L FEHRH - &
SELRSWERE ILBBE T AR AT
100% #7338 248 A R #205,000,000
7T R{BAEARES570,000,0007T * 1E
BRI T B E RS EARR o

EEE

ETHEMBARNAMEIZMANE
REEFRBEELAELEZVHRERHK
HBEBEENHN10%BEARBES -
BHEAHEDEES B E R T
BARH50% ° HRES A ENMEBZ
EMBRRNBERER

LEES

RIEEERBER  NEEAEBZL
EBELNWR15%EAEEES -
ZESHEANTERENETE - #1E
FMRE - RIREBANEEIERIEFTE
HEERRENSERFTFANFERSRE
Z IR ZERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

36.

37.

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Other reserve

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

36.

The other reserve comprises the accumulated changes in the
carrying amount of financial assets measured at FVTOCI and all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations with functional currency

other than RMB.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On January 15, 2021, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in
Shunri Xinze (the “Acquisition”) at the consideration of RMB4.91
billion. The Acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of
business using the acquisition method. Details of the Acquisition
are set out in the Group’s circular dated December 8, 2020. The
Acquisition is conducive to the future business expansion of the
Group in the coke and refined chemicals market.

37.

it ()
H At i 5

HivFmBEREAAEFAEMEE
Wt EMERMEERAERTED
RRAARBASNTI BB B EF I
B BBRREENABINEEZE

WiE—ERE AR

202118158 ' ZEBUREBARKE
49 1ETT BB B =2 (T4 1) 100%
e o AR BIRWB A ERERK
BAR - WEFBEERASERRA
2020F12 A8A 2 KA - ARUWHEHR
FIR AL B RRNERREMLET
SRIETSIER ©

Assets and liabilities recognized at the date of Acquisition: RUEE AR EERBE
RMB'000
AR TFT
Non-current assets FIREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - RE KRR 3,835,277
Intangible assets mEE 852,000
Right-of-use assets EREEE 316,577
Other long term receivables and
prepayments H it R AP K FE 508 55,175
Current assets REBEE
Inventories A 463,263
Other receivables HoAth fEU IR 496,625
Trade and bills receivables measured BAnErr ALt EEKERE
at FVTOCI BE 5 e R IA K IR R 410,394
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEEY 43,851
Current liabilities RENEE
Contract liabilities aHatE (16,903)
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMFERFRIA (1,024,473)
Income tax payable FERTETIS B (431,732)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIA A E (286,681)
Net assets acquired EWBFEE 4,713,373
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 37.

Note:

As of the date of the Acquisition, Shunri Xinze is undergoing an
arbitration with a contractor in respect of the services provided to one
of its subsidiaries prior to May 2020. The independent lawyer advised
that the probable claim of the arbitration for the Group was approximate
RMB268 million based on the arbitration results of part of the contracts
made by arbitration court during the year ended December 31, 2021.
Therefore, the Directors have recognised an additional provision of
RMB80 million for this arbitration and included in trade and other
payables.

The trade and bills receivables measured at FVTOCI, and other
receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade receivables)
with a fair value of RMB907,019,000 at the date of acquisition had
gross contractual amounts of RMB923,853,000. The best estimate
at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected amounted to RMB16,834,000.

Goodwill arising on acquisition

eI RRNE(E)
HZE2021F12A31HILFE

B — R Y 8 ) (4D
Hikt -

HEARBEALY  IER{EZEEHN2020F
5ARIAE KB QAR ENRE EAR
FETHE - BBLZMEH  BEEE
2021412 A31 8 L F[Z B & EL 25
BRIFTMER - NEBBRITRATEEEZ
RENABARE268EET - Al EEH
RRFHERRARKESOE BTN
RIFAE S REARERFKIE -

RULHE B IR A o Ert AR M2 A RS FT
ENESHERUGEIERZEREME R
BEKRBEPEEOREE S ERIE)
ZRARESANREI07,019,0007 © AL
/A AR#923,853,0007T ° TAHIAR AWK E
MENBESRENKBAYNREGRES
AR#16,834,0007T °

WHRELNEE

RMB000
AREFT
Total consideration wmRE
Offset by B2 SRIE I 5
deposits for operation management B BERBNIERSWit23)
services (note 23) 675,000
deposits and prepayment for proposed  ¥HNIEMT B A B8R e KIER
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 23) SKIEBE#23) 1,088,000
Paid in cash BeX T 250,000
Consideration payable: FEFRRE -
On September 15, 2023 (Note) 12023F9 8158 (H/7t) 1,325,000
On or before September 15, 2024 (Note) 7202459 81583k 2 A (#1:%) 1,576,000
4,914,000
Less: recognized amounts of net assets  Jil : CUWEEFEENERESHE
acquired (4,713,373)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEBELENEE 200,627

Note: the outstanding balances of RMB2,901,000,000 are bearing
interest at 10% per annum with interest payable quarterly.

Goodwill represents the control premium and the unused tax
losses and deductible temporary difference of the Shunri Xinze
and its subsidiaries at the date of Acquisition. Since the deductible
temporary difference is pending for the confirmation by the local tax
authorities, no deferred tax asset has been recognized due to its
unpredictability in nature.

HisE - AREE2,901,000,0007T KK (E & 8
BIEFEFNE10% B - FIBREE
XAt e

BERIEREEREME R RREE
B A2 ) B A S R A B IR 18
FIEMERMEER - AR AT ENE R
MERETEHHERERER  BE
THRAMNE  RERBELEMFHE
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

Net cash outflows arising on the Acquisition

37. WE—RBEHELQR

WHEEARRE R FER

RMB'000

AREFr

Consideration paid in cash TREERE 250,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

acquired B BWEER e RIREEEY (43,851)

206,149

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Included in the revenue and profit for the year are RMB5,245,579,000
and RMB284,979,000, respectively, attributable to the additional
business generated by Shunri Xinze.

Had the acquisition of Shunri Xinze been completed on January
1, 2021, revenue for the year of the Group would have been
RMB38,705,525,000, and the profit for the year would have been
RMB2,619,011,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on January 1, 2021,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the “pro-forma” revenue and profit of the Group
had Shunri Xinze been acquired at the beginning of the year, the
Directors calculated depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment based on the recognised amounts of property,
plant and equipment at the date of the Acquisition.
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38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organized by the PRC
municipal government authorities whereby the Group is required
to make contributions to the Schemes based on applicable rates.
The municipal government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously
covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HKD1,500. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under those schemes which may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
There were also no forfeited contributions available at 31 December
2021 and 2020 under the schemes which may be used by the
Group to reduce the contribution payable in future years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, transactions
with the following parties are considered to be related party
transactions:

38.

39.

e MR ERERNE(E)
HZE2021F12A31HLEFE
EERAKER

SE R FCRINGT S

RIFPEBRAS TRANER - K&
%) b B B B 2 B 2 B el o B T R 4
s m SUERFR RN B (%%
FHED - Bt AEBARERALER
ZEFTEFHER - TRAKEAE
EHENEEKREERNEAKRSEE -

AEBTRIEESBHIEATEETE
O BRB B REBIEOINEE R
TREABBEVIEZATEREFENRK
EREMES LB —EBHIEA
Bertal(aEestal)) - eEaSsE
THEBISIEATENRTEHICENK
T2 - RIEwESHE  BEXRERE
B & AAKESRBEWRANS%AITE
TERHER - & AMEBERA LR A&1,500
BT © FHEIHRANR RS -

HE2021F 202012 A31B IEFE
i ZEFTEE T AE B &
N5 B A UA PR R IR A KK F R 1
S8l 7 AR o 20214 22020512 A
318 ' ZEHEBETTIEITHASE
A UARRIR B HIOKFE 22

R o

A

BB L R 5 RS

RELZ2021%F K 2020F12 A31HILF
B BHUTEANR WS A

5

Name of related party
BEH B

Relationship with the Group
HEAREENER

Mr. Yang Xuegang
BEMEE

Xuyang Holding (Note) (JBIS1ERE TR A &)
TR B R AR (it

Risun Supply Chain Management Limited (Note) (JERS (L FESEE AR AR,
formerly known as Risun Mining Co., Ltd. (RTFEESE X AR A 7))
MBSt e E IR B R A R (Ha) (RIB B R EER A R)

Director and the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder

EEREEERRR

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
15 E M S Al

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

b
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. ML R H R&EER(E)

246

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Name of related party
BEE T BB

Relationship with the Group
HEAEENER

Beijing Risun Science and Technology Limited (Note)
(AtRBEREBR AT, formerly known as Beijing Risun Chemicals
Technology and Research Limited
(ATRBIE R IBRS L TR AR B R 2 )

1R IBRS BH A BR 22 B (7 22) (AT B L IBR b TR AR A Rl

Xingtai Xuyang Technology Co,. Ltd. (Note) (B& BB RHRE R A &)
MamEREER AR @)

Dingzhou Risun Technology Co,. Ltd (Note) (FE M BEE RIS AR A F)
TEMBHRHRERA R (H:E)

Xuyang Engineering Co,. Ltd. (Note) (fBI5 T2 &R A7, formerly known as
Hebei Xuyang Engineering Design Co,. Ltd. (A 1t/BR TI2R AR A )
JBRz TRAR AR (H7:2) FiiEa a5 TR RE AR A R)

Risun Chemicals Technology Research Co., Ltd. (Note)
(1B BRI AR A R])
TBRS L SRR B R A R (H72)

Xingtai Tianlu Real Estate Development Co,. Ltd. (Note)
(MaREFEMEREBRLR)
MaREFELEREERAR W)

Pingdingshan Xingyu New Material Co., Ltd. (Note)
(“Pingdingshan Xingyu”) CETELL EFFH R E R A R])
FIRLEFFHRERA R (FIBLEF]) (#:2)

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

L e ey

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
A5 S ST A 2

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
A5 S ST A 2

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
Lo
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
L
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
L
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

5 T A1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. ML R H R&EER(E)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Name of related party
BEEE T BB

Relationship with the Group
HEXREENRER

Dingzhou Risun Real Estate Development Co,. Ltd. (Note)
(EMMEBEHERZEER D F], formerly known as Dingzhou Tianlu Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (BITBEMAEFEHEREERAF))

MBS E M EREER AR Z) GEEMRER EREERAR)

Hebei China Coal Risun Energy Limited (Note) (“CNC Risun Energy”,
formerly known as Hebei China Coal Risun Coking Limited)
(bR B RERER AT, AL RERRE AR AR)

AI3E AR BB BEIR B R A 7] (0 5F) ((HEEARISA R Al T 3 TR IS 4k
BRAR)

Huhhot Risun China Gas Energy Limited (Note)
(“Risun China Gas”) (MALERHBEHRIREER AR A )
RS R ES R aE R AR A 5 () ([TBFS HiRaEIR))

Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited (Note)
(“Jinniu Risun Chemicals”) (At &+ Bt THRAR])
Ak @B TER AR H ) (S4B I))

Cabot Risun Chemicals (Xingtai) Co. Ltd. (Note)
(“Cabot Risun Chemicals”) (F18H B T &) AR A7)
KRS TE) AR AR ) (REFBELI)

Yangmei Group Shouyang Jingfu Coal Co., Ltd. (Note) (“Jingfu Coal”)
(GREESEREREERAF)
GREESGRBREFRARG ) (REHEED)

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

e e

Joint venture of the Group

Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The
official names of these entities are in Chinese.

Rrit - WO RXBERER2E - Z5R
BHEABERTX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. M A RZ REERIE)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

The Group entered into the following material related party AEETITUATEREBAIRS :

transactions:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EB2EEAEHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBFZEBRAENTH(E
including amounts paid to the Directors and the other highest WIS EE N EE R EA
paid employee as disclosed in note 13, is as follows: EaFEENTINAT

Year ended December 31,

BZ12831HLFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB000
ARMWFIT AE¥TFT
Short-term employee benefits 2 EE BT 21,848 19,757
Post-employment benefits & BRRAET] 325 46
22,173 19,803
Key management represents the Directors and other senior FEERABEEERASER
management personnel of the Group. The remuneration of key BMERANE c TEEEAS
management is determined with reference to the performance B B AR R AN S 1 N B A By R
of the Group and the individuals. MEFE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
%Tﬂ\é/ﬁﬁﬂv’%$&?§|§ﬁp£(n,\>

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

39. BT R Z R AR ()

(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEEEEHHR S

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31ALEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFr
Purchases of goods from BEEM
— related parties controlled by — MBS EEHIR R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 691,804 89,247
— CNC Risun Energy — R BR5EER 5,290,691 460,896
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — 48k tT 27,889 28,519
— Risun China Gas — JBFZ R ERBEIR 1,648,001 80,699
Sales of goods to HEEMm
— related parties controlled by — MBS E L E AR
Mr. Yang Xuegang 4,246 =
— CNC Risun Energy — R BI5EEIR 180,552 686,194
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — 48T 9,926 6,129
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —REFES T 643,769 197,939
— Risun China Gas —JBFZ A IREETR 181,808 374,482
Construction service from BRRAR
— related parties controlled by — 5 E E AR R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 301,949 317,286
Other services from HAb AR
— related parties controlled by — 155 i S A PR I A RE
Mr. Yang Xuegang - 1,964
Provision of service to REARS
— related parties controlled by — 155 [ 2 A1 I A R s
Mr. Yang Xuegang 59 328
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —REEBS{ET 802 831
— Risun China Gas — TG R PRBEIR 18,499 11,414
2021 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. ML R H R &R (&)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) HEEEHHR S EE)

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLELEE

2021 2020
2021%F 20205
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT AREFT
Transfer of right-of-use assets to ~ E:EFREEE
— CNC Risun Energy — R BI5EEIR - 55,329
Rental income from el
— related parties controlled by — 15 S e S A I R RE
Mr. Yang Xuegang 979 1,188
— CNC Risun Energy — R NBRS BE IR 171 1,133
— Risun China Gas — JBFS R HRBEIR 43 =
Interest income from AEWA
~ Risun China Gas — JBRS R HRAEIR 15,976 —
Interest expenses on lease liabilities T & & &% 8.5 X (4/77)
(Note)
— related parties controlled by Mr.  — Bt 5 e S5 A 12 Il A0 B
Yang Xuegang 9,858 =
Expenses relating to leases (Note) MEREE R (41:7)
— related parties controlled by Mr.  — Fa 155 e S AR PR Il R
Yang Xuegang 31,387 -
Note: During the year ended December 31, 2021, Risun Kzt - HE20215F12A318 I FEHARK -
Marketing Limited (“Risun Marketing”), a wholly-owned AEB2ENBRAREEEHEER
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a lease agreement ARN([MBFSEE]) EEE k4
with Risun Research, a related party controlled by Mr. Yang P2 B B B 5 B RS BT R PR BT a2 AR
Xuegang, pursuant to which Risun Marketing leases an EiH#E - Bt - BEEZE#HB2021
office space starting from February 2021 to January 2026. FE2HE2026F 1 HABRAE o
As at December 31, 2021, lease liabilities and right-of-use MN2021F12A31H - HEEBER
assets amounted to RMB 139,038,000 and RMB 139,815,000, FRHEESERVBERESR A
respectively were recognized upon initial recognition. AR#¥139,038,000t M AR
Expenses relating to leases amounting to RMB31,387,000 139,815,0007T - HEEBEERAAA
represents depreciation of the above said right-of-use R #31,387,0007T * ARKEEH
assets recognized during the current year. RERN LiEREEENE -
The above related party transactions were conducted in L EEE T R 5 IR B AR 1 5 IR
accordance with terms of the relevant agreements. LT o
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Balances with related parties

For the year ended December 31, 2021

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had the
following balances with related parties:

(c)

HE2021F12A31HILFE

39. BT R Z R AR ()

B BB 7 A R

REWMEHR - AEEHERH T
HYAEERINT ¢

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFT AREFT
Amounts due from related parties  FEUREAE 7 8
Dividend receivable FEMIAR 2.
— CNC Risun Energy — R TBRGRER 90,519 102,335
Non-Trade nature B HHEE
— Risun China Gas — JBR5 R R BER 400,000 =
— Risun Wei Shan —JBFEE L 597,276 =
- De Tian Coking —EmXEL 133,890 =
- KinXiang New Energy —BEEIR 122,855 =
1,254,021 -
Impairment under ECL model TEEEEEEEXMNRE (9,900) =
1,244,121 -
Trade nature Z514E
Trade receivables Z 5 EWGRIA
— related parties controlled by — 5 E AR T
Mr. Yang Xuegang 11,094 500
— CNC Risun Energy — R NBRS BE IR 7,985 15,524
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RER BB T 30,559 5,084
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — 4 BB 1,672 =
— Risun China Gas —TBFGHIREETR 335,132 74,727
386,442 95,835
Impairment under ECL model TEEEEEEEXMNRE (1,724) (1,029)
384,718 94,806
Prepayment ARSI
— related parties controlled by — BB S E A 8 FE
Mr. Yang Xuegang 258,334 9,902
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals —&4BEET 2,444 32
— Risun China Gas —JERZ R IRBETR 208,802 160,642
469,580 170,576
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: D ITE2 A A ¢
Current assets MENEE 2,108,128 367,717
Non-current assets IEREBEE 80,810 =
2021 3R

TEBEEBERA R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. ML RXH R &R (&)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c) EAREEGHaASEeR(B)
Aging of amounts due from related parties-trade nature net of FEUS RA R 5 B 51 B RIE (0B
allowance for credit losses are as follows: FEEEEREEREROT

As at December 31,

MR12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFIT ARETFT
Within one month —@AR 351,256 78,638
1 to 3 months 1238 A8 597 11,001
4 to 6 months 4% 618 A 2,799 4,958
6 to 12 months 6ZE121E A 30,066 209
384,718 94,806

As at December 31,

M12831H8
2021 2020
2021 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFTT AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
Amounts due to related parties FE{SRARE 5 8
Trade nature 2518
Trade payable B S ENFRIA
— CNC Risun Energy — BB BE IR 5,659 36,545
— related parties controlled by — 3155 i ST A PR I A BRSO
Mr. Yang Xuegang 95,898 5,004
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RiEEBREET 2,566 27,298
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — &4 1BBET 7 1,073
— Risun China Gas — JBF5 R R BER 17,523 =
121,717 69,920
Payable to construction in progress £ T2 718
— related parties controlled by — MBS E L EEHIR R
Mr. Yang Xuegang 61,307 98,086
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. ML RXH R &R (&)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (c) ERFAEE T &R (8E)

As at December 31,

A12A31H
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMFT ARHFr
(Restated)
(FeE )
Non-trade nature HFEHIEE
— related parties controlled by — 155 [ 2 A1 I A R s
Mr. Yang Xuegang - 26,450
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: D HTE2 WA®E
Current liabilities REBBE 183,024 194,456
Aging of amounts due to related parties-trade nature are as FENTRRRE 77 B 5 1 E SR RRE 1A

follows: T

As at December 31,

A12A31H

2021 2020

2021 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFT

Within one month —@AR 108,015 146,598

1 to 3 months 1238 A8 28,976 11,150

3 to 6 months 3£61EA 23,556 1,469

6 to 12 months 62121 A 19,391 1,355

1-2 years 1224 660 3,180

2-3 years 2&E3F 2,426 4,254

183,024 168,006
As at December 31, 2021, except for amount due from Risun 53?021¢jh2ﬂ 318 - ERBEs A
China Gas amounting to RMB400,000,000 and amount due ﬁ_bﬁﬁi”&ﬂﬁ}\ﬁmi?o'ooo!oqo
from De Tian Coking amounting to 133,890,000 which are E&TE%EQKELWQEEAE%
interest bearing, all other amounts due from/to related parties 133’890’000733%5*%2’\%&\ ) ﬁ
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. i P B B A BT 07 ROR 7%

EER - RS NBREREER -

2021 F 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE I IEEHRER MR (&)
For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(d) At the end of each reporting period, the maximum liabilities
of the Group under guarantees issued to banks in respect of
banking facilities granted to joint ventures were as follows:

39. BT R Z R AR ()

(d) REREHK  BAEF-REE

DEMRTRERRTELNE
7 AEEMNEBEENT -

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFT
Financial guarantees issued to M—RE S EHHNMBER
joint ventures 1,647,850 1,280,000

As at December 31, 2021, the above guaranteed facilities
utilized by the joint ventures were RMB876,458,000 (2020:
RMB965,470,000). In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group were
insignificant at the date of issue of the financial guarantee
and no provision is necessary at the end of each reporting
period taking into account the solid credit rating, reliable
cashflows, stable earnings and healthy financial position of
the joint ventures. Hence the Directors consider that a claim
to be made against the Group under any of these guarantees
is remote.

(e) During the year ended December 31, 2020, two subsidiaries
of the Company and CNC Risun Energy entered into a deed
of assignment pursuant to which the dividend receivable of
RMB171,000,000 due from CNC Risun Energy was offset
against the same amounts due to CNC Risun Energy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

41,

The Group’s primary objectives of managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Based on recommendations of the board of directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through adjusting the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issuing of new shares, raising
new debt financing or selling assets to reduce debt. During the
reporting period, there were no changes in the objectives, policies
Or processes.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt position. The
Group’s strategy was to maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure there was adequate working capital to service
its debt obligation.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial

assets and financial liabilities at the end of each reporting period
are set out as follows:

e B RRMEE(E)

HZE2021F12A31HILFE

40. EXER

41,

AEBEREANTIRENREER
FRKQEMED  eMEHEENER
RAEBERADNSRE  BESKRRE
HE RS SEAF DB RIS -

AEEEBLERRASMNERZLER
B NEARBRSEIUKFRES
R BOREIHRERG T - EED
RIEEER N R EARBIEHFE

REEFEEER  A5KEHEBAR
BB RS 25 - BITHA -
EETEBREIHEERENRDE
% EAFEHEEBEARRRE - X
EHA YEFTHERE  BERAE
Fr e

AEBEBSEHBEBRMNERE
AR o ANEE R KR SR s AR
FE—ETENLE  LREEA T
WML EESEELER -
TMITH

TR TADHR

UTEEHeREEREBRBERS
BEMRNREESIIDT

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR¥TFT
(Restated)
(&&=l
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL RAREFABENESRERE 597,226 259,213
Trade and bills receivables measured BAREFAHMEEKESTE
at FVTOCI HE 5 W GIA R EWRE 951,378 1,005,281
Financial assets at amortized cost WHEK AT ENESREE 6,140,013 3,503,872
Financial liabilities TEAE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAREFABZNERARE 19 52,329
Financial liabilities at amortized cost REERKATENSREE 21,402,255 14,242,677
2021 F3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

41,

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL, restricted bank balances, trade and bills receivables
measured at FVTOCI, other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, other long-term receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
financial liabilities at FVTPL, trade and other payables, amounts due
to related parties, long-term payables, and bank and other loans.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing
financial instruments. These financial instruments issued at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group does not
have any specific interest rate policy except that the Group would
regularly review the market interest rates to capture the potential
opportunities to reduce the cost of borrowings. Accordingly, the
Group will enter into interest rate swap arrangement to mitigate the
interest rate risks if appropriate.

0] Fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to

fixed-rate bank and other loans and long-term payables (see
notes 32 and 37 for details).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
bank deposits and bank and other loans at floating interest
rates. To manage and mitigate the interest rate exposure,
the Group entered into three Swaps with certain financial
institutions. The management will continue to consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) was based on the exposure to interest rate for the
floating-rate bank deposits and bank and other loans,
assuming that these financial assets and liabilities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole relevant period. If a 25 basis point increase or
decrease in variable-rate bank deposits and a 100 basis point
increase or decrease in variable-rate borrowing are used,
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
after taxation would decrease/increase by approximately
RMB28,409,000 for the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020:
RMB21,447,000).

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being

undertaken globally, including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly risk-free rates. Details
of the impacts on the Group’s risk management strategy arising

from the interest rate benchmark reform and the progress towards

implementation of alternative benchmark interest rates are set out
under “interest rate benchmark reform” in this note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M ERR MR ()

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

41,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 32, the Group’s LIBOR bank loan may be subject to
the interest rate benchmark reform. The Group is closely monitoring
the market and managing the transition to new benchmark interest
rates, including announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators.

The Financial Conduct Authority has confirmed all LIBOR settings
will either cease to be provided by any administrator or no longer
be representative:

° immediately after 31 December 2021, in the case of all
sterling, euro, Swiss franc and Japanese yen settings, and
the 1-week and 2-month US dollar settings; and

° immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of the remaining
US dollar settings.

The following are the key risks for the Group arising from the
transition.

Interest rate related risks

For the contract which have not been transitioned to the relevant
alternative benchmark rates and without detailed fallback clauses,
if the bilateral negotiations with the Group’s counterparties are not
successfully concluded before the cessation of LIBORs, there are
significant uncertainties with regard to the interest rate that would
apply. This gives rise to additional interest rate risk that was not
anticipated when the contracts were entered into.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B RRMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate related risks (Continued)

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and the various
alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are forward looking term rates
published for a period (e.g. 3 months) at the beginning of that
period and include an inter-bank credit spread, whereas alternative
benchmark rates are typically risk-free overnight rates published at
the end of the overnight period with no embedded credit spread.
These differences will result in additional uncertainty regarding
floating rate interest payments.

Liquidity risk

The additional uncertainty on various alternative rates which are
typically published on overnight basis will require additional liquidity
management. The Group has established liquidity risk management
policy to ensure sufficient liquid resources to accommodate
unexpected increases in overnight rates.

Litigation risk

If no agreement is reached to implement the interest rate
benchmark reform on contracts which have not been transitioned
to the relevant alternative benchmark rates (e.g. arising from
differing interpretation of existing fallback terms), there is a risk of
prolonged disputes with counterparties which could give rise to
additional legal and other costs. The Group is working closely with
all counterparties to avoid this from occurring.

As of December 31, 2021, the bank loan carried at LIBOR has
not been transitioned to alternative benchmark rate, the Group is
in the progress of negotiation with relevant bank to determine the
alternative benchmark rate and the Directors is of the view that the
interest rate benchmark reform will have no material impact on the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RePBmRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

41,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate related risks (Continued)
Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through bank
balances and bank and other loans that are denominated in foreign
currency, i.e. currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily USD, EUR and HKD. To minimise this risk, the
Group enters into two Swaps with certain financial institutions to
manage the Group’s exposure in relation to the partial USD loans.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group’s profit after taxation (and retained profits) that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
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Year ended December 31,
HE12B3ALEE
2021 2020
20215 20206

Increase/ (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) increase Increase/ increase
in foreign in profit (decrease) in profit
exchange after tax and in foreign after tax and
rates  retained profits  exchange rates retained profits
HEER REER HMEEX REEH
18/ (e D) (W), %1 i/ (sd) ()M
RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFR ANEFTFT
usb eI 5% (37,799) 5% (23,945)
Others Efty 5% 851 5% 340

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the end of each
reporting period for presentation purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Re BB RARNE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis during the reporting period.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments
in listed equity securities. The Directors do not implement specific
measurements to mitigate the price risk. If the market price of the
listed equity securities increased or decreased by 5%, the Group
would recognize additional gains or losses of RMB7,724,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2021 (2020: RMB2,884,000).

The Group’s commodity price risk is mainly concentrated on
fluctuations in the prevailing market price of coke, coal, and refined
chemical products which are the major commodities purchased,
produced and sold by the Group. To minimize this risk, the Group
enters into future contracts to manage the Group’s exposure in
relation to forecasted sales of products, forecasted purchase
of raw materials and inventories. The impact of price change of
future contracts are insignificant as there have been no material
outstanding future contracts at the end of each reporting periods.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to other long term receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted bank
balances and cash and cash equivalents. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets and financial guarantee
contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

41,

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, other than financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum credit risk,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk arising from the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees
provided by the Group to the related parties is disclosed in note
39(d).

The Group mainly conducted transactions with customers with good
quality and long term relationship, when accepting new customers,
the Group requests advanced payment before the goods delivered.
In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

To manage risk arising from bank balances and bills receivables,
the Group mainly transacts with state-owned or reputable financial
institutions in PRC and reputable international financial institutions
outside of PRC. There has been no recent history of default in
relation to these financial institutions.

To manage risk arising from trade receivable balances, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and
the management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
counterparties. The credit period granted to the customers and
the credit quality of these customers is assessed, which takes into
account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties
and customers.

The Group reassesses lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
amounts due from related parties arising from contracts with
customers without significant financing component to ensure that
adequate impairment loss are made for significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

For trade receivables and amounts due from related parties of trade
nature, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
or collectively using a provision matrix appropriate groupings.
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group use
debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers because
its customers consists of a large number of customers which
share common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The estimated loss rates are estimated
on historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted using forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

For all other instruments including bills receivable, other receivables,
other long term receivables and amounts due from related parties
of non-trade nature, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognizes lifetime
ECL. The Group has assessed and concluded that the risk of
default rate for these instruments are steady based on the Group’s
assessment of the financial health of the counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. T E(E
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRlE R EE B EREGE (E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= & =B MR B 574 (&)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s THRAMENAEEZE S K E i FEU
trade and other receivables and amounts due from related parties, I LA K FE Y RE B 5 SRIE R (E B Rk
which are subject to ECL assessment: (CBETTEREEEBETE)
Internal Credit 2021 2020
Notes  rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Gross carrying amount
M ABEETR 12E8RR2HRNEEER 01 FRRAE PUPIES S

RMB’000 RIMB000 RMB 00O AMB OO0
ABETFL ARETT ANEETT AREFT
(Restated) ~ (Restated)

(fEit) (BEit)

Financial assets at amortised cost

REHRATBNSREE

Other receivables 21 Note 12-month ECL 292,472 497,776

HihEKEIE iz 12EABHEERR
Credit-impaired (individually) 41,031 333,503 - 497,776
EEREER)

Amounts due from related parties* 39 Mot 12-month ECL 1,344,540 102,335

PRl fiz 12EABHEEER
Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 386,442 1,730,982 95,835 198,170
SERBEERR (R ERE)

Other long-term receivables 23 MNote 12-month ECL 536,773 368,367

Hih & HEYEUR i3 12EARBEERR
Lifetime ECL 139,091 675,864 - 368,367
SHRHEEEE

Financial assets at FVTOCI

RAABHARMZANENSREE

Trade receivables 27 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 542,223 558,180

B AR SHRAEERR(RERE)
Credit-impaired (individually) 27477 569,700 23,216 581,396
EEREER)

Bills receivable 27 Mote 12-month ECL 441,467 441,467 463,786 463,786

EYEE i3 12EABHEERR

* EXFREENEREREREE ST
HRERENRIEE S EE R AR
B-AEBSUHERYFE—ER
RzHRREERSE -

* The gross carrying amounts disclosed above include both trade
nature receivables and non-trade nature receivables. All trade
nature receivables are applying lifetime ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. EMITE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies T EERE IR B IR MR (8E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 B R AR E RS (&)
Note: o=
For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses FABEERREEMS  AEBHAA
past due information or other relevant information available without HER K BALETUEX RSN N EIA
undue cost or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased EEOEMBEERTEEERRES
significantly since initial recognition. IR TR B RIRIE M -
2021 20214
Not past due/
No fixed
Past due repayment terms Total
bE 3L
k] W E B HR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF7 AR®F7n AR®F7T
Bills receivable e - 441,467 441,467
Amounts due from related parties  JEUERHE 5 5B - 1,730,982 1,730,982
Other receivables E it A 41,031 292,472 333,503
Other long-term receivables Hib REEUIE - 675,864 675,864
2020 20204
Not past due/
No fixed
Past due repayment terms Total
WaEats,/
ks 3 B E R AR @t
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT AREFT AREFT
Bills receivable BKEE - 463,786 463,786
Amounts due from related parties  FEU AR /5 FUA = 198,170 198,170
Other receivables HAb IR = 497,776 497,776
Other long-term receivables Hir REEUGRIE - 368,367 368,367
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41.

HZE2021FE 12831 ILFE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has
been recognized for trade receivables and amounts due from

SRMIAGE

T R B IR B AR R ()

15 B BB AR E B4 (40

TRINTERBEBETEARE H R
IR N R AR T B 21 B SRR

related parties of trade nature under the simplified approach: HEAESEEEEY
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit impaired) (credit impaired) Total
2HRNEEER 2HRAEERR
(AEEERE) (EERE) @t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
As at January 1, 2020 #2020%1 518 3,869 24,522 28,391
— Transfer to credit impaired -BREEERE (270) 270 =
— Impairment losses recognized ~ —CHERRRERSE 14,216 139 14,355
— Impairment losses reversed -BREMRERSE (100) (218) (318)
~ Impairment losses written off -BREORESE (1) (1,497) (1,498)
As at December 31, 2020 #2020 12A31H 17,714 23,216 40,930
~ Transfer to credit impaired ~BREEERE (4.277) 4,217 =
— Impairment losses recognized ~ —ERRARERSE 32,450 = 32,450
— Impairment losses reversed —-EREMRESE (11,851) (16) (11,867)
As at December 31, 2021 R2021412831H 34,036 27,477 61,513
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables and
amounts due from related parties of trade nature based on the

Group’s provision matrix.

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables and amounts due from
related parties of trade nature

41,

eI RRNE(E)
HZE2021F12A31HILFE
£ T E(E)

T R E IR B AR SR (48)

15 B BB AR E B4 (40

TRAAFINERAREREREDN
BHRWGIERERERTESME
PR RERRAR o
BHRUEFARERBERIESEE
PR AR (E

As at December 31, 2021

As at December 31, 2020

R2021%12831H #2020 12A31H
Gross Gross
Average carrying Average carrying
loss rate amounts loss rate amounts
FHERE AREE THERE BEREE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF AEBFT
Within 1 month 1BAR 0.24% 679,485 0.16% 479,357
1to 3 months 123f8A 3.89% 35,380 3.38% 136,506
4 to 6 months 4%6(EA 14.44% 6,869 11.76% 8,578
7to 12 months 721288 14.53% 206,931 38.29% 29,575
928,665 654,016

As at December 31, 2021, the Group provided RMB34,036,000
(2020: RMB17,714,000) impairment allowance for trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties of trade nature based on the
provision matrix. In addition, as at December 31, 2021, debtors
with balances from trade receivables amounting to RMB27,477,000
(2020: RMB23,216,000) were assessed individually and impairment
allowance of RMB27,477,000 (2020: RMB23,216,000) were made.

B2021F12A31H - NEEIZBREE
SEREBLE B FEUGRIE R UL A 5 B
24 E IR 1R AR 34,036,0007T
(20204 : AR#17,714,00070) R 1E
B o SN - PR20215E12A31H » K
SEMEZRMGIETBEHOEK
RIBANR27,477,0007C (20204 ¢
AR #23,216,00070) #E 1 TEBIFEE -
Wi B EREE ARKE27,477,0007T
(2020%F : AR¥23,216,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR ISR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. £FETE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies THREREEBZERECEE)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 15 B R AR E RS (&)
The following table shows reconciliation of loss allowances that TRINTEREREE - HARE YK
have been recognized for bills receivables, other receivables, other I8~ Hofth £ AR e R IE K e A B Bk
long term receivables and amounts due from related parties of non- FEHUEERBERABNEER B
trade nature: iR

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit (credit
12-month ECL impaired) impaired) Total
ES R 2H7H
12{8 A FEBE FEBE
FEFE UEFERE) (FERHE) #m
RMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB000
ABETFT ABEFT AEEFT ANEEFT

As at January 1, 2020 R2020F1A1R 14,211 - 18,997 33,208
— Transfer to credit impaired ~BREEERE 18,997 = (18,997) =
— Impairment losses recognized -BRRORERSE 17,822 - = 17,822
~ Impairment losses reversed - BREMNHERSE (30,854) = = (30,854)
As at December 31, 2020 20205128317 20,176 = = 20,176
— Transfer to lifetime ECL (not credit ~ —E&ZE GHEERERN)2H
impaired) EHEEEE
(2.127) 5127 - -
— Impairment losses recognized —EHRERNRERE 9,900 47,072 41,031 98,003
— Impairment losses reversed —BEREMRERSE (2,953) = = (2,953)
As at December 31, 2021 R2021F12A318 24,996 49,199 41,031 115,226
As at December 31, 2021, dividend receivable from CNC Risun M2021F12A31H0 » KEBFE
Energy of non-trade nature amounting to RMB90,519,000 (2020: W REBEERIEEZEERBA
RMB102,335,000) were assessed individually and no impairment K #90,519,0007T (20204 : AR
allowance were made on these debtors. 102,335,0007T) /T ERIFHE + WA

FEMFIRAHRBE R -
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41,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Directors are responsible for the Group’s cash management,
including the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities and
lease liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

41,

e IR (E)
HZE2021F12A31HILFE
£RIAE)

T R E IR B AR SR (48)

RBETERE

EFRBAKENRSERE 8RR
ERHBNEHREREREFARN
BHREFR - AERENBRAEH
EERPESH KRB THHRKH
UEREGER EHREHEHERKE
ETRBBNRTARESEE N
ENEREBORBDESHTER -

TEAAEENBERREBRAERR
REHENHERBRENHBKAD
HIREL T - BRBRIIIZA LR
HRRERE(BREMSHNEFE
MMENF  HARZE - RIRRES
RERFEGFE) ARKEB T 8EA
N &RF BHEE

As at December 31, 2021

2021124318

Contractual undiscounted cash outflows

ARRERRERY

Weighted Within ~ Morethan ~ More than

average 1year  1yearbut  2years but
interest oron less than lessthan ~ More than Carrying
rate demand 2 years 5 years 5years Total amount

it 15/ SME EZves
THRE SEER BSREFE BOWSE SR5E @zt kAR
% RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000
% ARETR AREFT ARETL ARETT AREFT ARETZ
Trade and other payables &5 R tENFUR NATER 4,770,256 - - - 477025 4,770,256
Bank and other loans FITREMER 517 8714536 3,287,289 2,447,427 - 14449252 13,586,680
Amounts due to related parties FE(TREH 738 NATER 144,319 - - - 144,319 144,319
Lease liabilities HEGE 5.02 82,252 58,964 97,591 - 238,807 214,008
Long-term payables REEFFE 10.00 290,100 1,576,258 1,687,831 - 3554189 2,901,000
Financial guarantee contracts B ERAH NATER 1,647,850 - - - 1,647,850 -
15,649,313 4,922,511 4,232,849 - 24,804,673 21,616,263
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. T E(E
Financial risk management objectives and policies THREREEBZERECEE)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk REE SRR
As at December 31, 2020
20205128318
Contractual undiscounted cash outflows
AORERR R
Weighted Within More than More than
average 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
interest oron less than less than More than Carrying
rate demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
il 1ER SRE SReE
TR RRER  EIRE EIRSE SR5E st KEE

%  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOO0  AMBUOOO  AMBUOO  RMBUOO
% ARETT  ANRETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARKTE  ARKTZ

Trade and other payables &5 R tENFUR

(Restated) (i) NATER 3575188 - - - 3575188 3575188
Bank and other loans FITRAMER 548 8109425 1875063 1,100,541 50251 11,144,480 10,497,734
Amounts due to related parties JEfTEEEE 5 308

(Restated) (i) NIATEH 169,755 - - - 169,755 169,755
Lease liabilities HEBE 5.08 30,713 14513 27,340 5,316 77,882 69,526
Financial guarantee contracts HHEERAD NATER  1280,000 - - - 1,280,000 -

13,165,081 1,889,776 1,136,881 55,567 16,247,306 14,312,203

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts LB ERENESEALIEERE
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle PEEREBLHELERNEFHE
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that REZCHBEBRATAESELENNES
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based SH  ERESHREHRNER A%
on the expectations at the end of each reporting period, the ERAERAAERIEZLHEHAS
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will NEMESE - Al ZFEAHEE
be payable under the arrangement. However, these estimates HFFIRBERREL BRI
are subject to change depending on the probability of the % MiBHARMITEMERITUAR
counterparties claiming under the guarantee which is a function of 575 PR R R AR A B 7 PR U R IE
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty RIEEBIEMATREN

which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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41,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Fair values

(

)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The Group measures its following financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period on a recurring basis:

Re BB RARN

HE2021F12A31HILFE

41. €T E(E)

TREREE B R NRBR

DRE

—
=

()

=
=
(%)

BAREIIRNESERTA

AEBREHREMRIREE LR
ERNAEFAERUNTERT
g

>=

Fair value
DB
As at December 31,
M2A318 Fair value Valuation technique and Significant unobservable
2021 2020 hierarchy key input input(s)
2021% 0205 DMEER  HREFERIESAEE EXTTRERAHE
RIMB’000 AMB0O0O
ARBFLT  AEETT

Financial assets

SHEE

Unlisted equity securities 38,182 43103 Level3 Fair values are estimated based on the  Liquidity discount
comparable listed company's P/B rate
ratio and a liquidity discount

¥ FRRAES 38,182 43103 E=# DABNERAL EHATNTEER  RBUARE
mETRE E

Private equity investment fund 206,992 117,846 Level 3 Fair values are estimated based on Net assets value of
the net asset value of underlying underlying investments
investments

RERAREES 206,992 "7846  FH=H DRETENEEREMEEFERLT  ABRENEETE

Bills receivables 441,467 463,786  Level2 Fair values are estimated based onthe ~ N/A
present value of the contracted cash
inflow at the discount rate that reflects
the market credit risk

EMEE 441,467 463786 E=f DRETEREHROTARRYTSE TER
EERNEREHENR ARG

Trade receivables 509,911 541495  Level2 Fair values are estimated based onthe  N/A
present value of the contracted cash
inflow at the discount rate that reflects
the market credit risk

5 RN 509,911 541495  E=f RREDEREHRORARRYDISE TER
BREBMBR R ENR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. £FETE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies THREREEBEZERECEE)
(Continued)
Fair values (Continued) AREGE)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) (y BAREIENSBIAGE
Fair value
DB
As at December 31,
M2A318 Fair value Valuation technique and Significant unobservable
2021 2020 hierarchy key input input(s)
2021% 020 AREESR  HESERIESAEE EXTTRERAYE

RMB000  RIMBUOO
ABBTZ  ARETX

Listed equity securities 154,482 57,678  Level 1 Fair values are calculated based onthe ~ NJ/A
quoted prices in an active market

LiRARS 154,482 57678 E—4 DREDENERTS LMBESE  TER

Wealth management product 107,923 2411 Level 2 Fair values are determined with N/A

reference to the quoted prices
provided by financial institutions

BHER 107,923 R4 EZR DrENESELRRBRINEBEEY TER
Futures contracts 66 2885  Level 1 Fair values are derived from quoted bid ~ N/A
prices in an active market
#8a0 66 2885 E-#& RABIREERTSHEARE TER
Held-for-trading non-derivative 69,581 5290  Level Fair values are derived from quoted bid ~ N/A
financial assets prices in an active market
BIEEEHTEERER 69,581 5200 £ RRETREERTSNEARE THR
Structured deposit 20,000 - Level2 Fair values are determined with N/A

reference to the quoted prices
provided by financial institutions

HERILER 20,000 - BIR DREDR2ZRKERANGEET TER
Financial liabilities
SREE
Futures contracts 19 140 Level Fair values are derived from quoted bid ~ N/A
prices in an active market
HEan 19 14 E-§ DRETREERTSHEARE TER
Derivative financial - 52,189 Level2 Fair values are determined with N/A
instruments - swaps reference to the quoted prices
provided by financial institutions
TEeRTA %5 - 52180 HEH DRENB2ZERKERANGEET TER

272 2021 ANNUAL REPORT
China Risun Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. EMITE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies TRIRREE B R RBR(B)
(Continued)
Fair values (Continued) ARE(E)

(iy  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) RAREYENSHIE )

—
=

The Group’s investments in unlisted equity securities which R2021F 128318 » RS
were classified as financial assets at FVTPL under level 3 =RIBRAAEFABENCRE
hierarchy amounted to RMB38,182,000 as at December 31, EONREEFELFTRAZESFKR
2021(2020: RMB43,103,000). The significant unobservable & B ARE38,182,0007T (2020
input is the liquidity discount rate. The higher liquidity discount F : AR%¥43,103,0007T) ° &
rate, the lower fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL will AN AIER R A SR AR B AT
be. A 5% increase/decrease in the liquidity discount rate, R o BT MEYS - A
holding all other variables constant, the carrying amounts of AEFABEZNEREENAR
the investments would decrease/increase by RMB2,335,000 BEE - REMB) IR R
(2020: RMB2,155,000) as at December 31, 2021. m/ mbs%  mABHEMES

& - Bl2021F12A31B%E
RERNE@ERD, ENARE
2,335,0007C (20204 : AR
2,155,0007T) °

The Group’s investments in private equity investment fund R2021F 128318 » HEASE
which were classified as financial assets at FVTPL under ERBRAREFABRNERE
level 3 hierarchy amounted to RMB206,992,000 (2020: ENAEENLERTIREESK
RMB117,846,000) as at December 31, 2021. The significant & B AR#206,992,0007T (2020
unobservable input is the net assets value of underlying F: AR¥117,846,0007T) ° &
investments. The higher net assets value of underlying AP BERE A BB RE@IRE
investments, the higher fair value of the financial assets at WEEFE - HEKRENEETF
FVTPL will be. A 5% increase/decrease in the net assets BHE  BARESFABRZNE
value of underlying investments, holding all other variables MEENALBEES - HAK
constant, the carrying amounts of the investments would EMEEFEEN HRD5%
increase/decrease by RMB10,350,000 (2020: RMB5,892,000) fATE e T - Al2021
as at December 31, 2021. F12A31HZERENERHEE

a0, A AR #10,350,000
JL(20204F : AR¥5,892,000

JT) °
There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during RBERRN - E—FEE K2
the reporting period. I A B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ARE ISR MR ()
For the year ended December 31, 2021 & ZE2021F12A831HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Fair values (Continued)
(i) Reconciliation of level 3 measurements

The following table represents the reconciliation of level 3

41. €T E(E)

T R B IR B AR R ()

AREGE)
(i) B=HFTEHEE

TRETNEERS HE =R

measurements throughout the reporting period. SHHER o
Unlisted
Private equity
equity fund securities Total
AEREES FETREES et
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

As at January 1, 2020 7202015 1H 50,322 51,333 101,655
Purchase EE 59,000 - 59,000
Fair value change in currentyear ~ AFEQ A (EE 8,524 (8,230) 294
As at December 31, 2020 120205 12831H 117,846 43,108 160,949
Purchase #E 100,000 - 100,000
Redemption =] (10,210) (2,000) (12,210)
Fair value change in currentyear ~ AFE AR EEE) (644) (2,921) (3,565)
As at December 31, 2021 20216 12H31H 206,992 38,182 245174

(iii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values due to short maturity and floating interest rates, as
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

HZE2021F12A31HILFE

42. REFHEENEEHK

TERAVNACEEREZDELENR
EEY  BREReNFRSEH &
BRPELAMNBEDNEERERENR
ARAERENAEEGAAERE
REFNERBETHRASRENE

financing activities. B
Amounts
Interest- due to
bearing related
bank and parties Lease Dividend
otherloans  non-trade liabilities payable Total
FERTR  EABHS
HtESR  FERFAE HEAE RS @t
AMB 1000 AMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETZ
At December 31, 2019 12019F12A31A 8,659,638 - 46,069 2,033 8,707,740
Addition from business combination K& EREEHI T EKAHNTE
under common control - (5,100) - - (5,100)
At January 1, 2020 (Restated) B202061 A1H (B &) 8,659,638 (5,100) 46,069 2,033 8,702,640
Net financing cash flows (Restated) ~ BEREREFACER) 1410,423 (21,350) (13556)  (263,790) 1,111,727
Bill receivables discounted (Note) ~ BEBIEWME B (W) (157,450) S S = (157,450)
Dividend payable FERRE = = S 261760 261760
An new lease entered Mg - S 46,687 S 46,687
Offset trade receivable HEE SRR = = (12,600) = (12,600)
Finance costs BERK 529,106 - 2,926 - 532,032
Interest accrual - capitalized JEtHIS—EA( 95,391 - - S 95,391
Exchange difference EREE (39,374) = = = (39,374)
At December 31, 2020 (Restated) 12020412 A31A (B &it) 10,497,734 (26,450) 69,526 3 10,540,813
Net financing cash flows HEREREFE 1,906,341 26,450 (33,745) (1,012,320 886,726
Bill receivables discounted (Note)  BEREWMEE (M2 (95,204) - - - (95,204)
Deposits paid for other loans TREMER EE 264,616 - - - 264,616
Dividend payable EERE - - - 1012320 1,012,320
An new lease entered L - - 222,624 - 222,624
Rent payables JERfS - - (41,836) - (41,836)
Finance costs BERK 888,949 - 15,982 - 904,931
Interest accrual - capitalized RIS —E A 126,534 - - - 126,534
Offset with long term receivables RERBENE - - (18,580) - (18,580)
Exchange difference EREE (2,290) - 37 - (2,253)
At December 31, 2021 20218 12A31A 13,586,680 - 214,008 3 13,800,691

Note: During each reporting period, the Group has discounted bills
receivable from third parties to banks for short term financing.
The relevant cash flows of these borrowings are presented as
operating cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows
as the Directors consider the cash flows are in substance, the
receipts from trade customers.

Wizt - REREHR - AREEEHEKE
=R RBRER TR - LETES
BE - ZEFEFNERRSARER
FARSREREINAKERDR
B FEFRARELREEL LA
BESEPUWERE KA ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

iR ISR (8)
For the year ended December 31, 2021

43. COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at the end of each reporting
period not provided for in the consolidated financial statements

were as follows:

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

43. &I

REREART KRR E P HHRE T
EHBENRBITEARENT ¢

As at December 31,

M12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB000
ARETFT AREFT

Capital expenditure in respect of LA TN EBHEARFL ¢

— property, plant and equipment  — %1% - =M% 3,634,799 3,058,371
— investments in associates —REFE N RMIEE 276,698 451,500
— investments in joint ventures —REETENRE 1,187,990 =
— Acquisition (note 37) — W77 37) - 3,151,000

Note: According to the investment agreements, other than investments
in associates and investment in joint ventures set out above,
the Group may also provide shareholder’s loans to these joint
ventures and associates in an amount up to RMB4,516,035,000
and RMB412,704,000 respectively, if they are not able to obtain
external financing for the project.

44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, in addition to the discounted
bills securing the Group’s bank loans as disclosed in note 27,
certain Group’s assets were pledged to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group and their carrying amounts are as follows:

BeE - IRIRIRERE - R EATAREE
RAMBREREGEDENREMN
SN WERBEATIREERER
BEAZIBEEHEBINDRME A%
ERARESFREESSEA
AR#4,516,035,0007T % AR
412,704,000 THIRR R E X ©

44, EEEKT

RERESHR - B E27TAREER
AEBRTEFTEFNERERIN -
AEEETEECERAETAEE
RITRMEFRER  MEAREREDOT

As at December 31,

M12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR¥TFT
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 6,335,777 2,847,664
Right-of-use assets FREEE 643,719 644,300
Inventories eSS 383,340 433,340
Trade receivables =) e e 50,921 =
Restricted bank deposits SRR AFIRITIERR 1,108,984 1,083,511
8,522,741 5,008,815
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iRe SRR (8)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #EHZE2021F 128318 ILFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. ZRBRXEMB AR 2F1E
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by ARBIRBERREEZELRBEREZ
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below: FEMBRBEERIINT ¢
Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activity
gMRY EES BRERT/ AAEEERELS
HEAREM EXBE R A HZ128318 TERK
2021 2020

20215 20204

Xingtai Risun Trading Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
(“Xingtai Risun Trading”, formerly known as RMB94,750,000 chemicals and refined
Xingtai Risun Coking Limited) chemicals
(amBEESERAR)

(Notes (i) and (iv))

MaRBEESERAR(MaREES] HE BRRAARE BEER ElERR
AT A B L B RAR) (W) R (iv) 94,750,0007T B IER

Hebei Risun Energy Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of coke and
(*Hebei Risun Energy”, formerly known as RMB1,000,000,000 coking chemicals

Hebei Risun Coking Limited)
(LIRS EERABR AR (Notes (1) and (iv)

LIRS a2 R AR A R (DAL B AER] - i BRRAARE SEERRENER
ARG S BR D) W) R ) 1,000,000,0007C

Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals”) RMB510,000,000 chemicals
(MEBBRL TARAR)
(Notes (i) and (iv))

MaBsEcIAERAR(MARERET) HE BRRAARE TERMCIER
(Bt R(iv) 510,000,0007T

China Risun Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HKD1 100% 100%  Investment holding and
(“Hong Kong Risun”, formerly known as trading of coke, coking
Risun Coal Chemicals Group Limited and chemicals and refined
Sky Hero Resources Limited) chemicals

RERGEEGEEERAR(EERE] - &% TRk REERREESERK -
AIEREE IEEERARRKEER EtERRERIER
BB

Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy”) RMB420,000,000 chemicals
(EMREHEIRER DA (Note (iv))

EMREMERERLA(EMRENELR) + BHRRARY EERMIER
(e (i) 420,000,0007T

2021 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RePBmRRME(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

45. ARBETEMB AT ZF1E

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) €)
Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activity
SR BRES BHERT/ KRR EERELS
HEARAMH BB HIEN HZ12A318 TEEK
2021 2020
20215 20205
Golden Sino Enterprises Limited (‘Golden  BVI Ordinary share USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Sino”) (Note (i)
Golden Sino Enterprises Limited ([Golden ~ HBEZEHE EBRIET REER
SinoJ) (#1#{ii)
Risun Marketing Limited (JBB & 858 A7) The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
(Notes (i) and (iv)) RMB1,200,000,000 chemicals and refined
chemicals
1BR & B R AR Wi R (v) H BHRTARE BEER ElERR
1,200,000,0007C B IER
Tangshan Risun Chemicals Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Tangshan Risun Chemicals”) RMB495,000,000 chemicals
(B LBt THERAR) (Notes (i) and (iv)
BELRSIERAR(ELESI) HE BRRAARE FERMCIER
(Biz#0) & (iv) 495,000,0007T
Risun Group Limited (BB AR A ) The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Notes (i) and (iv)) RMB4,898,794,000
1B EBER AR W) R (iv) H BHRTARE REER
4,898,794,0007T
Cangzhou Risun Chemicals Limited (/8N The PRC Paid-in capital 89.92% 89.92%  Production of refined
18R THRAR) (Notes (i) and (iv)) USD151,600,000 chemicals
BB I (W) E(iv) H BRRA TERMCIER
151,600,000 7T
Risun Global Limited (“Risun Global”, Hong Kong Ordinary share 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
formerly known as Good City HKD3,000,000 chemicals and refined
(Hong Kong) Limited) chemicals
IS ERERAR (SRR - e 43,000,000 7T BEER  ElERREA
AR (BB BRAR) LIER
Xingtai Risun Chemicals Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Xingtai Risun Chemicals”) RMB218,520,000 chemicals
(MaBE L IARRR)
(Notes (i) and (iv)
MamB ITERAR(HABEI) HE BRRAARE FERMCIER
(Biz) & (iv) 218,520,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE B EERMEE(E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

HE2021F12A31HILFE

45. ANARETEMBRARZFF

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (1&)
Place of Shareholding/equity
incorporation/ interest attributable
registration/ Paid up issued/ to the Company
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital as of December 31,  Principal activity
SR BRES BRERT/ AR EERELS
HEAREMH BRI EARA BZ12A318 TEEK
2021 2020
2021 2020
Tangshan Risun Aromatics Hydrocarbon The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
Limited (E L8RS EERBRAR) RMB378,330,000 chemicals
(Notes (iv) and (iii))
BILBGS CERBERARMHW)EGE) — F BHRRARY ERMIER
378,330,0007T
Risun Materials Co., Ltd Japan Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
(JBEMERAZH) JPY155,000,000 chemicals refined and
(Notes (i) and (iv)) chemicals
RIS B &t (et in) R(iv) BE BRRA BEER  ElERREH
155,000,000H 7T tIER
Tangshan Risun Materials Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke and coking
(B LB MERRLR) (Notes (i) and (iv) RMB120,000,000 chemicals
EILRSERR AR ()R () H BHRRARE BEERNENER
120,000,0007T
Dingzhou Zhongxu Industrial Limited The PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Real estate development
(M BEXERAF) RMB50,000,000
(Notes (i) and (iv))
EMABE BN R (A (i) R (vi) h BRRAARE 100% 100% EHERE
50,000,0007T
Wuhu Shunri Xinze Equity Investment The PRC Paid in capital 100% - Investment holding
Partnership (LP) (ZE4IE B {5 2k RMB4,200,000,000
REBBEEBRAR) (ote (v)
EHRRERRERESUCR(BRAY) & BRRAARE REER
iz (i) 4,200,000,0007T
Shandong Fangming Chemical Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid-in capital 100% - Production of refined
(ILRFHEEIERAT) (Notes (iv) RMB388,000,000 chemicals
R AR TERRR M7 (iv) H BHRKARY ERMIER
388,000,0007T
Shandong Dongju Chemical Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid-in capital 100% - Production of refined
(WRRE{TIBRRR) (Notes (iv) RMB388,970,000 chemicals
IWRRELTARAR 3T (iv) HE BRRAARE EERMIER
388,970,0007T
Shandong Hongda Chemical Co., Ltd. The PRC Paid in capital 100% - Production of coke, coking
(W THERADE) (note (iv) RMB370,000,000 chemicals
IWRBSE(C TERAR (3 (iv) H EHRARARE CEERRELNER
370,000,0007T
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in
the PRC.

(i) These entities are sino-foreign owned entities established in the
PRC.

(i)~ No audited statutory financial statements have been prepared for
these subsidiaries.

(iv)  The English translation of the names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

All of the subsidiaries, except for Golden Sino, are indirectly held by
the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year.

All companies now comprising the Group have adopted December
31, as their financial year end.

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021 #Z=2021F12A31HILFE

45. ARARFTEMBLRRZFHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

was as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2021

46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

ire M BHRRME

HZE2021F12A31HILFE

AR B BER

(&)

BRARBPBARRKROERAT

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT AR¥TFT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RBARINEE 2,597,144 1,300,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) — FEUSHT B R RIZIB (Ht) 476,174 =
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREFABENSREE 8,729 15,295
3,082,047 1,315,295

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) FEULHI B A BRI (B 7E) 1,220,614 494,016
Trade and other receivables B 5 hEAEKGIA 383 390
Cash and cash equivalent ReMReEEY 3,158 1,586
1,224,155 495,992
Current liabilities B EF

Bank loans RITER 346,291 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note) VHWE RIRIB (HiL) 9,246 9,246
Trade and other payables B 5 hEMENFKIE 1,154 64
356,691 9,310
Net current assets REEEFE 867,464 486,682

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank loans RITER 476,174 =
Net assets EEFE 3,473,337 1,801,977

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N 383,604 354,699
Reserves e 3,089,733 1,447,278
Total equity R 3,473,337 1,801,977

2021 F3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Re SRR (E)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

46.

47.

HZE2021FE 12831 ILFE

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 46. AN BB E R ()
(CONTINUED)
Note: o=
As at December 31, 2021, except for amount due from a subsidiary of MN2021F12A31H - BEK—RHEBE QA
RMB822,465,000 which was secured, interest bearing and repayable BEIF - 5B RAR2023F 11 A3051 5 H
in instalment before November 30, 2023, the amounts due from/to BiE AR 15822,465,0007 LMK IBIN © KA
subsidiaries disclosed in the Company’s statement of financial position BB A 2 B BR A LB < B B 1 )
are of non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on REBIEBEZHHE BB REREAR
demand. TREE -
As at December 31, 2020, except for amount due from a subsidiary MR2020F12A31H ' BREK—RMEBE X
of RMB412,039,000 which was unsecured, bearing interest at 9% per Al EFEEI% KH2021F6 H30H E|H
annum and repayable on June 30, 2021, the amounts due from/to B3R A R#412,039,000 7T FIBSN - A
subsidiaries disclosed in the Company’s statement of financial position ARBH BRI T ORI H B
are of non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ARIFEBIESHE - BIKF - 2ER
demand. BREKEE -
Movements in the Company’s reserves RARFEEE
Share

premium  Retained profit Total

R 1RE REBEF et

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ARETFT AREFT

At January 1, 2020 7202051818 1377,224 39,659 1,416,883
Profit for the year FREF - 292,155 292,155
Dividends appropriation (Note 15) REDIKHE15) = (261,760) (261,760)
At December 31, 2020 72020512 A31A 1,377,224 70,054 1,447,278
Issue of new shares BITHR 1,676,476 = 1,676,476
Profit for the year FRREA - 978,299 978,299
Dividends appropriation (Note 15) RED K772 15) - (1,012,320) (1,012,320)
At December 31, 2021 W2021412A318 3,053,700 36,033 3,089,733
EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 47. HFHREE

Subsequent to December 31, 2021, the Group entered into a
partnership agreement with an external third party for the sourcing
of potential investment in the future. As of the date of this report, the
Group has injected RMB1,000 million by cash to the partnership as
capital contribution.
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“Articles” or “Articles of
Association”
[#BA sk 44 =2 4R A

“associate(s)”

k- INI

“Audit Committee”
[B%EEE

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
[FEg]

“Business Day” or
“pbusiness day”

[&%A]
“‘BvI”
[REBEIAS]

“Cabot Risun Chemicals”

[RERBFSE T

“Cangzhou Production Base”
CeMAEERRE]

“CCIA”

[MPEREITE RS

“China” or “PRC”

[ e

Definitions

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RN RINEEERZAA (ETRHER])

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
B s A Tz s R

the audit committee of the Board

EFEMNERZBE

our board of Directors

E e

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for normal banking business to
the public and which is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong Kong
EBRIT—RELBFEPIPRBEFTROIEBNEMNE F(EHX  EREXBEBRIRBRISR
e

the British Virgin Islands
RBRUHS

Cabot Risun Chemical (Xingtai) Co., Ltd. (K& BB/t TFE)BRAF]), a limited
liability company established in the PRC on June 23, 2011 and owned as to 60.0% by
Cabot (China) Limited (<1&#F (R E) 1% & B R 2 7]), an independent third party, and 40.0%
by our subsidiary, Risun Chemicals. It is an associate of our Company

REFBEBETOBE)BRAT - HR2011F6 A23B B ZABER AT - I B R ER(F
BNIREBR AT (RBILE=F) REMOMEB R BNESE 5 R H60.0%5&40.0% - &7

NS0}k /Nl

our production base in Cangzhou, where the refined chemical facilities directly owned by
our subsidiary, Cangzhou Risun Chemicals, are located

BAERMONEERR - AEFINMEQFIAMNBEC TEEESORBA(C TRIEMNAMELD

the China Coking Industry Association (R EIREETTZ%E), an association composed of
representatives from the PRC coking industry

PERETEGE - AR ERETERRARNHE

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references to “China”
and the "“PRC” do not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
PEARLNE - ERAFHREIEHES2ZEMNS - BXESEEN -
BEEE  RFIRAE

7R B IR
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Definitions (Continued)

BE(E)

“CNC Risun Energy”
[ R B5 AL IR

“Companies Ordinance’
NI

“Company”

[RAF]

“connected person(s)”

[BAEAL]
“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ AR R

“Deed of Non-competition”

[T 5 RIE

“Dingzhou Production Base’

EMEERRE]

“Director(s)”

[E=%]

Dongming Production Base

REALFERR
“EBITDA”
[EBITDAI

Hebei CNC Risun Energy Limited (AL EENB5 8EJR B R A 7)), a limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on November 21, 2003 and a joint venture company of the
Company

AL IERGRE R AR AR -

AMAE AT

—XR2003F 11 A21 B EF BRI M ER A RN AEAA

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended or
supplemented from time to time

BRADIFE6228 R RIGEDI ETRHER] S 7T)

China Risun Group Limited(FREIfBF5 & E AR A7), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on November 8, 2007
FEMBSEEBRAR - —FRKN2007F 11 ASHEFR SRS MK ER AR

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules

A AR A TR R

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules and, unless the context otherwise
requires, means each of Texson and Mr. Yang

A FMARRM T ZFANRE - RIFEXERBAE - SAERRRRGEE

a deed of non-competition entered into by each of our Controlling Shareholders containing
the undertakings as described in the paragraph headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-Competition” of the Prospectus, in favor of the Company and
our subsidiaries dated February 20, 2019

AEERARRETZ AIR2019F2 A20 A ARG - BB HRER[EIZEAR AR A #E
BR—TRFRE]—RATAUAR R B REFIHME A R AR m AR

our production base in Dingzhou, where the refined chemical facilities owned by our
subsidiary, Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy, the coking facilities owned by our subsidiary,
Hebei Risun Coking, and hydrogen production facilities owned by our subsidiary
Dingzhou Risun hydrogen Energy are located

BMEEMNNEERR - RBPIONMERREMNREFEIRER BB THRE - BP0
B AR BES B B R VR LR M PR M B A R E N BES REE R BV SR A E R M Y
PRIEH

the director(s) of the Company
RABIES

our production base in Dongming, where the refined chemical facilities directly owned by
our subsidiaries are located

BPERANEERR - BEMNHE D RIHES OB TRIEN AL

earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization

RETRE - BB - EREENEN
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“Executive Director(s)”

[FITEE]

“Financial Statements”

(BT R
“FVTPL”
AR ER AR

“Global Offering”

“Group”, “we” or “us

(A& k)

“HBCCIA”
DAL E TR

“HK$” or “Hong Kong dollars”
or “cents”

[Tk L
“Hong Kong” or “HK”
(&)

»

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange
or “Stock Exchange”
(& ,%Hﬁﬁxﬁﬁm( 22T

Huhhot Production Base

WA R A EEE [

Definitions (Contmu

d)
2% (E)

executive Director(s)

WITES

the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 prepared by
the directors of the Company and audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, set out on pages
131 to 282 of this annual report
REREIBNZ22EHAARAESHF UL AR HER T2
124318 IEFE iR A MRk

SHMT TR B E20214F

fair value through profit or loss
RAREF ABE

the offer of 60,000,000 Shares initially offered by the Company for subscription by the
public in Hong Kong at, the offer and sale of the 540,000,000 Shares by the Company to
professional, institutional and other investors and an over- allotment of 90,000,000 Shares
as described in the section headed “Structure of the Global Offering” in the Prospectus
?ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁf@ﬁéﬂ%@?ﬁ%kﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@i Bl¥I5 4R 2 3 £60,000,000 8D A BB AR

TRE - RARARRFEE - %%&Eﬁﬁ&éﬁ%ﬁf%&@ﬁ’%540,000,000Hxﬂx1ﬁ&i%ﬁ@6%§‘
9o,ooo,oooﬂxﬂﬁfﬁ

the Company and its subsidiaries or, where the context otherwise requires, in respect
of the period prior to the Company becoming the holding company of its present
subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of the Company, some or any of them and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their predecessors

ZAY/NCIDSEEN )2 N 1H1K%§73*ﬁ}5ﬁ}a WRAR B AEIRE M B A 5] B0 R =] A O Hf
RmE - AEAR Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ% ETHEMZEHNBR R REMZENERRHERE
SUME) E BT & R B E 0 ¥R

Hebei Coking and Chemical Industry Association (jAlit& #£1L1T¥1# &), an association
composed of representatives from the coking and coal chemical industries

LB EMITERE - RN TITERKRERN TS

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEEEE BTGB

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEIEBSRITTH R

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEMERXHMBRAT

our production base in Huhhot, where the coking and refined chemical facilities directly

owned by our joint venture, Hohhot Risun China Gas Energy, are located

BPETIESNEERR - BERMEE S 2R RINFRERE R PR IREE A AR E B
SR EY PTIE M
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Definitions (Continued)

BE(E)

“IFRS”
[R5 i 5 2 AL
“Independent Non-executive

Director(s)”

(B IFITER]

“independent third party(ies)”

PEzE=77]

“Jinniu Risun Chemicals”

[E41B5(ET]

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Date”

[ - E A
“Listing Rules”

[Er#R Al

“Main Board”

[E1R]

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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International Financial Reporting Standards, amendments and interpretations issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board
B G ERIE E S MMM BRI IS 2R (BRI R R

independent non-executive Director(s)
BUIEHITES

person(s) or company(ies) and their respective ultimate beneficial owner(s), who/which, to
the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, is/are not connected with the Company or our connected persons as defined
under the Listing Rules

BRMEEWNEL YIS BERERRM  SBERERE - RELTRAERDFRERMEE
ATWEEAENATRATARBEESEREEREGA

Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited (A/ib &4 Bf5(E THRAF]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on March 28, 2008 and owned as to 50.0% by our
subsidiary, Xingtai Risun Trading and 50.0% by Hebei Jinniu Chemical Industry Co., Ltd.
(b &L TRD AR A R]), a company established in the PRC, whose shares are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600722), and an independent third party.
Jinniu Risun Chemicals is an associate of our Company

AL F ST AERAR - —KN2008F3 A28 BEF B M AR AR - AFRAMIHIME
RAMBEIEHE S KAt @ HE TRMER AR (—REFBEKIZIN R - EROHR LEE
HFR P LR - 600722) © RIBILE=77) 7 HI#EHS0.0%5%50.0% © &4 1B5ET
RARAIRHEE A A

listing of the Shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
MR P E BB R P T

the date, being, March 15, 2019, on which the Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange

A An BB A2 P TR L B IE R R T E IR IR E E R B HA - BI20196F3 A 151

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time)

EABARHAERARES EMARREENEERT - MFESARMTT N ER)

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which is
independent from and operated in parallel with the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange

BB S ENRET S (T EEREMS) - BN B PTGEMIL B E I 174 &E

L]



“Mr. Yang”

[55eE]

“NDRC”

[ERENE]

“Nomination Committee”

[E2ZEg

“‘NPC”
(2B AKX

“Prospectus”

(TR ERE]

“Remuneration Committee”

[FMZEE]

“Reporting Period”
[$REHA

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
AR

“SFQO” or “Securities and
Futures Ordinance”

(&7 MR RG]

“Shares”

[Bf7 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
(A&

“subsidiary” or “subsidiaries’

Eni=NGl

“substantial shareholder”
[EZ2A8H]

“Tangshan Production Base”

[FEERRE]

Definitions (Contmu

d)
2% (E)

Mr. Yang Xuegang (4= @), an Executive Director, the chairman of the Board, chief
executive officer and one of our Controlling Shareholders

BEMEE ITES  EESLERITRAEE - TABMNERRR 2 —

National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC (FF % A &L HNE B 5% 2 & Ak
FEE®)
FEARANMBEEZZRNNELZES

the nomination committee of the Board

EFEMRAZEBE

National People’s Congress of the PRC (FF# AREMBEZ2EARKEZAD)
PEAREMEZEAARRERS

the prospectus of the Company dated February 28, 2019 in relation to the initial public
offering and the listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange

AABHEA201952 28 A A B B IR AR & MR PR N B AT MR ER

the remuneration committee of the Board

EFENFHEEE

January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021
20211818 E2021412831H

the lawful currency of the PRC

PEDEEES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time

BEEDIEST1E B F LG GG RS R S 7T)

ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of our Company

AR BT EFAEE. 10ETTH) EBAR

holder(s) of our Shares
RAFE A

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Companies Ordinance
LN S i -

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules
B iR Al T s e R &

the production base in Tangshan, where the refined chemical facilities owned by our
subsidiary, Tangshan Risun Chemicals are located

RMEEUNEERR - REMHMEBRRELBEE THEA OB TRENMEL
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Definitions (Continued)

BE(E)

“Texson”

[Z=5e7R]

“USA”
S

“UsD”
ES

“Xingtai Production Base”

(MarERRE]

Xingtai Risun Chemicals
[T & feFs{ L)

“Xingtai Risun Trading”
[TBETEFSE 5 )

“Xuyang Group”

[TBr5 5]

“Xuyang Holding”

[BRE1ER

Yuncheng Production Base
B A EE =

wop”
[%]

2021 ANNUAL REPORT
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Texson Limited (F=reFHRAMRAF]), a company incorporated in the BVI on February 19,
2004 and wholly-owned by Mr. Yang. It is one of our Controlling Shareholders
RRHRBBR AR —HKR2004F2A19B ERBRAHSTMAINRE - BHIGTELERE
B ERBMRERRR 2 —

the United States of America
EFBREREH

the lawful currency of the USA

XEHEEEY

the production base in Xingtai, where the coking facilities owned by our joint venture
company, CNC Risun Energy, and refined chemical facilities owned by our subsidiaries,
Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals, Xingtai Risun Chemicals and our associates, Jinniu Risun
Chemicals and Cabot Risun Chemicals are located

BMEMENEERRE - REMNE SR TR EEELRES NREREAREMOHER
AIMAEEFEAT - MEEE T REMNEE QR SFBELET - RESEEEITESRN
FEAE TR PTTEH

Xingtai Risun Chemicals Limited (JB&JES{L THR A 7)), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on March 17, 2014 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

MEMBEEIBRAR - —RH2014F3A17BEFRKIMHERADA - ARQAKMEES
=l YN=]

Xingtai Risun Trading Limited (lB&EFE 5 BR 2 7)) (formerly known as Xingtai Risun
Coking Limited (FB&BFZE(LBRAF]), a limited liability company established in the
PRC on May 12, 1995 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
MEBHEEZSER LR FIBMABEENERATE) - —KN1995F5 A 128 £ BIKIZH)
BRAT - RAARINEZEZENB AT

Xuyang Holding and its subsidiaries
TBRS 12 A% K ELBfT 8 22 7

Xuyang Holding Limited (JEFZ#ZER% AR A A]) (formerly known as Xuyang Coking Holding
Limited (JBFZE{b4EM8 B R 2 ]) and Tianlu Industrial Holding Limited (K& & 2iEERR
2 7A])), a limited liability company established in the PRC on August 4, 2004 and owned as
t0 99.0% by Mr. Yang and 1.0% by Mrs. Yang

BSERER AR FIEBEECERERARRREEEZERER AR - —HKMN20045F8
RABREHRBIKZINER AR - BHEERBAKRD BIHH99.0% K& 1.0%

our production base in Yuncheng, where the coking and refined chemical facilities directly
owned by our subsidiaries are located

BAESHNEERR - AEFIEME QR RE MBI TRIEH A

per cent
Bt
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